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FLORIDA POWER CORPORATION 

DOCKET No. 9501 10- El 

AMENDED 
REBUTTAL TESTIMONY OF 

BRIAN A. MORRISON 

Please state your name and business address. 

Brian A. Morrison, 800 Third Avenue, Suite 2300, New York, NY 

10022. 

By whom are you employed and in what capacity? 

I am employed by Morrison & Kibbey Ltd. as a Managing Director. 

What type of an organization is Morrison & Kibbey, Ltd.? 

Morrison & Kibbey Ltd. is an investment banking firm. 

What specifically do you do for Morrison & Kibbey? 

Like my other partners, I am responsible for assisting our clients in 

developing new corporate financing strategies and the implementation 

of these strategies. 

Please describe your educational and business background. 

Education 

1971 -1 975 Georgetown University BS - Mathematics 

Scholarships: George F. Baker Trust 

Francis Ouimet Foundation 
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1977- 1 979 Harvard Business School 

Scholarships: 

Business 

1993-Present Morrison & Kibbey Ltd. 

1986-1 993 Hicks Morrison & Co. 

1985-1 986 Amvest Capital Corp. 

1982- 1985 Dean Witter Reynolds 

1979-1 982 ShearsodAmerican 

Express 

1976-1 978 Citibank, N.A. 

MBA - Finance 

George F. Baker Trust 

Danforth Memorial Fellowship 

Managing Director 

Managing Director 

Senior Vice President 

First Vice President 

Assist. Vice President 

A copy of my resume is attached as Exhibit No.- (BAM-1). 

Have you worked in the area of financing of cogeneration projects? 

Yes extensively. 

In what capacity? 

In our role acting as financial advisor and placement agent we have 

developed and/or implemented financing plans for over 40 power 

projects representing in excess of 1,350 MW of generating capacity. 

For how many cogeneration projects have you worked on financing? 

16, totalling over 540 MW. 

What is the purpose of your testimony? 

- 2 -  
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The purpose of my testimony is to rebut the direct testimony pre-filed 

by Panda-Kathleen, L.P., that stated that "Panda's ability to  meet the 

construction start date of January 1 , 1996, and the in-service date of 

January 1, 1997, has been jeopardized solelv as a result of Florida 

Power's actions in attempting to  disown the contract." (Emphasis 

added.) Testimony of Ralph Killian, page 37, lines 9-13. 

On what do you base the testimony contained herein? 

I based my testimony on my review of the Panda/Florida Power Standard 

Offer Contract, the Commission's Rule 25-1 7.0832, F.A.C., documents 

produced by Panda in discovery, and on my direct experiences in 

representing numerous private power developers in assisting in the 

development and implementation of various types of project financing 

structures. 

Are you familiar with Panda's corporate structure as it pertains to this 

proceeding? 

Yes. Three corporate entities appear in the documents: Panda-Kathleen, 

L.P.; Panda-Kathleen Corporation; and, Panda Energy Corporation. 

Florida Power entered into a Standard Offer Contract with Panda- 

Kathleen, L.P., a Delaware Limited Partnership. Panda-Kathleen 

Corporation is the general partner to  Panda-Kathleen, L.P. and is a 

subsidiary of the parent corporation, Panda Energy Corporation. Except 

where my testimony pertains specifically t o  one of these entities, I will 

refer to these various Panda corporations as Panda. 

- 3 -  
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A. 

Are you aware that Panda-Kathleen, L.P., has failed to meet the 

construction start date of January 1, 1996? 

Yes. 

Are you also aware that on January 25, 1995, Florida Power filed a 

Petition for Declaratory Statement with the Florida Public Service 

Commission raising issues of the interpretation and application of Rule 

25-1 7.0832, F.A.C., with respect to  the Panda/Florida Power Standard 

Offer Contract? 

Yes. 

Based on your review of documents and your experience in the financing 

of the development of power facilities, was Panda-Kathleen, L.P.'s, 

failure to  meet the construction start date "solely the result of Florida 

Power's actions?" 

No. 

What reasons would you cite for Panda-Kathleen, L.P.'s failure to meet 

its construction start date? 

Panda was experiencing difficulty in a number of areas prior to January 

25, 1995. I've outlined below some of the issues that lenders were 

aware of and expressed concern about regarding the Panda-Kathleen 

project. The first issues involved the regulatory issues of whether 

Florida Power would be required to purchase power in excess of 74.9 

MW under the Panda/Florida Power Standard Offer Contract and the 

- 4 -  
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Q. 

A. 

Commission's Cogeneration Rules, and whether Florida Power would 

have t o  make capacity payments to  Panda after 20 years under that 

same contract. Second, Panda-Kathleen, L.P., had been unable to 

secure an independent thermal host and had decided to use a subsidiary 

of Panda Energy Corporation to build and operate the thermal host for 

its own facility. Finally, the economics of the project in general lead to 

Panda-Kathleen, L.P., "mothballing" the project for a period of time. 

These issues would lead any lender to more carefully analyze both the 

project and the financial condition of the developer. See Exhibit No. - 

(BAM-2); Exhibit No.- (BAM-3); Exhibit No. - (BAM-4); Exhibit 

No.- (BAM-5); Exhibit No.- (BAM-6); Exhibit No.- BAM-7); Exhibit 

No.- (BAM-8); Exhibit No.- (BAM-9); Exhibit No. - (BAM-IO); 

Exhibit No.- (BAM-11); Exhibit No. - (BAM-12); Exhibit No.- BAM- 

13); Exhibit No. - (BAM-14); Exhibit No. - (BAM-15); Exhibit No. - 

(BAM-16); Exhibit No.- (BAM-17); Exhibit No.- (BAM-18); and, 

Exhibit No.- (BAM- 1 9). 

Please describe the steps typically followed by the developer of a 

cogeneration project in obtaining financing for the project. 

Typically, a developer will have completely finalized the site acquisition, 

the power purchase agreement, the outstanding permit issues, the fuel 

supply, the equipment configuration, the Engineering Procurement & 

Construction contract, the insurance policies and the thermal contract, 

if any. 

- 5 -  
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0. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Based on the documents produced by Panda which you have reviewed, 

at  what stage in the process of obtaining financing was Panda-Kathleen, 

L.P., on January 24, 1995? 

Based upon my review of the documents provided, there still seemed to 

be a significant number of items to be resolved in all of the 

aforementioned areas which would be of concern to any institutional 

lender from a due diligence standpoint. One of the potential investors, 

Calpine, citing among other issues the overall economics of the project 

and the distilled water plant issues, informed the Kathleen Project Team 

on January 23, 1995, that it had dropped out of the project as Panda- 

Kathleen Corporation's equity partner. As to the other lenders, I did not 

see detailed term sheets or indications of interest from Morgan Stanley 

or ABB Capital which outlined their specific intent on providing financing 

to this project a t  this time under certain terms and conditions. See 

Exhibit No. - (BAM-3); Exhibit No. - (BAM-4); Exhibit No. - (BAM-6); 

- (BAM-21); Exhibit No. Exhibit No. - (BAM-20); Exhibit No. - 
(BAM-22); Exhibit No. - (BAM-23); Exhibit No. - (BAM-24); Exhibit 

No.- (BAM-25); and, Exhibit No. - (BAM-26). 

In terms of the time required to obtain financing, was this project on 

track to obtain the necessary financing in order to  meet the contractual 

milestones for commencing construction and commencing operation? 

No. In order to meet the commercial operations date of January 1, 

1 997, Panda-Kathleen, L.P. Is, management readily admits that the 

financing for the project needed to be in place before December 31, 

- 6 -  
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1994. See Exhibit No. (BAM-20); Exhibit No. (BAM-21); Exhibit 

No.- (BAM-22); Exhibit No. (BAM-23); Exhibit No. (BAM-24); 

Exhibit No. (BAM-25); and, Exhibit No. (BAM-37). 

- - 

- - 

- - 

To your knowledge, was Panda-Kathleen, L.P.’s, financing for the 

project in place by that date? 

No. Lenders were still conducting due diligence without having issued 

a firm commitment to the fund project. See Exhibit No. - (BAM-20); 

Exhibit No. - (BAM-21); Exhibit No. - (BAM-22); Exhibit No.- 

(BAM-23); Exhibit No.- (BAM-24); Exhibit No.- (BAM-25); Exhibit 

No. - (BAM-26); and, Exhibit No. - (BAM-27). 

Do you believe that Panda-Kathleen, L.P., would have been able to 

obtain financing after January 24, 1995, if Florida Power had not filed 

the Petition for Declaratory Statement on January 25, 1995? 

No. The regulatory issues concerning the size of the facility and the 

length of time that Florida Power would be required to make capacity 

payments had to be resolved before a lender would likely agree to 

finance the project. Even before Florida Power filed its Petition, lenders 

were aware of and concerned about those issues. The letter dated June 

23, 1994, from Ted Hollon of Panda to David Gammon of Florida Power 

outlines concern on behalf of prospective lenders regarding the issue of 

what price, if any, Florida Power was going to pay for power delivered 

by the project in excess of the 74.9 MW limit in the standard offer 

contract. See Exhibit No.- (BAM-5); Exhibit No. - (BAM-6); Exhibit 
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Q. 

A. 
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No.- (BAM-23); Exhibit No. 

and, Exhibit No. (BAM-27). 

(BAM-24); Exhibit No.- (BAM-25); - 
- 

What does the concern of lenders expressed in Ted Hollon’s letter 

indicate to  you? 

Since this issue had still not been resolved prior to the January 25, 

1995 filing by FPC, I would have to believe that this was still a major, 

unresolved due diligence item for any of the prospective financial 

institutions, since these excess power sales appear to represent 

approximately 35% of the project’s total revenue stream. See Exhibit 

No. - (BAM-27); and, Exhibit No. - (BAM-28). 

Would the concern expressed by these prospective lenders be sufficient 

to interfere with financing for the project? 

Definitely. Financial institutions would not close on non-recourse 

financing of this magnitude without having satisfactory answers to these 

questions. 

Would other lenders be likely to  have similar questions? 

Certainly. 

You stated previously in your testimony that the lack of a secured 

thermal host would have interfered with Panda-Kathleen, L.P.’s, meeting 

its milestone dates. Please elaborate. 

- 8 -  
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A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

I t  is clear from the documents that Panda-Kathleen, L.P., had a problem 

securing a thermal host for the project. Panda-Kathleen, L.P., first 

attempted to contract with Erly Juice. When those efforts were 

unsuccessful, Panda-Kathleen, L. P., apparently decided it would have a 

subsidiary of Panda Energy Corporation be the thermal host for the 

facility. Several problems remained, however. The thermal host facility 

had yet to be designed, and financing had to  be obtained, not only for 

the cogeneration facility, but also for the thermal host facility. Lenders 

would have to have the design in hand to review, and would also have 

to look even more carefully a t  Panda's financial structure before 

approving the lending for Panda's enhanced needs. See Exhibit No.- 

(BAM-8); Exhibit (BAM-6); Exhibit No. (BAM-7); Exhibit No. 

No. (BAM-13); Exhibit No. (BAM-14); Exhibit No. (BAM-16); 

and, Exhibit No. - (BAM-17). 

- - 
- - - 

You referred previously to the fact that Panda-Kathleen, L.P., 

"mothballed" the project for a period of time. What does "mothballing" 

the project mean to you? 

It means stopping all progress on the project until certain obstacles 

could be surmounted. 

Do you often see developers "mothball" their projects as Panda- 

Kathleen, L.P., did? 

Occasionally, but usually the project is "shelved" because of economic 

reasons and these projects typically never get completed in the original 

- 9 -  
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configuration. For instance, if fuel costs or availability became an issue, 

a developer may shelve a project until they could resolve the 

outstanding fuel issues. One resolution might take the form of changing 

fuels or co-firing with another less expensive or readily available fuel. 

This could also be done in the event that the project loses its thermal 

host. This seemed to  be the case with Panda-Kathleen, L.P., and its 

negotiations with Erly Juice. 

What does the fact that the project was mothballed for a period of time 

indicate to you in terms of Panda-Kathleen, L.P., meeting its milestone 

dates? 

While one cannot directly relate Panda-Kathleen, L.P.'s, mothballing of 

the project to its failure to meet the construction start date, the 

mothballing is an additional symptom of a troubled project. 

In addition to the issues already discussed, did you see any evidence 

that Panda-Kathleen, L.P., would not likely be able to  obtain financing 

for its project? 

Yes. 

Please describe those issues. 

The evidence that I saw that would indicate that Panda-Kathleen, L.P., 

would not be likely to  obtain financing for the Panda-Kathleen project is 

as follows: 

- 10-  
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0 Panda-Kathleen, L.P.'s, initial 1994 financing plan was to fund the 

project with rated, senior taxable debt via the public or private 

(1 44a) markets with a term of 25 + years through the firm of Smith 

Barney. This term, especially for non-investment grade, taxable 

debt, seems quite long. (The 144a debt market which is comprised 

primarily of institutional debt investors has been very active in the 

private placement of rated, corporate debt issues. It wasn't until 

early 1993 that independent power projects began to test the 

viability of this market for project financing. Even then, many 

investors did not think that independent power projects belonged 

in the 144a marketplace because of the complexity of issues 

involved with these types of project financing.) Also, by the latter 

part of 1994, all discussion of Smith Barney and this financing had 

disappeared which would lead anyone to believe that there was no 

market for this type of issue with the interest rate and amortization 

schedule required by the Panda-Kathleen project. See Exhibit 

No.- (BAM-29); and, Exhibit No. - (BAM-30). 

0 I reviewed several draft Indication of Interest letters from Bank of 

Tokyo (BOT) over a period of several months beginning in October 

1994 and continuing into 1995. The actual scope of the BOT 

financing structure changed from (i) an approximate 18 month 

construction loan with a 13-15 year permanent loan; into, (ii) a 

construction loan with a 2 year bridge loan. These documents 

comprise a series of draft terms sheets that continue discussions 

into early 1995 with no firm commitment letter from BOT. See 

- 11  - 
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Exhibit No. - (BAM-23); Exhibit No. - (BAM-24) and Exhibit 

NO.- (BAM-25). 

In the latter half of 1994, after Smith Barney was unable to market 

a long-term debt issue with a 25 + year term for the project, Merrill 

Lynch was hired to arrange a Medium Term Note (MTN) issue with 

a term of 25-30 years. This seems a bit puzzling since a MTN issue 

would typically have a term of only 3-7 years and require the issuer 

to have an investment grade rating. See Exhibit No.- (BAM-30); 

and, Exhibit No. - (BAM-31). 

In August of 1994, Panda Energy Corporation took it upon itself, 

without the assistance of any of its many financial advisors, to 

issue an Investment Memorandum in order to place $1 5 million in 

limited partnership interests in the Panda-Kathleen project. This 

effort seems to have come up empty since there is no further 

discussion on the topic except for reference to Calpine as a 

potential equity investor. & Exhibit No. - (BAM-32); and, 

Exhibit No. - (BAM-33). 

In a letter dated January 23, 1995, Calpine dropped out as a 

0 

0 

potential equity investor citing, among other things, numerous 

concerns such as the capital cost of the project, the operating costs 

of the project, issues revolving around the distilled water plant, and 

the overall inadequate economics of the project. & Exhibit No.- 

(BAM-26). 

Any of these factors alone could cause any financial institution to pass 

on this transaction until such issues were resolved. 

- 1 2 -  
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A. 

0. 

A. 

0. 

A. 

0. 

A. 

Are you familiar with the original configuration for the facility proposed 

by Panda-Kathleen, L.P., at the time Panda-Kathleen, L.P., submitted its 

standard offer? 

Yes. The various documents indicated that Panda-Kathleen, L.P., 

considered several different equipment configurations in order to  

generate a net capacity delivered of not more than 75MW. 

Have you analyzed those original configurations from a financial 

perspective? 

Yes. I reviewed a truncated spreadsheet analysis dated December 23, 

1993 for the 75MW Panda-Kathleen project. See Exhibit No.- (BAM- 

19). 

Was the project as originally configured a viable project? 

No. The project proforma analysis had significant negative cashflows 

for the first four years (1 997-2000) and coincidentally had debt service 

coverage ratios of less than 1 .Ox during each of those four years. This 

analysis showed that the project would not be able to make all of its 

scheduled debt payments during each of those four years. See Exhibit 

NO. - (BAM-19). 

Have you analyzed the internal financial structure of Panda Energy 

Corporation? 

Yes. 

- 13- 
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0. Did you find any problems with the internal financial condition of Panda 

Energy Corporation which would make it unlikely that Panda-Kathleen, 

L.P., would be able to obtain the necessary financing for the project? 

A. Yes. Panda Energy Corporation continually lost money over the period 

1991 -1 994 recording a significant cumulative net income loss, and it 

posted a sizeable negative net worth position by December 31, 1994. 

This also indicates that Panda Energy Corporation has accumulated 

substantial losses during its operating years prior to 1991. So, the fact 

that Panda Energy Corporation had continually lost money could possibly 

limit the arena for potential project equity partners since Panda Energy 

Corporation would probably continue to be in dire need of operating 

capital at the corporate level. See Exhibit No. - (BAM-34); Exhibit 

No. - (BAM-35); and, Exhibit No. - (BAM-36). 

Q. In your opinion, was the Panda-Kathleen project a viable candidate for 

financing on January 24, 1995? 

A. No. The project had gone through so many changes since the 

"mothballing", including several different financial advisors, that it 

appears that the Panda-Kathleen management team was grasping at 

straws during the last quarter of 1994 in order to come up with some 

structure that was bankable. This concludes with Merrill Lynch 

proposing a medium term note financing on January 19, 1995, with a 

30 year term and interest only for 7 years, a highly unorthodox proposal 

which indicated the desperate straits of Panda-Kathleen, L.P. in 

obtaining financing. See Exhibit No. - (BAM-31). 

- 14-  
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A. 

Does this conclude your testimony? 

Yes. 
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.I. METRIC 
C O N S T R U C T O R S  

June 16, 1994 

Mr. Ted HoUon 

4100 Spring Valley 
suite 1001 
Dallas, TX 75244 

Panda Energy C" 

l h r  Mr. Hollm: 

We have u n d "  the first phas of our review of the PrOfbnna for the Kathleen Project. We 
find CCTtain problem with the i n f o r "  presented as it relaw to our knowledge of the 
market. Sevenl of the assumptions that are being made require supporting, and these arc given 
below, It is the lack of Capacity paymat on 35 megawatts that cauoes us the most concern on 
the financiability of the project; theref-, your indications of any changes in that afca an most 
important to US. 

. 

P h s c  provide information on the following: 



I 
I 
I 
I 
1 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

FPSC Docket No. 950110-EI 
FPC Witness: MORRISON 

Sheet 3 of 4 
Exhibit No. 3 @AM-2) 

Mr. Ted HoUm 

Page 2 
June 16, 1994 - -  

14. Basis for "Sda Tax on Equipmat." 3 

Any othex data or documontntiOn that wil l  support thc underlying basis n a e s q  to convince 
the lending mar- to support this deal would be ppprrclatad as we conclude our due diligence 
effort, Please let m know when we might d e  your rcspons on these items. .- 
very truly pun, 

cc: S, NileS-R&V 
B. Mallo~y - M ~ c  
Steve Burt - Jones Capital Corp. bcc: 

SPECIALLY 
RESTRICTED 
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Mr. Ted Hollon 
June 16, 1994 

-. Page 2 

9. Operations and Maintenance AgreemmrlEstimate. 

12, Electricity fcvcnucs involve certaiil mumptions on m b h t  OOnditiOns for *on peak" and 
"off peak" how, Also the time p u b d s  for each rate should be explained along with the 
high capacity factors for "Bartow Peaker,' "On Peak' and "Off Peak" generation, 

13. 

14. 

Explain "Other Development Costs' and "Operafhg Expaw$ During Construction." 

Basis for 'Sales Tax on Equipmeat." 

~ n y  other data or documentation that wil l  support the underlyine basis ncccSSary to convince 
the lending markets to suppat this deal would be qpdated BS we cancludc our due diIigence 
effort. Please let me how when we might receive your respons~ on these items, 

very tnlly yours, 
, 

METRIC CONSTRUCTORS, INC. 
/c7 

James MI Walker 

JMW/els 

cc : S. Nilw - B&V 
B. Mallgr - M ~ c  

bcc: Jim Bowden 

SPECIALLY 
RESTRICTED 
PK 049708  



~ 

I 
I 
I 
I 
5 
I 
E 
I 
I 
e 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

FPSC DOCKET NO. 950110-E1 
EXHIBIT NO. (BAM-3) 

CONSISTING OF TWO PAGES 

PANDA HAS ASSERTED A CLAIM OF 
CONFIDENTIALITY FOR EACH 

PAGE OF THIS EXHIBIT 



~ 

I 
I 
I 
1 
I 
I 
I 
1 
c 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
t 
1 
I 
I 

P A G E ,  133 1 

FPSC Docket No. 950110-EI ~~ - 

FPC Witness: MORRISON 
Exhibit No. 9 @AM- 3) 
Sheet 1 of 2 

.- 

- June 15,1994 

Mr. Ted Holton 

41 00 Spring Valley Rd,, Suite 1001 
Dallas, TX 75244 

Vice President-Constnrction & Project 

REF: Kathleen - Development Loan 

Dear Mr. Hollon, r' 
SPECIALLY 
RESTRICTED 
PK 050418 

Attached Is the first cut at our  comments. 

Could you send me additional documentation on the questions raised Me? 

Our review Is continuing, and I expect a full list of comments in a few days. 

\ . 

Very tnrly yours, \ i 

w v b u  TO: R ~ C P C ~  k 1 ~ ~ 1 4 '  cLdh7# 
Cort Van Rensselaer 
Director, Business Development 

CVR: em b 
cvrl78 

Attachment 
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A contract exists betweg PANDA and Florida Power Carp. 
It is a standard offer for QFs under 75MW 
Contract looks normal 
Term is 30 years 

Commercial operation is to be 4/1/95 (needs written confirmation of extension) 
Apparently there was an extension for a year or 

- Sections 10.2 & 10.3 refer to crediWdrarges on taxes and operational dispatch 

D ~ V  
Qnm~ 

JEaL 

- - Construction was to start 4/1/94 '(nwds written Confirmation of extension) "? (in retum for a change 
on the capacity payment rate) 

These seem to be an unknown nsk 
It needs to be a QF or it can be canceled v 
Unclear as to what payment schedule will be made and what actual 

dollan are today. 

i 

I GENERAL 

JEGC4L 

K l c ~ ( b r J  

[DlmqK$- At 75MW the project needed supplemental fire. Was ;his for the BC? 

- The proposed QF is distilled water which may be challengeable 

What is the status of the other 34MW1 

The electric revenues subsidize the water - The FPC PPA is only for 7 5 W ,  the project is designed around 100 MW 

Determine FPC attitude to the pmject in geneml 

SPEC I ALLY 
RESTRICTED 
PK 050419 

There are a lot of unknowns wncaming the fuel supply 
Where is gas coming from? 
Who set the price? 
What are the terms? 
What is the schedule? 
Pro forma shows $1.78 delivered in 19977 

We need more evidence of probable success. 
One would assume gas supply would be well advanced since that is PANDA'S strong suit 

E 
bLE/RH Need to check out the interconnect costs ($3-1/2 M pipeline. $1/2 M electric) & f t  4 

PRO FORMA 

Plant capacity is 
Losing cash In the 

l 
I IRRs are unusual. 

hGT2 - O&M IS 1 2M - IS 

I 
I 

It's low if really has all 

cvmffi14 
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June 20, 1994 

Mr, T. C. Hollon 
VP-Construction & Projcct Management 
Panda Energy Corporation 
4100 Spring Valley, Suite 1001 
Dallas, TX 75244 

- -  
FPSC Docket No. 950110-EI 
FPC Witness: MORRISON 
Exhibit No. (BAM-4) 
Sheet 1 of 3 

Dear Mr. HoUon, 

Thank you for your letter of June 16th which Cort Van Rensellaer relayed to ABB 
Er,ergy Ventures, It shortened the following information request considerably. 

Where does the PPA require FPC to accept capacity and energy greater than 
75MW? C'ul you provide correspondence betwccn Panda and W C  cvidencing 
FPC's intention to take his addMmol energy and on what terms? 

>The EPC cost of $GCM seems low. We typically see prices of 97OO/kW which 
,equate to approximately $78,SM in this project. May we oblain the basis for your 
capital costs estimates! Do you have term sheels, quotes or offers from 
contractors for a lump sum contract price? If so, inay we see tilesc offers? Do 
the estimated capital costs incluic the cost to build the distilled water plant? 

The provision for O&M appears light, Your letter dated June 16th ex?lains this 
by mentioning a "Variable O&M" line item? I see the "Fixed OBEW line item in 
the expense portion on ScheduIe A of Uia pro forma but f do not see the "Variable 
O&M" line item. I see "Variable O&M" paymenis, but I do not see "Varfable 
O&M' expense? Where do I find "Variable O&W expenses? In any event, please 
provide the basis for your 0dr.M cost evtimaies including sraffing, rrLiintcnance 
parts and labor, and initial spare parts. 

PIease provide copies of conkact.s, terms sheets, iettcrs of intent, memorandums 
OF understanding, precedent agreenents and othcr evidence of f i r 3  gas supply 
ar,d transportation arraiigemerks, YOW June 16th letter indicates that f i n d  
agreements are in the offing. What is the cutoff date for reservbg, applying for 
or conaacting for pipeiine capacity? Is this project contingent on ti.e compietlcs 
of the Sunshine Pipeline? Hove you pcrfomed optimization studies re: the 
interaction antong M D Q  oulpul, Lmrsportation ccsts? 

SPECIALLY 
PK 0 5 9 5 2 4  
RESTRICTED A B 8  Energy Ventures Inc. . .  -- . .e.- 
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. 

Have you applicd for ccrlification ts a QF? If so, may we see a copy? Can you 
die :he regulation, order or written decision by which FEKC approved wstcr 
distilling plants 8s Icgiffmate steam hasu as mentioncd in your June 16 t5  letter? 

Construction sccms to occur at  a vcry rapid pace, Le., one (i) yearl Your June 
161h letter explains that 13 months will elapse from Notice to Proceed Lo the 
completion date. Why then make a one assumption? 1s pro f(inr/a IDC predicat'cd 
on the basis of 12 months! Must one now allow for additional IDC? What draw 
down schcdulc has been assumed? What interest rate is assumcd for the 
construction period? 

Please provide your permilting plans for gas pipeline, plant construction and 
operation and the transmission tine. That is, identify required permits, thc issuing 
governmental a d w i t y ,  em!ssioits limits (including noise) and estfmated time to 
acquire gemits. Also, please exploln which configurations and types oi tQr5ines 
as well as the associated emission leveis (including noise) were assumed in pcrmit 
applications, Further, pkasc advise of current sta tu  of permiis not yet in hand, 
whether the vicinity is in a non-attainment area and with respecc to what 
pollutants, whether wetlands are implicated, and the extent of local opposition. 
What technological standards will be imposed! Please provide a copy of a!l 
permits in hand. 

May we leam Panda's methodology for projecting avoided C C S ~ S  for 1997 and 
bcyond? Is this the result of an internal sludy or did Panda use 2.1 oulside 
consui tant? Regardless, may we obcain copics of supporling workpaperst 

Can you expldn or offer a citation far the nssumcd depreciation methcci? We are 
having difficully reconciling to schedu1c.r and metho& we typically employ. 

Why docs the p r o f m m  not recogniz aarly years NioL's? T h a t  is, why Co you nct 
assume that the partners wiil enjoy a rcduction in taxable income orb thcir 
individual tax rcturns? 

Has Panda prescntcd the projcct to any lendcrs? Have they commcnEed duc 
diligence reyicwsf What cammiinents has Panda received to date from potcntial 
lending institutions? If so, what was the reaction? Has Panda offered 3r received 
any term sheets fur ncgotiation? What equity comziinents has Panda received 
to date from invwtar-parhers? 
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Mr. T. C. FIollon 
June 20,1994 
Page 3 of 3 

12. May we see a stalement as to the latest balance (principal and interest) of the 
escrow dcposi t? 

Please furidsh copies oE the progress reports mcntioned in Section 3.5 of the PPA. 

What is the balance in the Capacity account over time? Maximum, minimum and 
average? Ref; Section 8.6.3 of the PPA. 

13, 

d 14. 
4@ 
LA@ 

13, What plans do you have to protect against rising intenst rates? The assumed rate 
in the p y o  fomin S C C ~ S  LO be on the bubbIc. 

vv. 
Thank you in advance for your responses. 

Best regards, 

Robcrt Henry U 
AjsiStan t General Counscl 

SPECIALLY 
RESTRICTED 
PK 0 5 9 5 2 6  
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PAIYDA-KATHLEEN L.P. 
A Panda Company 

June 23, 1994-- 

Mr. David Gammon, P.E. 
Senior Cogeneration Engineer 
Florida Power Corporation 
3201 34th Street South 
St. Petersburg, FL 33711 

Dear David: 

As we discussed in our meding on June 22, 1994, Panda-Kathleen, L.P. is permitting 
two equipment configurations- a GE 7EA and an ABBllN for its Lakeland project. 
These machines are the most economical units that allow Panda-Kathleen, L.P. to ' 
supply the committed capacity of 74.9 MW at all times. The net output of the selected 
turbine will be 100-1 15 MW under certain conditions. 

A prospective lender has raised the question as to the price that Panda-Kathleen, L.P. 
would be paid for power in excess of 74.9 MW. The contract provides for payment of 
the as-available energy prices at times when the avoided unit would not have otherwise 
run. When the avoided unit would have mn, two options exist. FPC would pay either - 
(1) the as-available energy rate or (2) the avoided unit rate. FPC agrees that Panda- 
Kathleen L.P. shall be paid the 'avoided unit rate" under the contract for all energy 
above 74.9MW during times when the 'avoided unit" would have been dispatched, 
since Panda-Kathleen, L.P. did not elect the 'Performance Adjustment" specified in 
Section 9.1.3 of the contract 

In order to clarify this question and maintain our development schedule, please signify 
your concurrence on this interpretation in the space provided below on or before July 8, 
1994. 

Yours truly, 

Ted Hollon 
Vice President 
Project Management and Construction 

Accepted and Agreed to as of , 1994 

FLORIDA POWER CORPORATION 

By: 

SPECIALLY 
RESTRICTED 
F'K 082787 

4 100 Spring Valley, Suite IO0 1 . Dallas, Texas 75244 * 2 14/980-7 159 Fax 980-68 I 5  
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MEMORANDUM 

I DATE: January 16, 1995 

TO: DISTRIBUTION 

FROM: Kyle Woodruff 

SUBJECT: 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I i n  

II Y' ,  

Panda Response to Various Letters & Memos , 
l i  

T7 ~ 1 , J : -  c p  - 5 .  
hzrCe<r ,  u '- ~ L . 

h 6, 

White & Case and supersedes our previous memorandum dated January 11, 1995. 

To prepare for our call on Tuesday, January 17, 1995 at 9:OO a.m. (Dallas time), we wanted to 
send you this letter responding to a series of memos and letters that we received-from Brown & 
Wood and White & Case. The below responses are preliminary and are not intended to be 

-" representations or warranties of Pan& or opinions of its counsel. This letter has not been fully 
reviewed by our various counsel and remains subject to revision to reflect their comments. 

L .  - L'bL". -G i L t "  
-- h s  letter responds to a senes of memos and letters we have received from Brown & Wood and 

r 

1 ,  

I 

I b ' J  
/ /  

c c . '  

. 6. - Letter from White & Case to Cornelius J. Golden of Chadboume & Parke, dated December 
28, 1994. (PKOOl) 

/ l.Q 

c 
./- I 9 

Our first area of inquiry concetas the amendment of the Contract as set forth in the 
letter agreement of April 19,1993 between FPC and the Company (the "Amendment"), 
whereby the in-service date was postponed and the early payment procedures waived. 
This letter is before the FPSC in the "Mega-Docket" in which FPC is requesting 
approval. Could the outcome of this proceeding affect the validity of the contract or 
the Amendment, or could it only affect the ability of FPC to pass through to its 
customers the rates paid to the Company under the Contract? 

1 . 1 '  

1 , I /  

I 
l.A The April 29,1993 letter from FPC to Panda, verifies Panda's election to change 

from a 1995 on-line date to a 1997 on-line date. This was done at  FPC's behest 
and simply made the switch from Rate Schedule 3, Early Payment Option, 
columns 5,6 and 7, pages 2 of 5 to Rate Schedule 3, to Normal Payment Option, 
columns 1,2,3 and 4, page 1 of 5. The Net Present Value of both options is the 
same and the payments pre-calculated in accordance with the formulas set forth 
in FPSC Rules 25-17.0832(5). The impact to the ratepayer is identical; will in no 
way affect the validity of the Contract; and in no way can be construed as a 

I 

1 

SPECIALLY 
RESTRICTED 
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reason to convert the Standard Offer in to a Negotiated Contract. The Avoided 
Unit Reference Plant cited in Appendix C, Schedule 2, page 1 of 1, states the 
approved on-line date for the avoided Bartow CT units is 1997. There are no 
other changes, modifications or revisions, to our knowledge, which have not been 
brought to the PSC's attention. 

2.4 FPC has filed a petition (the "Curtailment Docket") requesting PSC approval of FPC's 
plan to curtail its purchase of electricity from certain Qualifying Facilities ("QFs") 
during periods in which FPC is experiencing minimum load conditions. It is our 
understanding that FPC's curtailment plan would impose curtailment obligations on 
three categories of Qfs. Our question in this regard also arises from the Company's 
plan to shut down the Project during Off-peak hours when the as-available energy rate 
payable under the Contract would be less than the marginal fuel and other operating 
costs to run the Project during such hours. If the Curtailment docket is approved by 
the PSC, would the minimum-load periods when FPC would be entitled to curtail the 
Project match the off-peak periods when the Company is already planning not to 
operate the Project? 

2.A The Plan will have no effect on the Project's operation or projected revenues. 
FPC has the right under FPSC Rule No. 25-17.086 of the Standard Offer . 
Contract to stop our operations under the conditions set forth in the Curtailment 
Plan (which we believe merely implement the terms of this Rule). Secondly, 
during the times when the low load conditions occur and the curtailments enacted 
we generally expect that the Facility will already have been shut down. 

According to the Standard Offer Contract, the Project is paid a Peaker Capacity 
Payment based on a Open Cycle Combustion Turbine burning No. 2 distillate fuel 
oil, during on-peak hours. - 

During peak hours when that unit would have been called on to run, the Project 
will receive an energy payment based on the price of No. 2 fuel oil times an open 
cycle heat rate of 11,610 BTU/KWH (the Project's energy cost is based on Natural 
Gas Pricing ti" a combined cycle heat rate of 8100 BTU/KWH) for 74.9 M W .  
For all other energy and at all other times, as a QF under the Standard Offer, 
the Project paid on an hour-by-hour basis, the "As Available" energy price in 
accordance with FPSC Rule No. 25-17.0825, which is an Appendix to the 
Standard Offer Contract. 

According to the Curtailment Plan, Group C (QF's selling as-available energy on 
a non-firm basis) is reduced; and then Group B (QF's including the Project, 
selling firm energy and capacity) is curtailed by 50%. Before either such 
curtailment, FPC will: FPSC Docket No. 950110-EX 

FPC Witness: MORRISON 

Sheet 2 of 26 
Exhibit No. , (BAM-6) 
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Reduce baseload units (mostly coal) to normal minimum operating 
levels; and 

Cycle off any remaining oil and gas-fired units. 

Revenue from the sale of "As Available Energy" completely tracks the 
incremental cost of peaking (gas) and oil-fired contribution to FPC's energy price 
mix. The Project revenues do not track or compete with incremented coal or 
nuclear. When the price paid for "As Available Energy" is reduced to the coal 
threshold, the Project's operation would be uneconomical and thus shut down. 
Using FPC's As-Available Forecast, as projected beginning in 1997, the Project's 
proforma calls for some 2100 hours of shut down due to the above pricing 

\ + conditions. I -w' 

\ r ' (  - From October 1993 to May of 1994, FPC has, to our knowledge, cited a possible 
' ' 7 4  \ eight (8) occasions when the Facility could have been evoked (at a 2-3% per year 

c c - load growth projection, this would be substantially reduced by 1997). The plan 
-3 was enacted once during a sboulder month of 1994 for a 2 hour time period. 

From this it follows that the worst-case curtailments of 16-20 hours per year 
during the time period 1993-1994, will easily be swallowed up by the 2100 hours 
of proforma projected down time after 1997. 

3 .Q The third proceeding before the PSC (the "Energy Pricing Docket") deais in general 
with the calculation of energy payments based on a hypothetical proxy plant under 
several, of FPC's negotiated power purchase contracts. However, we understand that 
the Energy Pricing Docket probably will not affect the Project, since (a) the proxy 
plant under the contract is different from the hypothetical proxy plant that is the 
subject of the Energy Pricing Docket and (b) we understand that, as a practical matter, 
the projected energy payments for the Project will be based on the as-available rates 
rather than on the proxy plant-based measure of payments. 

3.A As stated in question No. 2, the Project's revenues under the Standard Offer 
Contract are based on the Avoided Unit specifxaliy stated as the 1997 Bartow 
Open Cycle Perking Units burning No. 2 distillate he1  oiL The prosy units 
contemplated under the Energy Pricing Dockets are understood to be gas fired 
combined cycle combustion turbine, base loaded units slated for 1998-2002 time 
frame. 

4.4 The fourth proceeding before the PSC that could have an effect on the Project is a 
proceeding whereby the PSC is considering revisions to its cogeneration rules (the 
"Cogeneration Rulemaking Docket"). It is unclear what direction the PSC will take 

3 SPECIALLY 
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in the Cogeneration Rulemaking Docket, however the final result of this proceeding 
could have an impact on the Project. Do you have any information regarding whether 
the Cogeneration Rulemaking Docket will affect the Project? 

4.A Panda's position would clearly be that the Contract is made on the basis of the 
FPSC rules in affect at the time of the Public Offering and the selection process 
in November of 1991. Any attempt by the Utility or the Commission to change 
those rules would be unconstitutional. Our understanding is that the Rule Making 
Docket will institute changes for future Standard Offer and Negotiated Contracts 
and mostly addresses the dispatchability of those future contracts rather than the 
must run conditions that have existed before. 

5.Q This question arises from the fact that the Standard Offer contract is for the Company 
to provide, and receive capacity payments for, 75 MW, but the Company anticipates 

. selling, and receiving energy payments for, up to 1 15 MW. Is .there any basis under 
PSC or FERC regulations for another entity (such as a QF which is party to a FPC 
negotiated contract and which is being curtailed under the plan set forth in the 
Curtailment Docket) or the PSC itself to challenge the company's ability either to sell 
more than 75 MW under the Standard Offer Contract or to avail itself of the Standard . 
Offer Contract in the first instance? 

5.A First of all, the approval and permitting processes were cam.ed out in forums that 
invited intervention and none occurred. Those opportunities are past. Secondly, 
the Contract, under FPSC Rule No. tS17.0825 gives the Project the right to sell 
this excess energy on an hour by hour at  "As Available" Rates. This is a good 
deal for the rate payen because they get the advantage of this low cost energy 
without having to pay for the associated Capital Capacity Charge. Thirdly, this 
concept has been signed off'on by the Commission Staff in consultation with 
Florida Power Corp. 

6.4  Are you (or the Company's Florida counsel) aware of any other matter on the PSC 
docket, or likely to be placed on the PSC docket in the future, which could have an 
adverse effect on the Project? 

6.A The aforementioned items constitutes all of the FPSC docket consideration which 
potentially impact the Project. 
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Brown & Wood Memo dated December 27, 1994 From Robert L. Wale And Robert J. 
Donatucci regarding Status of Florida Regulatory Issues (PK002) 

1 .Q Which, if any, of the topics before the PSC could adversely affect the Project's 
viability or economics following completion, if adversely determined from the 
Project's perspective? 

l.A We do not foresee that any of the topics before the Florida Public Service 
Commission (FPSC) will in any way adversely affect the Project. Please see the 
answers given in response to the White and Case letter dated December 28, 1994 
regarding the four Docket issues being questioned. 

2.4 What is the best method (from an enforceability standpoint) for incorporating the 
various comments and issues now reflected in correspondence among Panda, FPC and 
the PSC (dated January 26, 1993, March 23, 1993, April 29, 1993, August 23, 1994 
and August 24, 1994) into the PPA itself? 

2.A We do not see any benefit to be derived from trying to incorporate the letters 
mentioned in this question formally into the Standard Offer Contract. In fact, 
we do not know if that would be possible due to the autonomy of the Contract . 
and the FPCS rules which are the basis for the Contract. The Standard Offer 
stand alone. We have made certain elections within the framework of that 
Contract. Please see answer to the White and Case letter dated December 28, 
1994; first question dealing with the concern about the "Mega Docket" and how 
the FPSC would view the on-line date election. At this point any additional' 
formal activity before the commission on this pmapproved Contract is not 
believed to be necessary nor desirable. 

3.4 Given that the Project's pricing is tied to the inefficient Bartow plant, is there any risk 
to Project pricing if the Bartow plant is repowered to become more efficient? 

3.A The avoided unit which serves as the proxy plant and basis for payment under 
this Contract do& not exist, nor will it ever exist. The basis for the.payment 
streams set forth in the Contract, under Appendix C, Schedule 2, page 1 of 1, are 
locked in with their escalation factors and will not change. 
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Memorandum from RL. Vitale and RJ. Donatucci of Brown & Wood, dated December 20, 
1994 regarding comments to the EPC Agreement. (PK003) 

The comments in this letter must each be addressed with the Contractor. In general, Panda is 
amenable to considering the changes requested, but would appreciate receiving specific language 
suggestions to provide to the Contractor. 

Memorandum from Gerald Drumm of White & Case dated December 16,1994 referencing 
the Construction Contract between Panda-Kathleen, L.P. and Walsh- 
Gilbert/Commonwealth. (PK004) 

1 -4 

1 .A 

2.4 

2.A 

3.4 

3.A 

4.4 

4.A 

The design capacity of the power plant (stated to be 1 10 M W  net) needs to be 
clarified. 

The design capacity of the power plant is 110 MW net. This is the nominal 
output of the power plant at the design conditions of 95 degrees F and 45% 
relative humidity and 19,OOO Ibs/hr of steam to the thermal host. The nominal 
output of this power plant at  72 degrees F and 6Ooh relative humidity and 20,000 
I b h r  of steam to the thermal host is 115 MW net. 115 MW is the output of the 
power plant at the average ambient yearly temperature. 

Aside from an occasional reference in the Construction Contract and the Scope of 
Work Exhibit, the distilled water plant design and construction does not appear to be 
addressed. 

The distilled water plant design and construction appears in Section 9 of the 
Scope of Work The distilled water plant serves as the Zero Discharge Facility 
as well. They are one and the same. The proper term should be the Zero 
DischargelDistilled Water Plant. 

The insurance provisions seem to negate Walsh-Gilbert’s assumption of the risk of loss 
prior to Substantial Completion. 

Walsh-Gilbert retains the risk of loss until the Substantial Completion Date. 
However, that risk is limited only to the extent Builders’ Risk Insurance covers 
a specific loss. 

The basis for change orders initiated by Walsh-Gilbert needs clarification. 

Further delineation of this question is needed. 
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5.Q 

5.A 

* 6.4 

6.A 

7.4 

7.A 

8.4 

8.A 

9-Q 

9.A 

10.Q 

10.A 

Walsh-Gilbert’s rights to access retention should be clarified. 

A 10% retainage is taken from all payments to the Contractor except the 
Engineering Design Fee and Contractor’s Fee. It was negotiated that this profit 
portion of the payments would be unaffected by the retention since the original 
retention was 5% instead of 10%. 

The scope and duration of Performance Testing may be inadequate. 

The scope and duration of Performance Testing is adequate to meet the 
requirements of the PPA and to determine that the Contract guaranties have been 
met. Specific areas of concem should be delineated. 

The payment of performance bonuses and the mechanics of the use of shared savings 
for warranty claims needs clarification. 

Further delineation of this question is needed. 

There is a need to understand that the GMP mechanism assures a lumpsum. 
arrangement for the entirety of the Work. 

The Guaranteed Maximum Price (GMP) is a turnkey not to exceed price. The 
Total Cost of the Work plus Construction and Engineering fee can not exceed this 
amount except as adjusted by Change Order. 

The limitation on certain of Walsh-Gilbert’s liabilities should be clarified. 

Further delineation of this’question is needed. However, the 30% and 50% 
limitations were heaviiy negotiated and we do not expect to be able to make any 
substantive changes. 

The payment schedule may need to address monthly maximum payments in order to 
adequately provide for capitalized interest during construction. 

No maximum payment is provided. However request for payment is based on 
actual work performed, equipment delivered to the Facility Site the previous 
month, progresa payments to substantial vendors, and prorated Engineering, 
Design and Contractor’s fees. The 
delivery of power island equipment 
of 1995. 

largest impact to payment schedule will be 
occurring in September through November 
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Memo from Robert Wale and Robert Donatucci of Brown & Wood to Distribution, dated 
December 29, 1994. (PK006) 

Re: 

Q. 1 

A. 1 

Q.2 

A.2 

4.3 

A.3 

Land Purchase Agreement 

Closing Date. Section 2.0 1 indicates a January 1, 1995 closing date, with options 
to extend. Has the extension option been exercised, or will the purchase be completed 
on or before January 1, 1995? 

The purchase of the Ruthven property was completed December 30, 1994. 

Title & ADDrOVdS. Please provide us, H&K and W&C with copies of the 
relevant title commitment mentioned in Section 2.04. Please also provide the same 
parties with copies of (i) the Approvals (and applications therefore) mentioned in 
Section 2.03 (to the extent such applications and Approvals have not otherwise been 
provided for review) and (ii) the proposed Special Warranty Deed mentioned in 
Section 2.04 (B). 

(i) Approvals can be obtained from Dennis Sughrue with Chadboume & Parke. 
(ii) A copy of the Special Warranty Deed is attached. 

Other Acauisitions. Please confirm that, with the exception of the real property 
acquisitions contemplated by the interconnection arrangements and the gas pipeline, 
there are no other real property interests required for the Project or the steam host. 

TheFe are no other real property acquisitions. The real property required for the 
electrical interconnection will be acquired by the City of Lakeland. 

Memorandum from Robert Wale and Robert Donatucci of Brown & Wood dated 
December 29, 1994. (PK007) 

QF Application & Order: 

1. No comment required. 

2 .4  The application refers to Panda as the “operator” of the Project. To the extent that 
these facts change (ie., another thermal host is used of Calpine acts as operator of the 
facility) , we would expect the Project to be re-certified, reflecting the correct facts. 

2.A Panda is not seeking, and has no plans to provide thermal energy to an 
alternative thermal host. Panda Kathleen will lease the thermal host facilities to 
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Lakeland Water and provide contract O&M services for the host Facility. Panda 
Kathleen will operate both the cogeneration Facility and the thermal host Facility 
and will subcontract certain O&M responsibilities to Calpine. Therefore, Panda 
believes there will be no necessity for QF recertification. 

3 .Q It appears that in C&P’s request for expedited processing of the QF application, a 
statement to the effect that “the ownership of the two Projects (Le., Panda and 
Brandywine) is identical, as is the steam use . . .”, is not quite accurate. 

3.A The Panda-Kathleen QF Application and Panda Brandywine QF Order clearly 
define the owners of the two facilities as limited partnerships which are each 
wholly owned subsidiaries of Panda Energy Corporation. The applicants, in each 
case, are clearly identified as being different entities. The second part of the 
concern, the identical use of steam, is absolutely correct. 

Transmission Construction Agreement: 

1 .Q 

1 .A 

2. 

3.4 

3.A 

4.4 

Section 3.1 (1) contemplates a Notice to Proceed for construction work to be given by 
January 1,1995, with a corresponding completion deadline of December 1,1995. Will . 

the NTP be given by this date? If the date is later than January 1, 1995, and 
construction completion occurs after December 1, 1995, will this have an adverse 
consequence on other c o d o n  or operation deadlines for *e Project? 

The NTP was given to the City of Lakeland on January 4, 1995. Thus, in 
accordance with the construction contract the completion date is now December 
4, 1995. This will not have any adverse consequences on other construction or 
operation deadlines since the EPC contract specifies that the electrical 
interconnect does not need to be complete until January 1, 1996. See attached 
letter dated January 4,1995. 

No comment required. 

Section 3.5 indicates that Lakeland will own the facilities notwithstanding Panda’s 
payment for their construction. It is recommended that provisions should be added to 
the Interconnection Agreement which addresses requirements for insuring, 
maintaining, repairing, and upgrading or modifying the facilities being constructed. 

Refer to the attached City of Lakeland facsimile dated january 12, 1995 (COL 
Far), Item 3 under Transmission Construction Agreement (TCA). 

The force majeure provisions in this Agreement do not match precisely with the force 
majeure concepts as embodied in the FPC PPA. The force majeure concept should be 
tied to the force majeure standard contained in the FPC PPA. 
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4.A 

5 .  

6 .  

7.4 

7.A 

8.A 

9.Q 

9.A 

Under review by COL 

No comment required. 

No comment required. 

We noted the mutual representations set forth in Article 9 of the Agreement and would 
recommend inclusion of corresponding representations in the unfinished 
Interconnection Agreement. 

This matter is being pursued with the City and it is not anticipated that it will be 
a problem to make this addition to the Interconnect Agreement. Refer to COL 
Fax, Item 7, TCA. 

Exhibit 4 to the Agreement summarizes certain Standby Services to be provided to the 
Project. It is not clear to us where these services are contracted for, nor the meaning 
of the language which states that “This offer is in effect until January 31, 1995.” We 
would appreciate some guidance from Panda on this topic. 

Under normal operating conditions power for the generating facility will be . 
supplied by the facility. Start-up power will normally be backfed through the 
69kv interconnection facilities. In the event the interconnection facilities are out 
of service or maintenance is being performed on the main power transformer 
(black-out condition), standby electrical service for the office and maintenance 
facilities of the plant will be provided via this Standby Service. This was included’ 
as an option until the need for this service could be adequately evaluated with 
regard to engineering feasibility, plant operations, and cost effectiveness. This 
evaluation is in progress and-will be complete prior to January 31, 1995. 

Reference is made to a December 7, 1994 fax from the Bond Counsel regarding the 
question of tax exempt status in the Interconnection Agreement. A copy of this letter 
was not included with the Agreement. Is this the same as the 1992 Mudge, Rose 
opinion? 

The referenced fax states that the 1992 opinion s t i l l  applies. However, after 
further discussions with the City regarding the tax issue a new opinion has been 
requested from Bond Counsel to specifically address the Panda-Kathleen use of 
the City’s system. A new opinion is expected to be forthcoming shortty. m Refer 
to COL Fax, Item 1 under Transmission Interconnection Agreement (TIA). 
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Memorandum from R L. Wale and R J. Donatucci of Brown & Wood, dated December 
28,1994 regarding Comments to undated draft of the Interconnection Agreement. (PK008) 

1 .Q 

1 .A 

2 . 4  

2.A 

3.4 

3.A 

4.4 

4.A 

5.Q 

5.A 

Attached to the Agreement is a letter from Mudge, Rose dated January 24, 1992 acting 
as bond counsel to the City of Lakeland giving some comfort to the utility regarding 
the impact on the tax exempt status of the bonds in light of several proposed Projects, 
including Panda-Kathleen. .At a minimum, it is likely that an updated opinion will be 
required from Mudge, Rose. 

Refer to answer to Question 9 in response to Brown & Wood memorandum dated 
December 29, 1994. (PK007) 

Section 5.2 indicates that the transmission priority for the Project follows that of 
certain wholesale and retail customers and other existing fm commitments. Is there 

'any possibility that transmission services could be curtailed in light of this order of 
priority? 

This is consistent with FPSC Rule 25-17.089 (3) which allows electric utilities to 
deny, curtail, or,discontinue transmission service if the provision of such service 
would adversely affect the safety, adequacy, reliability, or cost- of providing . 
electrical service to the utility's general body of retail and wholesale customers. 
Refer to COL Fax, Item 2 under TIA for further explanation regarding 
restoration of service. 

Section 5.3 refers to force majeure concepts as embodied in the FPC PPA. In contrast, 
Section 5.1 contains no such cross-reference. Force majeure should be tied to the 
force majeure concepts in the PPA. 

Refer to COL Fax, Item 3, under TIA. 

Section 11.2 imposes certain limitations on the Project's remedies against Lakeland 
which seem inconsistent. 

Refer to answer to Question 5 in response to Brown & Wood memorandum dated 
December 29,1994. (PK007) Refer to COL Fax, Item 4, TIA. 

The terms of Section 12.1 allow changes in the rates to be charged for providing 
transmission services. Were these changes accounted for in the financial projections? 

The Rate Schedules referred to in Section 12.1 and contained in Exhibit 1 do not 
apply to the charge for Firm Transmission Service. The charge for Firm 
Transmission Service is based on the rate set forth in Appendix A as stated in 
Section 5.1. The Rate Schedules in Section 12.1 is for Auxiliary Service which is 
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electrical energy and capacity used by Panda for backup, supplemental and 
maintenance requirements (Le.: minimal usage when Panda is not generating), 
Refer to COL Fax, Item 5, TIA. 

6. No response required. 

7.Q Shouldn’t the reference in. Appendix C to Capacity Reserved at 74,900 kW +/- 10% 
be instead to 115,000 kW +/- lo%? 

7.A Yes, the Capacity Reserved should be 115,000 kW +/- 10%. 

Re: Permits 

For Questions 1-8 refer to the attached ECT letter of January 5 ,  1995 to Kyle Woodruff. 

Memo from Robert L. Vitale of Brown dk Wood to David Mayer, Panda Energy, and 
Cornelius Golden, Chadbourne and Parke, dated December 22,1994. (PK009) 

No comment required. Materials requested are being prepared and will be forwarded when . 
complete. 

Letter from Brown & Wood to Robert Liander of Alesander dk Alexander, dated December 
22, 1994. (PKO10) 

No comment required. 

Memorandum from R L. Vitale and R J. Donatucci of Brown & Wood dated December 
26, 1994 referencing Model Consent, Officer’s Certificate and Legal Opinions; 
Environmental Assessment Report and Power Purchase Agreement (PK011) 

Model Consent and Aenement 

This form, as recently revised, may be presented to the appropriate parties for 
consideration. Panda will require further input once the Project-specific portions are being 
negotiated. Panda does not necessarily agree with all of the terms of the form, but will 
generally await responses of applicable parties. 

12 SPECIALLY 
RESTRICTED 
PK 056171 

FPSC Docket No. 950110-EJ 
FPC Witness: MORRISON 

Sheet 12 of 26 
Exhibit No. , ( B M - 6 )  



I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

Form of ODinion of Project Partichants 

This form may only be considered fully when the financing and applicable Project 
documents become more complete. Legal issues relating to the opinions are being 
considered as they arise. 

Chadbourne & Parke LePal ODinion 

Preliminary review has begun. However, this form may only be considered fully when the 
fmancing and applicable Project documents become more complete. 

Model Officer's Certificate 

Preliminary review has begun. However, this form may only be considered fully when the 
financing and applicable Project documents become more complete. 

Environmental Assessment ReDort 

No response required. 

CorresDondence Related to Power Purchase Agreement 

Refer to response to Question 1 of White & Case letter to Cornelius J. Golden dated 
December 28, 1994. 

Panda Kathleen: Consent of FPC from Laurence Pettit of White & Case, dated January 
5, 1995. (PK012) 

No response required. 

Memorandum from RL. Vitale and RJ. Donatucci of Brown & Wood dated January 3, 
1995 regarding O&M Agreement. (PK013) 

1 .Q Regarding the three year term, Brown & Wood indicated that rating agencies may 
associate market risk with respect to hiring a new operator at the end of the initial term 
which may not be acceptable to rating agencies and noteholders. 
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1 .A Since Panda's equity partner, Calpine, is willing to perform the O&M Contract 
duties at  cost, Panda will change the term to match the Power Purchase 
Agreement. This will be reflected in the next contract draft. 

2.4 .  Final compensation package and Force Majeure provisions needs further review. 

2.A Panda is revising the compensation package and Force Majeure provisions to 
reflect the "at cost" approach for providing O&M services. This will be reflected 
in the next contract draft. 

3.4 Detailed suggested contract language was provided. 

3.A This language will, with one exception, be incorporated in the next contract draft. 

Brown & Wood Memorandum dated January 3, 1995 From Robert L. Vitale and Robert 
J. Donatucci regarding Gas Purchase Contracts. (PK014) 

1.Q 

1 .A 

2.4 

2.A 

3 .Q 

3.A 

We would appreciate some comfort from ICF and Brown & Root regarding their 
technical analysis of the Contract's terms, including calculation of nominated quantities 
and prices, timing of delivery notices, and use of indicated indexes. 

These can be found in Section 3 of the Gas Contract, as well as Exhibits C and 
D of the Gas Contract ("GPC"). 

We would also appreciate some comfort from ICF and Associated regarding the 
sufficiency of the Seller's gas supplies. Depending upon the strength of this review, 
we may need further backup to keep the rating agencies happy, but we would expect 
this level of comfort to be no more rigorous than what the banks will require. 

Attached is Thom Hirsch's letter to Associated's General Counsel with mark up 
of GPC according to Lender's request. Note, supply base and credit. 

If the Seller requires permits and authorizations for future performances of the Contract 
(as indicated in its representations), we will need some help from the Seller in 
understanding what risk, if any, this presents to the Project, particularly in the post- 
completion phase. 

What permits and authorizations are needed by Seller for performance - r i s k s  to 
the Project? This has been requested of Seller to give Panda an answer, few 
permits that I'm aware: 1) agency agreement between Panda/FGT/ANGI and act 
as Panda's agent to a) transport, b) make nominations and c) capacity release. 
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4 .4  

4.A 

5.Q 

5.A 

6.4 

6.A 

7.4 
7.A 

8.4 

Under Section 3.4.1, there is a (perhaps highly technical) possibility that the damage 
formula will not yield an intended result if replacement gas is not available in the 
market (and thereby rendering the loss to be quantified under clause (a) 
unascertainable); perhaps the use of oil would provide a satisfactory substitute fuel. 
There are other ways to solve this problem as well, and we would be happy to provide 
other solutions to Panda if it would like to pursue this point further. Otherwise, we 
would not expect the rating agencies to focus on this point much more, particularly if 
our other changes to this Section are acceptable to the parties. 

Comments to GPC in this area may add some clarifcation, but as pointed out by 
Brown & Wood (B&W), the area is minimal and remote. Panda feels we are 
covered. 

The rating agencies may question why the term of the Contract is not longer; if this 
cannot be addressed now, we can wait to see if they raise this as a material issue. 

Twenty years as requested, with three year successive ("evergreen") roll over 
periods unless terminated. 

We suspect that the rating agencies may also question Sections 10.5 &d 17.2, to the 
extent these clauses contemplate revised pricing for the gas; again, if this issue cannot 
be addressed today, we can wait to see how the agencies will react, but we think the 
better course of action would be to narrow these provisions as much as possible. 

Changes contemplated in Section 10.5 are if an Index is no longer published or e 
the "integrity" of the Index no longer reflects "market conditions". Change in 
Section 10.5 on the premium paid ($.03/mhimum) would only be if either party 
perceives a real change in the service costs being reflected in the industry. 
Neither of the above allow for: 1) termination of the GPC; nor 2) a change from 
a methodology calculated on "current market conditions" for a "monthly/daily 
current pricing." Section 17.2 allows that if a loss were to affect either Party, the 
Parties will either: 1) proceed as changed or 2) renegotiate to attempt to place 
both Parties at "as near the economics" they were at, prior to the change in law. 

Will the banks be providing the Buyer's LOC, and if so, on what terms? 

Will respond when information is available. 

If the guaranty to be provided by Seller's parent represents the real credit in the 
transaction, we may need to tighten up the default provisions further to reflect the 
presence of the guaranty and making it an immediate default if the guarantor's credit 
slips without some additional credit support in the form of a Seller LOC or 
replacement guarantor. 
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9.Q Will test gas be purchased on the spot market, and if so, will sufficient transportation 
facilities exist at the time when needed? 

9.A Test gas will be purchased from ANGI via capacity from Lakeland, Florida with 
sufficient capacity (FGT and Lakeland see more than adequate capacity). 

1O.Q We would recommend adding provisions permitting execution in counterparts, 
permitting severability of provisions, waiver of jury trial in any proceeding not settled 
by arbitration, and the right to terminate the Contract due to bankruptcy or insolvency 
or either Party or the Guarantor. 

10.A These requests have been added to the other contract revisions asked of ANGI. 

Brown & Wood Memorandum dated January 4, 1995 From Robert L. Vitale and Robert 
J. Donatucci regarding Gas-Related Contracts. (PK015) 

1 .Q 

1 .A 

2.4 

2.A 

3.4  

What is the status of FGT's application to approve the new tariff relating to its Phase 
I11 expansion? Are we correct in assuming that if the tariff is not approved, the 
relinquishment transaction cannot be consummated? If that is so, what is the 
contingency plan? When we will know whether such approval will be given or 
denied? 

Thom Hirsch will address. 

As you will see, we modified Section 1 to emphasize that the contract is effective 
when executed, although services thereunder will not commence until June 1, 1996. 

This is acceptable. 

As we interpret the Agreement, under Section 3 Panda will be paying to Lakeland 
those sums which Lakeland is in turn required under Section 4 to pay to FGT, to the 
extent related to the relinquished capacity. This is being done because the Project is 
not sufficiently creditworthy, and therefor Lakeland is interjecting its credit on behalf 
of the Project. If, for any reason, Lakeland is prevented from remaining as an 
intermediary, or no longer satisfies FGT's credit standards in its own right, can the 
Project contract directly with FGT, permitting the Project to make such payments 
directly to FGT, while leaving Lakeland "on the hook" in name only, and insuring (as 
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far as the Project is concerned) no unexpected interruption in payments to FGT? Will 
FGT provide notice to the Project or any missed payment, with an opportunity to cure 
in favor of the Project? 

3.A Thom Hirsch to address. 

4.4 What is the status of the conditions precedent mentioned at the end of Section 7, which 
were to be satisfied by January 1, 1995? 

4.A The conditions precedent have been met and are now being changed to reflect 
this. 

5.Q Section 8 establishes a best efforts basis to replace the Agreement if it is not approved 
by FERC or if it cannot be implemented within FGT's tariff; what other options are 
available in that scenario? 

5.A Other shippers will be sought. 

6.4 Consider adding a severability provision to the document and a waiver of jury trial for 
those disputes which are adjudicated in court. If the role of Lakeland & paying agent . 
intermediary cannot be circumvented, it would be helpful if additional language was 
added in which Lakeland agreed to act as paying agent on a hell or high water, no 
setoff or reduction, no interfering claim basis, to the extent the'project has provided 
Lakeland with the necessary funds. The indemnification we added in Section 4 is a 
start on these concepts. 

6.A Changes are being reflected in agreement. 

7.4 Considering also adding some form of provision whereby Lakeland will enforce its 
rights against FGT to the extent required to protect the Project's rights under the 
Agreement, particularly if the Project does not have such rights directly against FGT 
because of the intermediation of Lakeland. 

7.A Changes are being reflected in agreement. 

Notice of Request Under Blanket Authorization: 

1 .Q Have any notices of protest been filed in respect of this request? We understand that 
the protest period expires on January 9, 1995; is this correct? The Notice provides that 
"FGT states that it would deliver 17,260 MMBtu of gas on an average day and 
6,300,000 MMBtu of gas per year to Panda-Kathleen under new interruptible and 
released firm transportation service agreements." Where is this statement derived 
from? 
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1 .A Notice to protest were timely filed with FERC. January 9, 1995 was last date to 
timely protest. 17,260 MMBtu per day and 6,300,000 annually deliveries by FGT 
to Panda? I don’t know where this came from, will ask FGT/Thom Hirsch. 

Letter Agreement with FGT Re: Construction of Delivery Points: 

1.Q What is the status of the construction tasks mentioned in this Agreement, as well as 
the permits required of FGT to perform its obligations thereunder? Is there any 
significant risk that such permits will not be granted? Besides the FERC approval 
discussed above, what other permits or authorizations are required? 

1.A Notice to protest construction is past. FGT has requested any and all permits, 
which check status. Little risks we are aware of, of not receiving permits, not 
sure what other permits are required. 

FTSA-1: 

1 .Q 

1 .A 

2.4 

2.A 

3.4 

3.A 

4.4 

4.A 

5.Q 

5.A 

When will the exhibits to this Agreement be completed? 

Tlhom Hirsch is addressing. 

What is the status of the comments set forth in Article IV (which should be numbered 
as Article V)? 

Thom Hirsch is addressing. 

What is the status of the regulatory approvals referred to in Article VIII; when will 
they be obtained? 

Thom Hirsch is addressing. 

What is the business deal regarding FGT’s right to review the Project’s 
creditworthiness, as indicated in handwritten comments marked onto Article X? 

Thom Hirsch is addressing. 

Please provide a copy of the relevant Request referred to in the recitals. 

Thom Hinch is addressing. 

FTSA-2: 

1 .Q When will Exhibit A and B be prepared? 
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l.A Thom Hirsch is addressing, 

2.4 Will the same changes marked onto Article V of FTSA-1 be made to Article IV of this 
Agreement? 

2.A Thom Hirsch is addressing. 

' 3.4 Please confirm that the new facilities referred to in Article VI1 are in addition to the 
facilities to be built under the Construction of Delivery Point Letter Agreement 
referred to above, and are not needed to operate the plant. 

3.A Thom Hirsch is addressing. 

4.4 What is the status of the regulatory approvals referred to in Article VIII; when will 
. they be obtained? 

4.A Thom Hinch is addressing. 

5.Q The last sentence in Article X seems to be some form of cross-default provision to the 
Construction Letter Agreement, without any form of grace or cure rights. Given the 
importance of both agreements, we would recommend some notice, grace and cure 
rights be added. Are the "conditions" referred to in this Article the receipt of money, 
and if so, that should be clearly stated. 

5.A Thom Hirsch is addressing. ' 

6.4 

6.A Thom Hirsch is addressing. 

Mutual Termination and Release 

1 .Q 
1 .A 

2.4 

2.A Thom Hinch is addressing. 

3.4 

3.A Thom Hirsch is addressing. 

Please provide a copy of the relevant Request referred to in the recitals. 

What is the status of this document? 

Thom Hirsch is addressing. 

Why are the releases not more reciprocal? 

What is the percentage concept contained in the document? How can it work? 
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4.4 If this document is to be executed, we would recommend adding some additional 
"boilerplate" provisions to insure its enforceability (e.g., governing law, some form of 
authorization representation, successors and assigns, etc. 

4.A Thom Hirsch is addressing. 

5.Q The document should be addressed to the partnership, not the general partner. 

5.A Thom Hirsch is addressing. 

Letter Agreement Regarding Prearranged Permanent Capacity Release 

1 *Q The draft of this letter agreement is somewhat difficult to interpret, given various 
comments written on the document. Please provide us with the current form of this 
document to review. We note, however, that the draft we were supplied seems to 
constitute some form of waiver in Section 2, wherein Lakeland and the Partnership 
agree that their "sole and exclusive remedy" against FGT is to apply for administrative 
relief, and the parties seem to waive other claims against FGT even attributable to 
FGT's actions. We will need a better understanding of the reason for this provision 
and its impact on the Project. 

1.Q Thom Hirsch is addressing. 

2.4  As a general matter, the document suffers fiom the same problem as the other letter 
agreements referred to above, insofar as it lacks certain "boilerplate" provisions to 
make it more enforceable; we would suggest adding this language, which we can 
supply to you if necessary. 

2 . 4  Thom Hirsch is addressing. 

Draft of June 7,1994 Letter Agreement Regarding Disputes Between Panda and FGT 

1 .Q We have reviewed' a June 7, 1994 draft of a letter agreement which discusses some 
disputes between Panda and FGT, including some form of tennination notice issued 
in respect of the 1991 FTS-2 agreement. We would like further information regarding 
this dispute and the other terms and provisions set forth in this letter, as well as some 
indication as to whether the letter will be signed in some form. 

1 .A Thom Hirsch is addressing. 
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Letter from N. Clay Jones of Brown & Root, Inc. to Kirk H. Edelman of the Bank of Tokyo 
Trust Company, dated January 6, 1995. (PK016) 

1 .Q Contract tenure - The gas purchase, power purchase agreement (standard offer with 
amendments), and proposed loan tenure do not match. 

1 .A The chart is incorrectly drawn by showing the Power Purchase Agreement 
(Standard Offer Contract) as 20 years. Please refer to the Contract, Article W ,  

Term and Milestones, Section 4.1 which the term of the Agreement as beginning 
on the execution date (November 25,1991) and expiring on the last day of March 
2025. 

Standard Offer: 

2.(a)Q The payment provisions in the standard offer (PPA) are absent d e r  the 20th year. 
There are no assurances that consistent payment provisions will apply. We note this 
in the above graph at year twenty (20). 

2.(a)A According to the FPSC Rules, the time period over which firm capacity and 
energy shall be delivered is at  a minimum of 10 yean  and at a maximum period 
of time equal to the anticipated plant life of the avoided unit. The quoted 
provisions require illustrative calculations for at  least 10 years. According to the 
rules "upon request .... each utility shall provide within 30 days, its most current 
projection of fuel forecasts, as well as any other information reasonably required .... to Project avoided cost prices". 

Hence, the utility must run its illustrative projected numbers for 20 years even 
though the minimum contract term is 10 years. The 20 year term of the payment 
tables does not imply a 20 year limit to the contract term. 

Rule 25-17.083 (3)(e)6. specifically states "At a maximum, firm capacity and 
energy shall be delivered for a period of time equal to the anticipated plant life 
of the avoided unit, commencing with the anticipated in service date of the 
avoided unit. 

Payments beyond 20 years are calculated using the same formulas as those which 
generated the tables. For example, 25-17.0832 (5)(a) provides the formula for 
calculating the year by year value of deferral. The formula yields the utility's 
monthly value of avoided capacity in dollars per kilowatt month for each month 
of the year a, where is defined as: "year for which the avoided unit is deferred 
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2*(b)Q 

2.(b)A 

U C ) Q  

2.(c)A 

starting with its original anticipated in service date and ending with the 
termination of the contract. In this case, the ending of the contract is March 31, 
2025. 

The agreed delay in the amendment to 1/1/97 is confusing. The facility is expected 
to be completed 7/1/96. We do not see in the amendment provisions for capacity 
payments from FPC prior to 1/1/97. FPC may not accept as-available energy from 
Panda-Kathleen prior to 1 / 1/97. 

The second sentence of this paragraph is correct. There are no capacity payments 
from FPC prior to the avoided unit on-line date which was amended (or better 
stated, election of normal payment option instead of early payment option). 
However, according to the Florida Public Service Commission Rules, Supplement 
No. 157, Rule Number 25-17.0832, Section 4(a). page 17-41, "Prior to the 
in-service date of the avoided unit, the qualifying facility may sell as-available 
energy to the utility pursuant to Rule 25-17.0825.'' 

There are no specific provisions as to the maximum amount of energy FPC will take. 
Ordinarily we would expect some upper limit. 

The maximum amount of energy FPC will take is defmed as the maximum output 
of the power generation equipment as presented to the FPSC (and confirmed by 
them and FPC), in accordance with the Barrett Johnson letter to the FPSC dated 
August 23,1994 and the FPSC letter from Joseph Jenkins dated August 24,1994. 
Payment for this energy is assured under FPSC Rule No. 25-17.0825, As Available 
Energy, page 17-41 of the supplement No. 157, appendis to the Contract. 

Gas Purchase Contract (suDDlv) 

First year volumes under contract (10-12 MMBWd) will not fuel the facility for 6500 
hours as suggested in the pro forma projections. Also, during the performance testing 
and reliability runs (three days and seven days respectively) the Project is subject to 
spot gas availability and not fm supply. 

The 6500 hours run time includes both "on-peak" and "off-peak" hours. The 10- 
12 MMBtu/d is the amount of capacity presently contracted for which is the 
amount needed to fuel the facility at full load for the "on-peak" hours. 
Additional capacity will be purchased as required. ' During performance testing 
if after June 1, 1996, gas capacity and supply will be available. Prior to June 1, 
1996, City of Lakeland will provide capacity as required. 

The maximum available quantity of 20,000 MMBtdd is insufficient to fuel the facility 
at full load (22,800 MMBtu/d). 
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3.(b)A Yes, the maximum quantity under contract is 20,000 MMBtdd. ANG will supply 
up to 22,800 MMBtu/d if firm capacity is purchased for that volume. It is 
anticipated that firm capacity or interruptible capacity will be available to meet 
the full amount. 

Gas Transmrtation Azreements 

4 .4  Only references to Panda Kathleen's ability to obtain firm transportation for the full 
quantity of gas required by the facility to fuel full load are made. Granted, excess 
capacity for Phase I1 and Phase I11 expansions of FTC's line are currently available. 
These capacity reservations should be obtained prior to financial closing. 

4.A Please clarify "capacity reservations". Are these options or  is the 
recommendation to purchase firm capacity for the full amount; thus requiring 
payment of transportation charges for the full amount for the life of the plant. 

EPC Contract 

Scope Definition - Control of contract costs is a potential problem since the plant is 
to be built on general specifications. For example, the distilled water facility describes 
the system as a whole, but is not specific regarding redundance, materials of 
construction, etc. Other cost increases may occur as design progresses for things such 
as pavement for maintenance access that may be desired by the O&M Contractor. 
Although these cost extras may not be major increases, the cumulative effect may be 
significant. The owner's costs in the budget may or may not have considered these 
items. 

Cost is controlled through the hot-to-exceed Guaranteed Maximum Price (GMP) 
for the work on a turnkey basis to provide a facility that meets the Performance 
Guarantees, the requirements of the PPA, all applicable Permits and Codes as 
well as the Scope of Work. The Scope of Work provides a level of Quality, 
Operability and Maintainability which must be met in the engineering and design 
not only of the Contractor but any of its subvendors and contractors (Refer to 
Section 2.1; Section 2.7 for general requirements and Sections 9.1.1, 9.2.2, 9.3.3, 
9.4.2, 9.4.3, 9.4.4 for the distilled water facility). 

Distilled Water Plant - Waste water is cycled through the distilled water plant where 
solids are removed for disposal. Reliability of this system is essential to operation of 
the cogeneration facility, however, as discussed above, the system is not well defined. 

This is essentially the same question as (a). See above response. 

No response required. 
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Fax from Laurence Pettit of White & Case to Kirk Edelman of the Bank of Tokyo, dated 
January 5, 1995 regarding Draft Calpine Term Sheet. (PK017) 

1-Q Are you concerned that Panda has an option to buy out Calpine stake - is there any 
reason to require that Calpine continue to have a stake in the project? 

The Credit Agreement may contain restrictions on transfer of partnership interests and 
an event of default for a Change of Control, which we can discuss at greater length in 
the context of the Credit Agreement as a whole. 

1.A There should be no concem if Calpine is replaced, the new player will have as 
much, if not more, at stake than Calpine. 

As to change of control being an element of default, same answer, Lender's 
. position is not changed by new partner. After all, the loadcredit facility is non- 
recourse, and banks look to the facility only for repayment. 

2.4 If the Calpine ceases to be a partner, a fee component will be added to the O&M 
Agreement, which will increase the operating expenses payable pre-debt service. 

2.A This is true, and, increased O&M fee is senior to (ahead off) debt service... Will 
have to be worked out. 

3 .Q The equity should be contrihuted at the closing into the Construction Account 
established pursuant to the Disbursement Agreement and will be disbursed pursuant to 
the Requisition mechanism to be set forth in the Credit Agreement. 

Will the equity be withdrawn from the Construction Account and expended on Project 
costs before any loans or MTN proceeds, or will it be expended on a pro rata basis 
during construction? 

3.A Yes, equity contributed at closing. Intended to "spend" it first to minimize fees 
and interest during construction. 

4.4 It should be clear that the equity return is payable only out of, and to the extent of, 
Project cash flow after payment of all expenses and reserve deposits with priority. 

4.A No response required. 

5.Q There will be conditions in the Credit Agreement to payment of the first partner 
distribution above and beyond the mere occurrence of the "Contract In-Service Date" 
under the PPA, for example a final survey, a permit opinion, independent engineer's 
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certificate, initial deposits into the debt service reserve account and occurrence of the 
"Final Acceptance Date" under the EPC Contract. 

5.A Please clarify. We pay all third party bills not submitted at closing. 

6.4 During construction, the equity will essentially be pay-in-kind and there will be no 
cash payments under any circumstances. Is this Panda's understanding too? 

6.A Please clarify. 

7.4 We assume the equity will be contributed at closing, although in one or two places the 
term sheet refers to the possibility of the equity being funded at "conversion". 
Presumably, the equity will come in at closing. 

7.A Yes, equity will come up front, unless for some compelling reason we use Calpine 
Letter of Credit instead ... unlikely. 

Letter from Laurence Pettit of White & Case to Cornelius J. Golden of Chadbourne & . 
Parke, dated January 9,19% regarding Standard Offer Contract between Panda-Kathleen, . 

L.P. (the "Company") and Florida Power Corporation ("FPC") for the Sale of Electricity 
from the Company's Proposed Gas-Fired Cogeneration Facility in Polk County, Near 
Lakeland, Florida. (PK018) 

To be referred to Panda's legal counsel, Barrett Johnson. 

Memorandum dated January 9, 1995 to Robert L Vitale from Louis A. Evans of Brown 
& Wood regarding Merrill LyncWanda-Kathleen Environmental Permits. (PK019) 

See attached ECT letter dated January 16, 1995. 

Letter to Distribution List regarding Revised Gas Transportation Contracts from Robert 
L. Vitale and Robert J. Donatucci dated January 9, 1995. (PKOZO) 

Comments will be addressed with FGT. 
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Facsimile dated January 10, 1995 from Laurence Pettit of White & Case to Various 
Individuals regarding Consent and Agreement between Bank of Tokyo, Panda-Kathleen, 
L.P., and Florida Power Corporation. (PKO21) 

No response required. 

Draft of a Letter to Panda-Kathleen, L.P. from Florida Power Corporation regarding 
Qualifying Facility Status Pursuant to Standard Offer Contract for the Purchase of Firm 
Capacity and Energy From a Qualifying Facility less than 75 MW or a Solid Waste Facility, 
Between Panda-Kathleen, L.P. and Florida Power Corporation, Effective September 20, 
1991. (PK022) 

No response required. 

Draft of a Letter to Panda-Kathleen Corporation from Florida Gas Transmission Company 
regarding Mutual Termination and Release Agreement Between Panda-Kathleen, L.P. 
("Partnership") and Florida Gas Transmission Company ("FGT"). (PKOU) 

Comments will be addressed with FGT. 

Memorandum from Thom Hinch to Gerald Drumm, Robert Vitale, and Rick Stephens 
dated January 10, 1995 regarding Psnda-Kathleen Documents. (PK024) 

No response required. 

Memorandum to Distribution List from Robert L. Vitale and Robert J. Donatucci regarding 
Panda-Kathleen Project dated January 10, 1995. (PK025) 

Barren Johnson to address during phone conversation. 

Facsimile from Laurence Pettit to Various Individuals dated January 12, 1994 regarding 
Panda-Kat hleen. (PK026) 

No response required. 
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EMEKGY CORPORATION 
The Independent Power Company 

January 16, 1991. 

Secretary 
Federal Energy Regulatory Commission 
825 North Capital Street 
Washington, D.C. 20426 

RE: Panda Energy Corporation 
Notice of Self-Certification 
As A Qualifying Facility 
150 Mw Gas Fired Facility 
Lakeland, Florida 

FPSC Docket NO. 950110-EI 
FPC Witness: MORRISON 

Sheet 1 of 5 
Exhibit No. P @AM-7) 

.- _..-. . 

. 

Gentlemen: 

Enclosed herewith you will find four (4) copies of subject Notice. 
We would appreciate receiving a copy of this Notice from you, 
reflecting the assigned QP Number, 

If you have any questions, please let me know. 

Very truly yours, 

General Counsel 

ERG/- 

Encls. 
_ _  _ -  

CONFIDENTIAL 
PK 017314 
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Setf qualiRcation for the Panda Kathleen facility has been filed (seeattached) 
formal filing MU be made after final design has been determined. Preliminary 
designakulations are given below based on and average annual steam 
commitment to My Juice of3O,OOO,OOO BTU's/hr. 
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Electrical + I 112 Thermal 

Total BTU Input 
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- - 5.5% 
30,000 - - 30,OOO 

. . - . I  * 

511,950 + 30,OOO 541,950 

511,950 + 15,000 - - 
1070.400 

3 49.2% 
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WIT= STATES OF AMERICA 
BEFORE TEE 

FEDERAL ENERGY REGULATORY COMHISSIOLS 

Panda Energy Corpotation Docket No. QF 

Notice of Self-Certification A8.a . .- * 
Qualifltina coaeneration Facllltv . a  

Pursuant to Section 292.207 of the regulations o f  the Federal 
Energy Regulatory Commission (the "Commission") , Panda Energy 
Corporation ("Panda") hereby files a notice of self-certification 
as a qualifying cogeneration facility. 

Location of the Facility And 

Jdentification of the A n n ~ ~ c a n t  

The cogeneration facility (the "Facility") will be located at- the 
plant site o f  Erly Juice, Inc., 4100 Frontage Rd. South, Lakeland, 
Florida 33802-2004. 

The owner of the Facility will be Panda Energy Corporation, a 
corporation existing under the laws of Texas. 

The address of Panda Energy Corporadon is: 

Panda Energy Corporation 
4100 Spring Valley Road 
Suite 1001 
Dallas, Texas 75244 

on of the Faci- 

The Facility i o  a -  combined cycle cogeneration facility, 
incorporating one (1) gas fired combustion turbine generator, one 
(1) waste-heat recovery steam generator and one (1) extraction 
inductiGn steam turbine generator. 

The Facility will have an estimated net maximum capacity at-design 
conditions of 150 MW. The electrical output of the Facility will 
be sold to Florida Power Corporation (FPC) with an interconnect 
directly into the FPC transmission system. The Facility will 
generate approximately 50,000 lbo. per hour of steam which will be 
sold to Erly Juice, Inc. and used in the dye process and drying of 
orange juice and by-products. 
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The F a c i l i t y  w i l l  be fueled by Natural Gas and is expected t o  
commence operation i n  1993.  

Panda Energy Corporation has submitted this' n o t i c e  of self- 
c e r t i f i c a t i o n  a s  a qualifying cogeneration f a c i l i t y  t o  be executed 
by its corporate o f f i c i a l  and general counsel on t h i s  16th day of 
January 1991. 

Respect ful ly  submitted, 

.* 

PANDA ENERGY CORPORATION 
.- - 

idward R .  Gwynn 
General Counsel 

ERG/tb 

. _- - -  

a 
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9. Panda would prefer Wednesday, January 30, 1991 as our meeting date. A 
suggested aJtema!e date would be Thursday, January 31st. 

.. . 
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January 17, 1991 

Gly Juice, Inc. 
4100 Frontage Rd., South 
P.O. Box 32004 
Lakeland, Florida 33802-2004 

ENERGY CORPORATION 
The Independent Power Company 

LETER OF INTENT 

Gentlemen: 

. .  This letter, when accepted by you, will acknowledge (i) that you are consldenna entry 
into an Agreement with Panda Energy Corporation ('Panda") relative to the 
construction of a Cogeneration facility to seNe your Erly Juice/Lakeland Plant; (ii) 
that considerable time, effort and resources will be expended by you and by Panda 
in the course of this consideration; and (iii) that certain confidential information will 
be exchanged between you and Panda in the course of this consideration whether or 
not a Cogeneration Agreement is eventually entered between us. In consideration 
for this exchange of information and expenditure of time, effort, and resources, the 
parties hereto agree as follows: 

1. 

2. 

3. 

4. 

All data (electrical, steam, financial, price, contracts and other data and 
written information) exchanged between the parties will be used for 
evaluation purposes only. 

All such data and information will be treated as confidential data by the 
Parties hereto. It will not be shown to or otherwise disclosed to any 
third party (other than to employees or consultants of the Parties) 
without express written consent to do so. 

All such data and information (and all copies thereof which may have 
been made) shall be immediately returned upon the other Party's 
request to do so. _ _  - -  

Panda Energy Corporation (Panda) is preparing a proposal for Florida 
Power Cop. which requires that the location of the plant be identified 
to facilitate interconnection studies. Panda is granted Wus ive  
authority to identify, in such request for proposal submittal within 
twelve months of the date of this Letter Agreement, your Lakeland, 
Florida Plant as the possible host for a cogeneration facility to be built 
by Panda. 130513 

4100 Spring Valley, Suite 1001 Dallas, Texas 75244 
2 14/980-7 159 f A X  2 I4/980-6815 

-.I 4 ' 4  



1 If Panda Is successful in any such bld proposal, it is agreed that Erly 
Juice ana Panda wlll enter Into negotlatlons to attempt to consummate 
a cogeneration agreement whlch would parallel the contract term with 
Florida Power Corp, 

Panda would agree to deliver steam to Edy Juice up to 60,000 pounds 
of stem. per hour, at 150 PSIG, for $2.00 per thousand pounds. 
(Eacalatlon rate to be negotiated) 

The faclllty will be located on 12 acres owned by Erly Julce at the 
Lakeland site, The property will be purchased or leased by Panda. 

Each party hereto agrees that they wlll not contact thlrd parties with 
whom the other party Is In privy without permisslon to do 80. 

In conslderatlon for the time and expense necessary to achleve project 
completion, thls agreement can be extended for an addltlonai twelve 
month perlod if progress, satisfactory to both pades, is belng 
acco m p I Is he d . 

Nothing herein shall obligate elther party to enter e Cogeneratlon Agreement, If the 
foregolng is acceptable to you, pie- 8xecut0, date and return a copy of thlr Letter 
Agreement to the undersigned to Indlcate your acceptance thereof, 

Prudent - 

It is expresrly agreed and acknowledc 
that Erly.  Juice, Inc. shall have 
liability for any expenses incurred 
Panda Ehergy Corporation arising out 
or relaUng in any way t o  t h i s  Agreemer 
arthet, any agrement8 w i t h  respect 
Cogeneration, property sale or lease, 
related matters shall be subject 
further negotiation. 

1 
Manage;, Salflwiness Develdpmeh 4 

I= z Accepted and Agreed to: 

FPSC Docket No. 950110-EI 
F'PC Witness: MORRISON 
Exhibit No. 9 (BAM-8) 
Sheet 2 of 2 

0 Vice President, Finance 

January 1 6 ,  1991 V Date: 

130514 
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INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM 

I DATE: September 9, 1992 

TO: Ralph Killian 
Robert Wolf 
Tom Bagby 
Mark Bentley 

I 
I 

FROM: Joe Brinson 

I SUBJECT: Erly Juice Negotiations and Contacts 

As you are all aware, we have reached an active and sensitive negotiation stage with Erly 
Juice. It is important that we maintain a single point of contact with Erly Juice during this 
stage. To do othenvise would afford Erly Juice multiple and unnecessary opportunities to 

I 
I . elicit infomation and to gain negotiation advantages. 

Accordingly, I have designated Mark Bentley of the Legal Department as our single contact 
point during the period of negotiations. All other Panda employees are requested to initiate 
no contacts (written, in person or by phone) with Erly Juice or  their representatives without 
my prior approval or Mr. Bentley’s prior approval. 

I am not suggesting that such contacts should never be made. I’m only asking that they be 
cleared with me in advance. Neither am I suggesting that you refuse to talk if an Erly Juice 
representative contacts you or  that you say you aren’t the proper contact point I am 
suggesting, (if information or  your opinion on a negotiation point is sought) that you politely 
and adroitly promise that you will obtain the necessary response and that you then refer the 
request to me or to Mark. 

I’d also appreciate ( i )  receiving copies of all of your correspondence from or concerning 
Erly Juice or the Erly Juice situation and (ii) having the opportunity to approve letters to 
Erly Juice before they are mailed. 

I would like to maintain a similar control after negotiations are completed. I 
Your cooperation will be greatly appreciated. 

_ _  _ -  

I 

cc: Robert Carter 
Hans van Kuilenburg 
Ed Gwynn 

L 

roject Manager 

P-KO00  9 17 
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MEMORANDUM 

FPSC Docket No. 9501 IO-EI 
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Sheet 1 of 1 
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DATE: March 19, 1993 

TO: Ana Burgr 

FROM: Ted Hollon 

SUBJECT: Panda-Kathleen Cogeneration Plant - Lakeland, FIorida 

A trip report on Mark's and my recent visit to St. Petenburg and Lakeland is forthcoming. In 
the interim, there are several key issues that need to be resolved in an expeditious manner in 
order to move forward. These issues are FYI and are as follows: 

1) J?C- While FPC and Panda informally agree that a' 1997 COD is in the best interest of 
all concerned, our contractual obligation calls for a 4/1/95 COD. Clarifications and 
modifications to this agreement need to be formally resolved as soon as possible. 
Without a confirmed date, the EPC contract cannot be finalized. 

2) Erly Juice - The energy supply agreement needs to be finalized. There is a possibility 
that action taken to modify the FPC agreement (see item 1) may leave Panda vulnerable, 
especially if we do not have a steam host under contract. 

Additionally, it may be prudent to investigate possible alternate steam hosts in the area 
as a precautionary backup measure. 

3) City of Lakeland - FPC indicated that the City is serious about Panda using their 
substation and that the City can be a formidable obstacle (and opponent) in our permitting 
and zoning efforts. 

Panda owes the City of Lakeland a response to their2/8/93 letter. This issue needs to be 
addressed and handled with kid glovcs so that we do not provoke a conflict that would 
i p c t t i m e  and costs, not to mcntion goodwill. Mark feels wc havc a strong c3se for 
not utilizing the City's substation thus avoiding their "whceling" charges. However, 
resolving this issuc would eliminate thc Gay propeny site and allow us to focus on onc 

c corridor 

These issucs nccd Panda's immediate attcntion. Mark is knowlcdgcable of thc abocc and is 
working toward thcir rcsolution. . .  

P-KO0 11 3 3 
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MEMORANDUM 

DATE: March 23, 1993 

TO: Ann Burgr 

Ted Hollon H FROM: 

SUBJECT: Panda-Kathleen 
Project Status Meeting 

The following is a brief synopsis of today's project status meeting. 

In attendance: Mark Bentley 
Ralph Killian 
Brian Dietz 
Darol Lindloff 
Ted Hollon 

1) Panda is contractually obligated to FPC for a 4/1/95 COD. , 

2) FPC- Panda needs to resolve COD extension. Mark Bentley is to write a letter (by 
3/23/93) to FPC establishing our position with regard to a 1997 COD. Panda is 
to proceed with a 1995 schedule unless our sales agreement with FPC is modified 
to reflect a different date. 

3) ERLYJUICE- Ted Hollon will draft a letter (by 3/23/93) to Bronson Schultz for 
Mark's review. 

-Darol will make initial contact with NECO as an alternative Steam Host. Panda will 
investigate other sources, too. 

-Panda could save approximately $5 million in capital cost by relocating cogen plant and 
steam host closer to the pipeline and power line intersect. 

-Mark to investigate the effect of relocation with regard to our site specific location in 
the FPC-safes agreement. 

4) CITY OF LAKELAND - Mark is to send a written response to the City's 2/8/93 letter 
by 3/23/93. 

CONFIDENTIAL 
PK 005976 
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GAY PROPERTY - The real estate agent was asked to inform Mrs. Gay of Panda's 
intentions not to renew the property option. Mark is to formally 
notify Mrs. Gay before the 3/29/93 deadline. 

ABB- Need to resolve Erly Juice and FPC before any decision can be made. 

GAS COMMITMENT - Hold off any sales agreement for one week. 
review 3/29/93. 

We will 

WATER CONSUMPTION- ECI' needs the water consumption rate for the cogen plant 
permitting effort. Dietz said it is too &ly in the design 
stage to determine this requirement. I will explore with 
CtnturyBibb. 

NEXT MEETING - Date to be established. 

Attendants 

FPSC Docket No. 950110-EI 
FPC Witness: MORRISON 

Sheet 2 of 2 
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PmDA-KATHLEEN L. P. 
A Panda Company 

March 23, 1993 

Mr. Bronson Schultz 
Vice Resident - Finance 
Erly Juice, Inc. 
16825 Northchase Dr., Ste 1600 
Houston, TX 77060 

RE: Thermal Host Contract 
Panda-Ka thleen 
74.9 MW Plant 

Dear Bronson: 

As you are aware, Panda Kathleen, L.P. has a power sales agreement with Florida Power 
Corporation. This contract calls for a construction start date of 1 April 94. In order to meet this 
contractual obligation, Panda must start its permitting and engineering efforts by 1 April 1993. 

Therefore, Panda and Erly Juice need to finalize the Thermal Host Contract in a timely manner 
that is consistent with our overall project schedule. I have been unable to reach you by telephone 
despite repeated attempts. 

We would appreciate your earliest attention to this matter. Please let me know as won as 
possible when you will be able to meet us and conclude this agrknent .  

Sincerely, 

Mark . Bentley _ _  _ -  
Attorney 

MBIem 

cc: Ted Hoilon 
SPECIAUY 
RESTRICTED 
PK 082235 

3 100 Spring Valley, Suite 100 I Dallas, Texas 75244 2 14/980-7 159 Fax 980-68 I5 
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' 'DATE: ' May 6, 1993 
Sheet 1 of 1 

'FROM:' * Stephen Argenbright 

- t !TO: 1 1  Anne Burgr, Bill Nordlund, Ted Holland 
1 IRE: 1 9  Erly Juice Contract Negotiation8 

Joe Brinson confirmed th is  xmtlng that Randy, the Plant Manager 
for Erly Juice, is in possession of all Em's enviromental reports. 
Hence, I do not believe that we should use the reports to obtain 
an option to purchase the site, especially if Panda waits until 
after the Erly Juice sale closest. 

Panda would be wise in pushing for a thermal/option agreement w i t h  
the new owner of Erly Juice prior to the sale transaction. After 
the sale transaction, the new Owner would have no more incentive to 
deal with Panda than tho current management of Erly Juice; and 
those negotiations ham dragged on for over 18 months. 

It Fs my opinion that the current management of Erly Juice has 
advanced significant added value to the plant as a result of 
Panda's offer to supply cheap thermal energy. Panda should 
capitalize on this by subtly hinting that a thermal agreement is 
not an absolute, and that Panda is considering other sites. At the 
same time, Panda should indieate M overt willingness to enter into 
a thermal agreement with the new owners. 

Lets meet on these issuer as soon as possible. 

. .  . _ -  - -  

CONFIDENTIAL 
PK 012038 
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.M EM 0 RAND U M 

.- 

DATE: December 8, 1993 . 
TO: Distribution 

FROM: Ted Hollon 

SUBJECT. Panda-Kathleen .4ction Items 
@ 

The following are action items identified in the Kathleen project status meeting (12/7/93): 

Ruthven Property: Tom Bagby is to reach agreement on price and termq'for the 
7.53 acre Ruthven site by 12/10/93. 

Development Budget All department heads are required to provide development 
funding requirements (if applicable) to Ted Hollon by 12/10/93. 

/ 

Permitting Strategy: Panda is not going to permit under the Power Plant Siting Act. 
ECT will direct permitting efforts. Engineering must commence soon to support 
permitting. 

EPC Negotiations: Century is to come in 12/13/93 to discuss EPC contract Terms 
directed by Panda management will be discussed with Century, ie. $1.5 million, 
development loan and at-risk engineering. 

Steam Host Ted Hollon shall be responsible for marketing the distilled water. Tom 
Bagby will pursue neighboring plan& Dynaplasf as a potential alternative host 

Project Budget Bryan Urban and Ted Hollon are to update the proforma. 
Financial closin,o is now scheduled for December 1994. Financial markets need to 
be explored ASAP as the margins are tight 

Project Equipment Brian Dietz to investigate the Frame 6/LM 6000 upgrade as 
alternatives to reducing capital plant expenditures. 

Distribution: 

Torn Bagby 
Ralph Killian 
Brian Dietz 
Bryan Urban 

cc: Bob Carter 
Pete Wright 

P-KO0 11 6 6 
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PANDA-KATHLEEN PROJECT - Exhibit No. 
STATUS MEETING NOTES 

~~ - 

MEETING DATE APRIL 12, 1994 

Attendees: Ted Hollon 
Brian Dietz 
Kyle Woodruff 

cc: Taylor Cheek, Tom Bagby 

Ralph Kjllian 
Bill Nordlund 
Todd Carter 

1. 

0 

0 

2. 

0 

0 

3. 

0 

CITY OF LAKELAND 

Paul Elwing, Manager of Systems Planning for the City has requested additionai 
information for their evaluation of Panda's proposal for 35 MW. (See Taylor 
Cheek's internal memo of 4/12/94). Paul Elwing should provide the City's analysis 
of our proposal by Friday 4/15/94. 

Action: Todd to provide information to Paul by Wednesday 4/13/94. 

A letter is to be drafted requesting the basis of the City's firm price for wheeling and 
the terms of amortization of up front capital for interconnect cost for electricity and 
water. 

Action: TedKyle to draft letter. 

STEAM HOST 

Florida Juice should provide new steam consumption numbers by Friday April 15, 
1994. Numbers are required to see if QF status can be met with Florida Juice alone. 
"Off-peak" steam production will have to be provided by F.J.'s existing boilers since 
no auxiliary boiler is planned at the Kathleen facility. 

Action: Kyle to follow up with Randy Delliveniri at Florida Juice. 

Todd to run cost of steam vs. power. 

Distilled ulater plant output should be based on 3/4/94 water balance; not water 
balance in RFP. 

FPC INTERCONNECT 
L 

No response is required to FPC letter of 3/21/94 at this time. 

Act ion: Bill will review letter with Barrett Johnson. 

P-KO0 11 5 1 
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RUTHVEN PROPER’IY 

Panda plans to purchase 60’ addition to property on the south side of the present 
site. 

Will a permit to cut trees be required from the County? 

Action: Kyle to pursue with Mike Roddy at ECT. 

FLORIDA GAS 

Signing of contract delayed. 

P-KO0115 
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DOCkht No. QF94-150-060 Panda-Kathleen, L.P. 1 
FPSC Docket No. 9501 10-EI - 

Small Power Production and ) FPC Witness: MORRISON 

-- Qualifying Status ) Sheet 1 of 4 
(BAh4-17) Cogeneration F a c i l i t i e s  ) Exhibit No. , 

ORDER C M I N G  APeLICATION FOR CERTIFICATION , 

AS A QUALIFYING COGENERATION FACILITY 
’ (Issued October 20, 1994)  

Summary: 

On A u p s t  23, 1 9 9 4 ,  Tanda-Rat!?leen, L.P. (Panda-Kathleen) 
filed an appl icat ion for cartification of a cogencrat-ion f a c i l i t y  
as a qualifying F a c i l i t y  (QF) pursuant to Section 292.207(b) o f  

Tha facility w i l l  be located Fn 
Lakeland, Florida, and will cons i s t  of a combu8tion turbine 
gonerator, an unfired heat rrcavery b o i l e r  and a atoam turbine 
generator. The primary energy source will be natural gas. The 
maxiarum n e t  electric power production capacity o f  the facility 
will be approximately 135.9 Mw. Stea= recovered from the boil& 
will be usad for.fhe production of high quality dfstfllrd water. 
Electric power produced by thr facility vi11 b8 sold t a  Florida 
Power Corporation. Installation 02 the facility i o  scheduled t o  

,the commission’s Regulations. 

‘i 
.a 
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conmenca i n  January o f  1995 .  

cogeneration facility w i t h i n  the meaning o f  Sect ion  292.202(d) of 
the  Conmission‘s Regulations. 

Notica of th8 application was published in t h e  Federal 
Reqis tar  w i t h  comments, p r o f a s t s  or motions to intarvane due on 
o r  betore October  11, 1994. f/ No responses were receiv8d. 

Based on these facts, the facility fs a topping-cyclr 

pi-qcus i a n  : 

A .  

Sect ion  7 9 2 . 2 0 6  of the Commisbion’s Regulations roquirrs 
that no more than 50% of t!!e equfty interest in a QF be held, 
d i r e c t l y  or i n d i r e c t l y  through eubsidiaries ,  by electric 
utilities and/or electric utility holding companies 
(collectively, electric u t i l i t y  e n t i t i e s ) .  Fanda-Xathleen, which 

w i l l  cwn and apera te  the facility, is a vholly-owned suh8idiary 
0: zanda Energy Cgr?oration, a privatoly-held company. Panda 

il 5 5  Fed. Reg. 46,403 (19941, 
4 

143299 
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Energy c o r p o r a t i o n  is anqaqed i n  t h o  bus iness ,  throush its ' ' 

subsidiaries, of deve lop ing ,  Owning, and operating Q F s  and exempt 
wholesale qrnsrators (mGS) 
of hydrocarbons. 
Corporation, nor any of their affiliates, i s  engaged i n  the  * 

gemration or sale  Qt electric power, or ha8 any ownorship o r  
operating interest  in any electric faci1iti.s athar  than QFr and 
EWCs. 
i n t e r e s t s  in the facility, i t  satisfies the  Conmissicn's QP 
ownership criteria'. 

a/ and development and exploration 
Weither Panda-Kathlean nor Panda Energy 

Since no electric u t i l i t y  entitles have any ownership 

B. Us* of mermal outnut: 

According to Pa 
f a c i l i t y  w i l l  br U S a  
Panda-Kathleen, to p 
i n  indus tr ia l  p r O C e s  
t&rrPal encrqy OUfpU 

u 

3/ 

~n EWC i s  not considered an olectxic utility,cempany.under 
Section 2 ( a )  ( 3 )  o f  the Public Utility Xolding company ~ c t  of 
1935 (PrjHCA) I as amended by t h a  Enarqy P o l i c y  AcCI o f  2992, 
and ownershtg of an EWG do- not rrault i n  primary 
engagement i n  the ganeration or sal8 02 electric power under 
Sact ions  3 (17) (C) (ii) and 3 (18) ( 8 )  (ii) of the. Federal Power 
Act (a S e c t f a n s  32(.) and 32(j) of PVKCA) . 
f f  the us0 of a cogeneration facility's t h r z i a l  output 
constitutes a comaon industrial or commercial application,  
it is prosumptively useful  and the Commission perfoms nc 
further analysis regarding the ulrrfulness of the thermal 
output. lf, on t h  other hand, *e use of tha  thermal 
outzut  involve8 a technology which is not common, separate 
standards apply depending upon whether the user is or is not 
an affiliate of the cogenerator. In the case o f  a themal 
h o s t  +bat i s  not a f f i l i a t e d  w i t h  t!!e cogenerator,  plausible 
evidence o f  e i t h e r  an arm's-lengfh market for the t h a n a 1  
outgut or an end product  prcduced vim the  a i d  of that  
thermal autput astablishes USefUln&ss. In tha case of a 
thersnal h o s t  t h a t  is an affiliats of the caqenerator or 
where the thermal host is the cogenerator itself, 

. 

quantitative e c o n o a i c  j w t i f i c a t i o n  established usefulness. L -  

Set- LaJet9 FPSC Docket No. 95011O-EI 
FPC Witness: M O W O N  
Exhibit No. , (BAM-17) 
Sheet 2 of 4 
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Based on the infomation provided by Panda-Kathleen, t 3 e  
facility satisfies the operating and efficiency standards 
established in Section 292 .205  of the Commissionrs Regulatfons. 
'findinq: 

The topping-cycle coganeration facilityr as descr ibed  in the 
application submitted by Panda-Kathlesn, meets the requiraments 
established in Section 292.263(b) o f  the Cczuuission's Regulations 
ragardinq certification as a qualafying'coqeneration facility. 

"s=: 
Grants cartfficatiun of qualifying status t o  the facility 

referenced in the submittal f i l e d  on August 23, 1 9 9 4 ,  by Panda- 
Kathleen pursuant t o  Section 292.207(b) of the  CoarmiaSian's 
Regulations and Section 3 ( 1 6 ) ( B )  of the Federal Powrr A c t ,  as 
amended by Sactien 201 of +he Public Utility Regulatory P o l i c i e s  
A c t  of 1978 (PURSA), provided that thr facility i s  owned and 
o p a a t e d  in the manner described i n  the application and this 
order. A /  To +ha extant that facts or representations which 
form the basis f o r  this o r d u  change, this order cannot.ba relied 
upon. mil8 the f a c i l i t y  night still be a QF under the changed 
circumstancaa, self or Conmission recutif icat ion at that po in t  
vi11 be nacassary. z/ 

A/ C e e i f i c a t i o n  a8 a QF serves only t o  establish eligibility 
for benef i t s  provid8d by PVRPA, as inplmanted by L\e 
Comxlasaion'6 Regulations, 18 C.F.R. P e  292. It does no t  relieva a facility o f  any other requirements of local, state  
or federal law, including those regarding siting, 
construction, operation, licensing and pollution abatrment. 
Certificatfen does not establ ish any property rights, 
resolve competing claims f o r  a s i t e ,  or aut3orize  
construction. 

c See c i t i z d  or Clean Air and Red aimina our mviron3ent v .  
Yewbav C c m a r a t i o n  , 5 6  FEXC y 6 1 , 4 2 8  (1991), and X i - 3 a n d  
C o g e n e r a t i o n  VentCre  L i m i t e d  Part3ershia a n ?  CXS Kidland, 
Xnc., 5 6  FEZC 4 61,363. (1991). c -  
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6 ' r  3794 
gut.hor itieg: 

Authority to act on this m a t t e  is delegated to the 
~ i z a c t o r ,  Div i s ion  of Applications, pursuant to section 375.308 
of the Commission's Regulations. ' 

This order constitutes final agency ac t ion .  Rewests f a r  
rehearing by the Comntission may ba filed within 30 day6 O f  the  
date o f  issuance of this order, pursuant t o  18 C,F*R. Section 
385.713 

Donald J *  Gelinas, Director 
Division of Applications 

I 
I j FPSC Docket NO. 950110-EI 

Exhibit No, , (BAM-17) 
FPC Witness: MORRISON 
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MEMORANDUM 

DATE: April 7, 1993 

TO: Ann Burgr 

Ted Hollon FROM: . 

SUBJECT: Panda-Kathleen 

- \  

u 

Lakeland, Florida 

FPSC Docket No. 950110-EI 
FPC Witness: MORRISON 

Sheet 1 of 1 
Exhibit No. , @AM- 1 8) 

c 

Due to the in-service date election granted by FPC, the 74.9 MW facility in Florida is in the 
process of being "mothballed." 

A new project schedule is being formulated to depict a 1/1/97 Commercial Operation Date to 
FPC. Correspondingly, a new "drop-dead" construction date (to be included in the revised FPC 
rate agreement) shall be 1/1/96. However, Panda will need to start 3 or 4 months earlier to allow 
for testing, training, etc, before coming on line. 

Whilst most project related development activities are being slowed or postponed, there are 
several activities that would be prudent and cost effective for Panda to continue. These activities 
include air and water use/discharge permitting and right of way surveying, environmental audit, 
and land options. 

ECT has advised that new, more stringent regulations for emissions are being considered for 
Florida, especially in the Polk County area due to heavy concentrations of industrial emissions. 
Should Panda delay this permit to coincide with the in-service date slippage, our air permit may 
be more difficult (and costlier) to obtain. Additionally, the water use/discharge permit is critical 
activity that needs to be determined at an early stage of the project to avoid surprises, later on. 

Panda has previously approved a $47,000 N E  agreement with ECT for the above permitting 
effort. We need to continue this effort as it corresponds to the revised FPC schedule and the 
validity of the permits ensuring that they are in effect before construction begins. 

W T  Unless otherwise instructed, I will proceed in this direction.\ .-. 
, 

cc: R. Carter 
.M. Bentley 
D. Lindloff 
B. Dietz 

P-KO01149 
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Panda Energy Corporation 
KaUJ..n (FPC) - IS MW Project 

hvelopnwnl Assamplions 

80.00% 
s6l35o.ooo Y.!W 

900% la 
I .- , 18 - 

0.00% 
$0 

0.00% 
0 

S l d "  

OIWd. Pud. 
10.00% 10.00% 

5om 50." lOllOIFbld% 
1311% i625n 19 FUpYNI 

110.168.750 110.168.750 12.W YIR 

3.00% 
0.00% 
4.00% 

u3stm 

34.00% 
1 .00% 
0.00% 
0 . m  

1.- 
S 5 . ~ . 0 0 0  

lM.oo)( 
20 

18 
s.sn 

I 

112.100 

s1.Mo.m L L z h  
S78.300.000 $600 Ilm 

12 
J.n-91 

0.00% 
Y5.3W.Mo 

s.w% 

Schedule 0 
Ppp. 101 1 
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- - - - - - - -  - - -  



FPSC Docket No. 9501 10-EI 
FPC Witness: MORRISON 

Sheet 3 of 5 
Exhibit No. , (BAM-19) 



12122'93 4 22 PM schedule B 
P . g s 2 d 3  

Famign Wahholdnq T u  

Senlor Drbt Coverage R.lb 

Sub DeM Coverage bllo 

Panda Energy Corporation 
Kathleen (FPC) - 76 H W  Projet3 
Projected Cash Flow Stalancnl 

11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 
V.uEnd.d VurEnd.d V a r E n d d  V.uEnd.d YurEnded VurEnd.d VurEnd.d V0arEnd.d VurEnded VearEndd VurEndd VarEnded VaarEndd 

2006 m 7  2oM loas 2010 201 1 1012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 

$6.656.626 $7.505.416 $6.401.478 $9.346.r00 110.355fPI $11.370.551 112.497.- Sl3.671233 $15.024.419 115.822.076 Sl9.353.715 SZQ.202.819 121.065.669 

0 
0 
0 

4.W1.025 
4.628245 

972.400 
0 
0 
0 
0 

(1.467.4al) 

0 
0 
0 

4.838.711 
4208.932 

972.400 
0 
0 
0 
0 

(1.487.100) 

0 2  
0 
0 

4,878,326 
3.731.W 

056.PsQ 
0 
0 
0 
0 

(1.487.400) 

-2%; 0 
0 
0 

4" 
3152547 

osspso 
0 
0 
0 
0 

(1.467.7.40) 

0 
0 
0 

2.709.071 
214220 

0 
0 
0 
0 

(1,487.UK3 

4.910.753 

0 
0 
0 

5.OW.Ml 
2,116Ed2 
K6.m 

0 
0 
0 
0 

(1.487.7.40) 

0 
0 
0 

5.157.000 

m6.PsQ 
0 
0 
0 
0 

1.4m.97a 

(1.487.4001 

0 
0 
0 

5.223.306 
767.151 
941.037 

2.m.wo 
0 
0 
0 

(1.487.4f-w 

0 
0 
0 

5.120.580 
0 

94 1 P37 
0 
0 
0 
0 

(1.487.400) 

0 
0 
0 

5.211.641 
0 

176.128 
0 
0 
0 
0 

(1.487.400) 

0 
0 
0 

1.179.Ib6 
0 

941.037 
0 
0 
0 
0 

(1.437.roo) 

0 
0 
0 

1.315.757 
0 

941.037 
0 
0 
0 
0 

(1.487.400) 

0 
' 0  

0 
1,497.878 

0 
941,037 

0 
0 
0 
0 

(1.487.4W) 
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

15.571.705 16.a47.7W 16.500.503 1 6 . 0 9 1 . ~  16.762.- 18.W.844 l8.3SS.S 21.115.356 19.5S5.635 19.n2.444 19.986517 20.S72.213 22.017.183 

so so u) so so so so so so so so so Io 

$3.140313 $3.373269 $3.604.666 $3.849%33 $3.735.434 S4.3Old37 $4.652.113 U.Sl2.003 $9.799.318 S1.972.244 S 1 . ~ . 6 5 2  $2.097221 12201.718 
4 2 e n  5.mx 73mb assn s.ux io.mn io.= i i . 6 1 ~  1 2 . 4 7 ~  1 2 . 5 1 ~  1 2 . m  i2.Mn 12 .94~  

4 . 2 8 ~  S.MY 739(( 8.un @.an IOMX io.cuu 1 1 . 6 1 ~  1 2 . 4 7 ~  1 3 . 5 9 ~  i4.40n is.mn 1 5 . 5 2 ~  

S3.140.313 $3.373.269 13.604.866 SI.MS.933 $3.736.434 S4.3BlY7 $4,652.113 U.912.003 19.799.318 S17.750.2M $17.907.865 118.174.991 $19,815.455 

1.68 1.71 1.78 1.83 1.80 1 .M LOQ 217 

__  .* 
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12/22/93 4 22 PM 
Pad. Energy Corporation 

K.lhleen(FPC) - 76MW Project 
Projected CJsh Flow Statement 

Nal Income 

+ Senior W l  Finwncmg 
+ Subordinated D . M  Financing 
+ Equity Innstmenl 
+ hpreculmn 6 AMmalyM 
+ Interest Expanse 
+ Relurr of T h n o  Ovrhul  R.U(V. 
+ Retuse d D e M  Swwa R- 
(-) Conrlructlon C a t s  
(-) D.vatop”l M a  
(-) F~uncinp b t r  (IneM(ng C.pY.Hhd IntMnC) 
(-) M d l l r m  toTusbn” O ” d  R n m u  
(-) Addi~rm to W S m o  R u r n  

Cash Flar An1l8M lor lhhl S m n w  

Debt Semce 
Inteml Ewmnu 
Senw Bonds 
Subordmnated Lorn  

Pnncipal Payments 
Senw Bonds’ 
Sub0rdinmt.d Loan 

Total DeM senwe 

Net Cash Flow 

Forewn Wahhddmg Tax 

Eqully Dtstrlbullon 

IRR % 

Panda Dlslrlbullon 

IRR X 

Srnlar Debt Coverage Ratto 

Sub Debt Coverage Ratlo 

24 25 26 27 28 29 30 

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 1024 2025 

S21.914.567 122.1321.960 $25.lW.a9 m . i s . 1 4 ~  s27.zm.7m s2a.370.a7 szs.3oz.2n 

Y u r E n b d  Y-Endd Y a r E n b d  Y u r E n d d  Y o r E n d d  YurEndd Y u r E n b d  

0 
0 
0 

1.771.0#) 
0 

924.646 
0 
0 
0 
0 

0 
(1.487.400) 

z3.izz.e.n 

0 0 
0 0 
0 0 

2.333.814 112,561 
0 0 

924,646 136.789 
0 0 
0 0 
0 0 
0 0 

0 0 

24.393.020 23.S6039 

(1 ,487,400) (1.407.400) 

. o  
0 
0 

450.204 
0 

924.w6 
0 
0 
0 
0 

(1.487.4001 

16.042ws 

0 
0 
0 

637.m 
0 

924.646 
0 
0 
0 
0 

(1.487.4QO) 
0 

27339.7S6 

0 
0 

. o  
919.166 

0 

0 
0 
0 
0 

m7.7a 

(1.487.400) 
0 

28.7lOpzS 

0 
0 
0 

1.4M.803 
0 

3.w7.763 
0 
0 
0 
0 

(1.487.400) 
0 

33Pl.Ue 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

to to to to to to to 

S2.312287 $2.439.302 12.398.033 12.604260 S2.733.OM UB?lPm U.P2.144 
13.03U 13.11X 13.18Y 1325% 1331% 13- 13.41U 

SM.810.585 $2l.S3,718 $21.564298 S25.438.336 S24.605.818 S25.WB23 S29.899L95 
15.92% 1625Y 18.SlY 16.74W 1891% 17- 1724U 

- - - - - - - -  

Total 
Gmlr8cl 

1354.502.637 

11.350.000 
0 

20.337.500 
ll8.wb.197 
85.891.057 
25.360.328 
2.000.000 

(78.uro.000) 
(1 1.566.000) 
(13.035.942) 
(43.821 .Zoo) 

0 

540.804.577 

(e5.89t.057) 
0 

(81.350.000) 
0 

(167.241.057) 

S7M.045.634 - 
to 

SOl.SM.941 

Scheaule B 
P*30l3 
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DATE: 

TO: 

FROM: 

SUBJECI-: 

MEMORANDUM 

FPSC Docket No. 950110-EI 
FPC Witness: MORRISON 

Sheet 1 of 2 
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~ 

Miminary Schedule for Support of Financial Closing 

August 16,1994 

Ralph Killian Jim Adam 
Bill Nordlund Tadd carter 
Pete Wright Tom Horn 
Ted Hollon Brian Dieb 

KyleWoodruff 

Panda Kathleen Project 

Bryan Urban 

Attached is a prelirmnary schedule for support of a 12/15/94 6nancial closing for the 
Panda-Kathleen Project. This is a very aggressive schedule due to the "hold" which has 
been placed on many activities. Now that the issue of plant size appears to be resolved 
with FPSC, we need to proceed immediatdy with the following activities: 

1) File QF Application 

2) Sign Walsh Letter of Agreement and begin EPC negotiations. 

3) Pay invoices which are in arrears so environmental permitting and 
engineering support c a r r p r o g r e s s ~ e d .  

4) Begin contract negotiations with the C i  of Lakeland for construction 
of electrical interconnection. 

5 )  Begin acquisition of pipeline R0.W. 

6) Sale of distilled water. 

A meeting is scheduled for 3:oO PM today, August 16,1994 to discuss these items. 

cc: BobCarter 
Janice Carter 

SPECIALLY 
RESTRICTED 
PK 043239 



. 
RCTMTY 

ORGANIZATIONAL MEETINQ WITH 989 

FPSC CAPACITY RESOLUTION 

EPC CONTRACT 

POWER SALES AQREEMENT 

2F CERTIFICATION 

YPELINE R O W  

M S  TRANSMISSION 

;As SUPPLY 

XECTRICAL INTERCONNECT 

)TEAM SALE AGREEMENT 

)ISTILLED WATER AGREEMENT 

tAW WATER SUPPLY 

!NVIRONMENTAL PERMITTING 

AIR 

WATER USE 

INDUSTRIAL WASTEWATER 

STORMWATER 

ECOLOGICAL 

LANDUSEIZONINO 

1 L M CONTRACT 

:OWLET€ ENGINEERS REVIEW 

INANCIAL CLOSING 

9130194 

9130194 

WmM 

8130194 

W 1 m 4  

813(3184 

Qmyo4 

" 
12/1/94 

1111194 

1- 

12/1/94 

W l W  

1Y1m 

1W14/84 

WlwW 

lW l4 /84  

1WM 

112194 

l W l u o 4  

"E 

1 W l u o 4  

1 W l W  

1 W l W  

l W l u o 4  

1011184 

1ff14/W 

l W l u o 4  

1W14/84 

12/ luo4 

12/14/84 

1113191 

1211uo4 

1 M  

12/14/84 

1Mh 

1W1uo4 

1111194 

12/15194 

PETE WRMHT 

BILL NORDLUND 

KYLE WOODRUFF 

KYLE WOODRUFF 

KYLE WOODRUFF 

JIMAMMS 

JIM ADAME 

KYLE m u f f  

8111 NORDLUND 

TOOQCARTER 

KYLE WOOORUFF 

KYLE WOODRUFF 

BRIAN METZ 

98s 

PETE WRIGHT 

"m WITH FPSC WIYW 

GREEMENT LTR-SKIN REQD 

IUBWITALON HOLD 

IEED OPTKmS AS MINIMUM 

n T  COMMENTS RECYD 

8/16/94 
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MEMORANDUM 

DATE: September 26,1994 

TO: Ted Hollon Pete Wright 

I 
I 
I 

Ralph Killian Tom Horn 
D a d  Lmdloff Carlos Campo 
Brian Dietz Stwe Studebaker 
Todd Carter David Mayer 

Sallit Gray I 
FROM: Kyle Woodruff Cd) 

I. SUBJECT: Panda Kathleen 

I '  
A Kathleen project meeting will be held this afternoon in the main conference room at 4:OO PM. 

Attached is a schedule of activities and assignments to support financial closing. This schedule 
will be used as the meeting agenda 

Your participation is essential for the success of this project and the completion of financial 
closure by 12/15/94. 

I 
I 

cc: BobCarter I 

SPECIALLY 
RESTRICTED 
PK 037161 



Panda-Kathleen, L.P. 
Financial Closing - December 15, 1994 

September 26,1994 

n ww- 
dud COMMENTS ;I€+- ACTIVITY DUE DATE LATE DATE RESOURCES . -  

1 ) Lender Selection 

EPC 

1 ) Complete negotiation of EPC 
Contract. 

2) Conform Scope of Work for EPC. 

3) Prepare attachments for EPC 

4) 

Contract. 

Revise EPC Contract and Scope of 
Work. 

5) Soils Testing 

1 ) Monitor progress and follow up. 

1 ) Acquire options. 

09/15/94 

09/30/94 

09130194 

09/30/94 

09130194 

10/14/94 

11/23/94 

09/30/94 

10/05/94 

. . . . . . . . 

10/14/94 

1011 4/94 

10/14/94 

10/14/94 

10/31/94 

11/23/94 

1 0/14/94 

Pete Wright 

Kyle Woodruff 

Darol Lindloff 

David Mayer 

Kyle Woodruff 
Chadboume b 

Parke 

Todd Carter 
Tom Turner 

Construction loan will be 
required. 

Need revised EPC Contract from 
Walsh by 09/26/94. 

Need Scope of Work conformed 
to LO1 of 08/03/94 and proposal 
of 07/01/94. 

Prepare attachments for EPC 
Contract by 1 0/01/94. 

Make final selection of GeoTech. 

In progress. All land owners 
contacted. 

Page 1 
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Pa nda-Ka t h leen, L. P. 
Financial Closing - December 15, 1994 L. 

September 26,1994 

L 

ACTIVITY DUE DATE LATE DATE RESOURCES COMMENTS 
f 

I I I n 

2) Acquire FPC approval of easement 
utilization. 

3) Prepare plats for property owners. 

1 ) Prepare and issue Scope of Work. 

Gas Tran 

1 ) Complete Transmission Agreement. 

2) Complete Construction 
Reimbursement Agreement. 

1 ) Select gas supplier. 

2) Negotiate Supply Agreement. 

1) Negotiations with city regarding 
Construction Contract. 

2) Negotiations with city regarding 
Wheeling Agreement. 

09130194 

09130194 

. . . . .  

01 101 195 

09130194 

09130194 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

09130194 

09130194 

. . . . . . . . . . .  

0911 6/94 

09H 6194 

1011 4/94 

10/14/94 

................... 

02/01/95 

1011 4/94 

1 OM94 

I 011 4/94 

1011 4/94 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

10/01/94 

I0101 194 

Page 2 

Kyle Woodruff 
ECT, Inc. 

Universal Ensco 

...................................... 

Carlos Campo 

Jim Adams 
Chadboume & 

Parke 

Jbn Adams 
Chadbourne & 

Park. 

Jkn Adams 

W W m  am- 
J V A  

n & m  

wm 
PlWY: 

Revised request form to be, 4r-C- 

submitted 09/26/94. v m o  

As required. mlx(L 

In progress. Finalized wording 
by 

J h  Adams 
Chadboume & 

Parke 

Ralph Killian 
Steve Studebaker 

FPSC Docket No. 950110-EI 
FPC Witness: MORRISON 
Exhibit No. , (BAM-21) 
Sheet 3 of 5 

In progress. Finalized wording 
by 

Bid proposals received. 

Meeting on 10/04/94 with the 
City of Lakeland. 



Panda-Kathleen, L.P. September 26,1994 
Financial Closing - December 15, 1994 

L. 

1 ) Identify potential users. 

2) Prepare offer. 

3) Negotiate Sales Agreement. 

4) Evaluate delivery system (i.e., truck, 
pipe, etc.). 

Envl 

1) Air 

2) Water Use 

3) Industrial Wastewater 

4) . Stormwater 

09/30/94 

09/30/94 

09130194 

09/30/94 

11/01/94 

11/01/94 

11/21/94 

0911 5/94 

10/1#94 

1 Ol14194 

1011 4/94 

10/14/94 

1 1 / l  4/94 

1 1 I1 5/94 

1 111 6/94 

10/05/94 

Page 3 

Todd Carter 

Carlos Campo 

Kyk Woodruff 
ECT, Inc. 

Contacts made with Publix, 
Florida Juice. Bottling of water 
being considered. 

Draft Air Permit issued. To be 
revised by FDEP at Panda 
request prior to Public Notice 
(1 0/01/94). 

Recommendation made to 
SWFWMD Board to grant permit 
(08126194). Board meets 
10131 194. 

Public notice in progress. 

Public notice in progress. 

FPSC Docket No. 950110-EI 
FPC Witness: MORRISON 
Exhibit No. 
Sheet 4 of 5 
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Panda-Kathleen, L.P. 

- 
5 )  Ecological 1111 5194 12/01/94 

6) Land Use/Zoning 1011 494 10128194 

-am COEapproved. FDEP I Wm Ut30 

reviewing. W=lX 

Review of Board of County 
Commissions on 09/27/94 to be 
rescheduled 1011 8/94 or sooner. I 

WCc& 

Page 4 

September 26,1994 
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Panda-Kathleen, L.P. 
Financial Closing - December 15, 1994 

September 30,1994 

I 
I I I 

ConstructionlPennanent Fi 

1 ) Lender Selection 

2) Equity Commitment 

3) Due Diligence 

4) Loan Commitment Letter 

5) Lender Due Diligence 

EPC Contract 

1 ) Complete Negotiation of EPC 
Contract 

2) Conform Scope of Work to Revised 
EPC Contract 

3) Prepare Attachments for EPC 

4) Soils Testing 

Contract 

QF Certification 

1 ) Monitor Progre& and Follow Up 

0911 6/94 

0913WS4 

09130194 

OW30194 

10114194 

11123194 

28 
10411194 

25% 
lOr*94 

12181194 

10131194 

1 1/15/94 

Pete Wright 

Pete Wright 

Pete Wright 

Pet. Wright 

Kyk Wood& 

h r o l  Undbff 

David Uayer 

Kyb Woodruff 

I I 

Construction loan will be I 

required. Due di/igenw 
mquired. \ 

Need revised EPC Contract from 
Walsh by 09/26/94. 

Need Scope of Work conformed 
to LO1 of 08/03/94 and proposal 
of 07/01/94. 

Prepare attachments for EPC 
Contract by 10/01/94. 

Make final selection of GeoTech. 

Awaiting 30 day period. Public 
Notice issued on 08/31/94. 

Page 1 



Panda-Kathleen, L.P. September 30,1994 
Financial Closing - December 15, 1994 

L 

n 
3" 
J B W  

I 

Pipeline ROW 

1 ) Acquire Options 

2) 

3) 

Acquire FPC Approval of Easement 
Utilization 

Prepare Plats For Property Owners 

Pipeline Engineering & Construction 

1 ) Prepare And Issue Scope Of Work 

Gas Transmission 

1 ) Complete Transmission Agreement . 

2) Complete Construction 

3) Optional Lateral Construdion 

Gas Supply 

1 ) Select Gas Supplier 

Reimbursement Agreement . 

Agreement 

b 

09130194 

09130194 

09/30/94 

01/01/96 

09130194 

0913W84 

09130194 

09130194 

10131194 

10/14/94 

10/14/94 

02/01/95 

31 
l o t s 9 4  

Todd Carter 

Kyk Woodruff 

Carlos Campo 

Jim Mams 

Jim Ad8ms 

Jim Adam8 

C n e  

I Ollm 
PtWLr; 
moth In progress. All land owners 

contacted. 

Revised request form to be 
submitted 09/26/94. 

As required. 

- + jO% Engineer's estimate 
requid for lender. 

Selected FGT. Negotiations in 
pmgress. 

Bid proposals received. 
Anticipate award week of 
09/26/94. 

Page 2 



Exhibit No. ; @AM-22) 
Sheet 3 of 4 

Panda-Kathleen, L.P. 
Financial Closing - December 15, 1994 

September 30,1994 

2) Negotiate Supply Ag 

Electrical Interconnect 

1) Negotiations with City Regardin0 

2) Negotiations with City Regardw 

Construction Contract 

Wheeling Agreement 
~~ 

Steam Sales Agreement 

1 ) Steam Sales Agreement 

Distilled Water Sales Agreement 

1 ) Identify Potential Users 

2) Prepare Offer 

3) Negotiate Sales Agreement 

4) Evaluate Delivery System (im, truck, 
pipe, etc.) 

10/14/94 

091w94 

OW30194 

09130194 

09/30/94 

09130194 

10101194 

10101184 

1011494 

11101194 

11101194 

12101194 

11101194 

Jim Adam 

Kyle Woodruft 

David Mayer 

Todd Carter 

Todd C8rt.r 

Todd Carter 

Todd Carter 

Meeting on 10/04/94 wiih the 
City of Lakeland. 

To be modeled after Brandywine 
Agreement. 

Contacts made with Florida 
Juice, Zephyr Hills and Bitco. 
Bottling of water being 
considered. 

Page 3 
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Sheet4Of 4 

September 30,1994 Panda-Kathleen, L.P. 
Financial Closing - December 15, 1994 \ 

i n 
whaw 
JUln 

I Lab- 

I I 

fnvironmental Permitting ’ 

I )  Air 
[#, 3jw 

I Y ’  

2)  Water Use 

3) Industrial Wastewater 

5) Ecological 

6) Land UselZoning 

O&M Contract 

1 ) Add to Brandywine Contract 

11/15/84 

11/01/84 

11/01194 

11/21/94 

11116194 

10114194 

09/30/84 

12/01/94 

11/14/94 

11/16/94 

11/16/94 

12/01/94 

10128/@4 

10114194 

Kyle Woodruff 

Kyk Woodruff 

Kyk Woodruff 

.............................. ---... . .....--.....-....-. ,.-..-.. ,..-I.------ - - ................. ..,-.- .... -” - - - - ---. ..-_I 

Kyk Woodruff 

Kylr Woodruff 

Brian D&h 

I I 

Draft Air Permit issued. To be 
revised by FDEP at Panda 
request prior to Public kotice 
(1 0/01/!34). 

Recommendation made to 
SWFWMD Board tp grant permit 
(08126194). Board meets 
10/31/94. 

FDEP Deemed Complete 
09/02/94. 

COE approved. FDEP 
reviewing. 

Review of Board of County 
Commissions on 09/27/94 to be 
rescheduled 10/18/94 or sooner. 

Negotiations started with U-Tech 
09/28/94. 

Page 4 
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FPSC DOCKET NO. 950110-E1 
EXHIBIT NO. (B AM-23) 

CONSISTING OF ELEVEN PAGES 

PANDA HAS ASSERTED A CLAIM OF 
CONFIDENTIALITY FOR EACH 

PAGE OF THIS EXHIBIT 
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Project Rnoncs - i#)I F h r  
1251 Avenue d tho Amrdas 
N w  Yodk New Yo& 10116.3136 
FU No: (212) 702-6442 

T h e  B a n k  o f  T o k y o  
New York Group 

Facsimile Transmission Cover Letter 

October 18,1994 

MESSAGE NO,: h;\gmdr wnda\1018M.&o 

NUMBER OF PAGES: 11 
(ind. Cover Lottor) 

TO Yr. James b. Wright 
Hr. John Bud 
Mr. Tom Horn 
Panda Enm CorporatJon 

FACSIMILE NO.: (214) 9804815 

COW=. M8.Y 

second &aft d the Indidon of Interest for tha 
cility for your nvicm. C b n g a  t" the earlier 

F'PSC Docket No. 950110-EI 
FPC Witness: MORRISON 

Sheet 1 of 11 
Exhibit No. , @AM-23) 

CONFIDENTIAL 
PK 019528 



I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
t 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

FPSC Docket No. 9501 10-El 
CCJ 18 '94 11:- BOT T R 6 l  FPC Witness: MORRISON p. 2/11 

PANDA-KATHLEEN, LP. 
October78, 7994 
Pago 2 

Exhibit No. , (BAM-23) 
Sheet 2 of 11 

Once you have reviewed the Indicetion, please call me to discuss it in detail. 

Bert Regards, 

ZIM 

CONFIDENTIAL 
PK 019529 



FPSC Docket No. 950110-EI 
FPC Witness: MORRISON 

Sheet 3 of 11 
QCT ia '94 ii:m BOT RET Exhibit No. , @AM-23) P . 3 1 1  

The Bank of Tokyo Trust Company Baysrische Vereinsbank AG - -  

I 

I 

I 
E 
I 

Mr. J a w s  D. Wright 
vla Proofdent & Chid Rnandd Officer 
Panda Gwmy Corporation 
4100 Spin0 Valley 
suit. lo01 
Dallas, T W  75244 

DRAFT , 

CONFIDENTIAL 
PK 019530 



FPSC Docket No. 950110-EI 
FPC Witness: MORRISON 

- Exhibit No. 9 PAM-23) 18 '9 11:- BOT P . 4 / 1 ?  - 
Sheet 4 of 11 

Mr. James 0. Wright 
Octo& 18, 7994 
Page 2 

DRAFT 

if me terms and conditions contained in this letter are acceptable to you, p k r u  cowrtoroign all 
thno orighak on the appmprktm Uno below and mum two uucutod originals to The Bank of 
~ 0 k y 0  T W ~  Company by no later tim Odober 
pro9osal, the Banks wlll proceed with their due diltgona octtvitisr. 

By couwtadgning this docurnant, you agne to rehnbune the Banks for dl their cost$ and 
experms iMxvnd In connection with ttw tfywdion DUGn &xw nses am undontood to 

W s o d  contamplatad hareby w h e w  o( not such a tTpn,ppiinn is eonsummatad and 
w h e w  or not the Bank nqwst or mwko credit eppfov8l from thmir  nspectivr 

1894. Upon receipt of this executed I 

fee6 2 I 0w.d to thiird4atv cont&tants 

0rgl-m. 

Stmmly, 

Tha Burk of Tokyo Trust Company Baprfscho Voreirubank A 0  

-_ . .  
CONFIDENTIAL 
PK 019531 



I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
C 
I 
I 
c 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
t 
I 

FPSC Docket No. 95011043 
FPC Witness: MORRISON 
Exhibit No. , (BAM-23) P . S / l ?  
Sheet 5 of 11 

DRAFT 
E x h l b l t  A 

Indication of Interest for a Credit Facility a 

P a n d l K a t h l e e n ,  L.P, 
mr 

CONFIDENTIAL 
PK 019532 



OCT ia '94 ii:m BOT m 
a 

P a n d a  K a t h l e e n ,  L i m l t e d  P a r t n e r s h i D  
DRAFT' 

0 p . m t O r :  

The conshction cantrpd shall provide for aggmgota 
liquidibd damages with a a p  acceptable to the Banks. 

Tho Construction Contrscdots obligations will bo 
rupporbd by gupnnties or othw fwms of assumem f" 
parties and with tomu and condition6 In di respects 
-table to the Ranks. 

To bo m g e d  by Pmda Wittr an experionad, third- 
party, pamr pknt opedtor and on tmr in oil respects 
acceptable to tho Banks. The opention, and 
mahtrnrnce agreement shd bo for a tm and shall 

provisions, budgotwy dovicu/tontrols, wadit supports if 
nocess8ty md o h  provisions in rll nrpettr rathfadory 
to tho Bonkr. 

contrinprrtormulce,guamnt~,borwrlp#rany 

Fud Supplkn: 
,- 

?.., , ,.-I . 

FPSC Docket No. 950110-EI 
FPC Witness: MORRISON 
Exhibit No. , @AM-23) 
Sheet6 of 11 

CONFIDENTIAL 
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P a n d a  K a t h l e e n ,  L i m i t e d  P a r t n e r s h l p  DRAFT 
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Exhibit A Page 3 

Prior to finandal dosing, 

viwrd th. mul- 
relationshio to. and 

baMyth8 B-avo n 

atum of. the Thermal Fn erqy 
mionshin with the me mal 

pmsumbttvdv useful n 

~ U a l ~ "  rtrturh 1- 

of the Pmtee!. 

I be in all nso-b la to the 

FPSC Docket No. 9501 10-EJ 
FPC Witness: MORRISON 
Exhibit No. 9 @AM-23) PK 019534 
Sheet 7 of 11 

CONFIDENTIAL 



OCT ia ’94 ii:im BOT T R L ~  

DRAY’T P a n d a  K o t h l e o n ,  L i m i t e d  P a r t n e r s h i p  
“A Page 4 

I 
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I 

Commitment Fm: 

intemat Rakt: 

$1 00,000 per mnum payable b the Administrative Agmt 
yearly in advancat; the Adminisfrativo F w  w i  be adjushd 
annually ig occordaoce with the inwase or d e w u a  in 
the Consumer PrIw Index 

FPSC Docket No. 950110-EI 
FPC Witness: MORRISON 

Sheet 8 of 11 
Exhibit No. , (BAM-23) 

CONFIDENTIAL 
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OCT le '94 11:im BOT TRUST 

P a n d r  K a t h l e e n ,  L i m i t e d  P a r t n e r r h i D  - 

Gtlbit A 5 

h b t  covereg. 
R d o  Provisions: 

Funds held in the AddNonal Callatad Account may bm 
mbased to the Prvjec! with the consent of the Burlo 
on= the Projads financial performam0 has "d 
cettah p c r f o m c e  smdwds which shall In JI mpect8 
be satisfactory to the Bankr. 

Thr C W  Faciri will contain debt cowragr ntk 
pmvidons usud and customary tar this type of fadity and 
 kcto tory to tho Emkr. 

Tberr provisions Will nquim that a podon d !he Projects 
excess cash flaw be used to M e r  way debt or fund tho 
debt sm'co nsonm account basad upon th. following 
atculrkd dobt c b v m g i  ntk rcheduk: 

I -.- 

FPSC Docket No. 950110-EI 
FPC Witness: MORRISON 

Sheet 9 of 11 
Exhibit No. -3 @AM-23) 

l o n ~ 1 W A M  

CONFIDENTIAL 
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OCT 18 ’94 11rlBF1.l BOT 
a 

P a n d a  K a t h l r e n ,  L l m l t e d  P a r t n e r g h i D  
Exhibit A Pago 6 

- -  

Conditions Pmodont 
to Closing: 

The Borrower shall provide an imv~&ie and 
unconditional commitment by the equtty investors to 
provide the Equity Funding with adequate a d i t  support In 
fotm and substance h all respects rccepbbk to tho 
Bankr. 

In addhion to thoro which am stated in thh Indication, the 
defnitiv. d i t  agnrmontwil contain conditiotu 
prscedont to dorlnq which am dewnod qpmpriato in tho 
context of the proposed transaction. Thoso conditions wll 
indud., but not bo Mted to, tho Bmks’ teviw of 
docurnents, satisfaction with tho legal and ngulatMy 
statu8 oftha Project and r8wipt of t)u necessay wdit 
committw rppnmlr. 

L; a 

3 

FPSC Docket No. 950110-EI 
Fpc Witness: MORRISON 
Exhibit No. , ”-23) CONFIDENTIAL 
Sheet 10 of 11 PK 019537 
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OCT 18 '94 11:llPM BOT 

- P a n d a  K a t h l e e n ,  L i m i t e d  P a r t n e r s h i p  DRAFT 
Exhibit A -478 7 

Auignnwnta and 
Padicfpetiont : 

Bank Conrultanb: 

The total rrauity package shall be In all respectt 
satisfactory to the Banks. 

The Banks shall consider providing other ancillary credit 
facilities, such as prrfomanta latten of Cndk as may bo 
mquired by third partlos to guaranty the performanw of 
tha Project Such Other Credit Facilities shall be provided 
on terms and conditlont In Ji respects acceptablr to the 
B8tlkS. 

The Banks may assign their rights and obtigatlons under 
the cndft rgrwments 01 grant participations thenin to 
other banks. E8ch ?uignoo All beeomo 8 party to the 
credit agreements and wiU relievo the selling Bank of b 
obligations with rospocl to the asaignod portion of Its 
CommitmWlt. 

ma Bonb may retain th. s o w i c e s ~ ~ . i t a r 4  88 
wind in moir r ~ l e  -on, to 

' 

so hem on ma- 

in connection wtth tlrb 

Ttn9 -dit Facility domentotion shall be d " d  by the 
B.n& counsri and shsU bo governed by N w  York Im.  

lwlW4lMAW 

FPSC Docket No. 950110-El 
FPC Witness: MORRISON CONFIDENTIAL 
Exhibit No. , "-23) PK 019538 
Sheet 11 of 1 1  



FPSC DOCKET NO. 950110-E1 
EXHIBIT NO. (BAM-24) 

CONSISTING OF TWELVE PAGES 

PANDA HAS ASSERTED A CLAIM OF 
CONFIDENTIALITY FOR EACH 

PAGE OF THIS EXHIBIT 
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Pmjed Finoncs - izm floor - T h e  B a n k  o f  T o k y o  1251 AVSYIUO of me Ameft- 
N m  YO* Ncw York 101 16-31 38 
F a  No. (212) 7824442 New York Group 

/- 

\ 
', 

. -  

Facsimile Transmission Cover Letter 

DhTE -21,1994 

NUMBER OF PAGES: 12 
(iml cover Lahr) 

TO: Mr. J u m r  0. WdMt 
Mr. John Burt 
Mf. Tom Hom 
h d a  mwgy C O r p O r o ~ ~  

FACSiMlLE NO.: (214) 9806816 

FPSC Docket No. 950110-EI 
FPC Witness: MORRISON 
Exhibit No. @AM-24) 
Sheet 1 of 12 
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FPSC Docket No., 950110-EI 
FPC Witness: MO'ERBON 

Sheet 2 of 12 
Exhibit No. , (BAM-24) 

. -  

O m  you have reviewed the Indigtion, please all me to discuss it kr detail. 

Have a ni- weekend! 

CONFlDENTIAL 
PK 019540 



The Bank of Tokyo Trust Company Bayerische Vereinsbank AG 

OctobW21, I994 DRAFT 
FPSC Docket No. 950110-EI 
FPC Witness: MORRISON 

Sheet 3 of 12 
Exhibit No. 9 @AM-24) 
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Mr. Jam@ 0. Wright 
Odober21, 1994 
Page 2 

DRAFT 

SlncereJy, 

6.ywhcho Vmimbank AG 

FPSC Docket No. 950110-EI 
FPC Witness: MORRISON 

Sheet 4of 12 
Exhibit No. , (BAh4-24) 
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E x h i b i t  A 

r . J, cc 

DRAFT 
. -  
Indication of Interest for a Credit Facility * 

Panda-Kathleen, L.P. 
br 

- 
FPSC Docket No. 950110-EI 
FPC Witness: MORRISON 

Sheet 5 of 12 
Exhibit No. 9 @AM-24) 
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Operator: 

Power Purchaser: 

Fuel Suppliers: 

c! D 

The Canstwction Contmdor‘s obligations will be 
supported by gwranties DT omwlorms of a”~3 from 
parti.8 and with toms and conditions in ail 
rctbptabk to the Banks. 

lQIz(r04e41 PM 
FPSC Docket No. 9501 10-EI 
FPCWitness: MORRISON 
Exhibit No. , (BN-24)  
Shat 6of 12 
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- P a n d a  K a t h l e e n ,  L i m i t e d  P a r t n e r s h i p  DRAFT 
Exhibit A -3 

THE CREDIT FA- 

Us. of Pmcnb: 

1-/&0241 
FPSC Docket No. 950110-EJ 
FPCWitness: MORRlSON 

Sheet 7 of 12 
ExhibitNo. , (BM-24) 

CONFIDENTIAL 
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Term: 

L 

1@21mOTQpM 
FPSC Docket No. 950110-Ez 
FpC Witness: MORRISON 

Sheet 8 of 12 

Exhibit No. , @AM-24) 
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ocl L1 '9 82:5mwI I W l  

DRAm 
P a n d a  K a t h l e e n ,  L i m i t e d  P a r t n e r s h i p  
Exhibit A Page 5 

AddltkmlConoQnl 
ACCUunt: 

Thero provisions will nquln *at a portion ot th. Proms 
excess cash flow be used fo &her way debt OT fund tho 
dobt servica mserva account basod upon the following 
tsladrtrd debt tOv&aga ntt0 schedule: 

96B Bs" 
.12&.. ....... .. ....... - .... on 

S125&21.1$... ....... - ....... .....SO% 
< 1.16 ........-.. .......... 100% 

3 

l"O2ci PM 
FPSC Docket NO. 950110-EI 
FPC Witness: MORRISON 
Exhibit No. , @AM-24) 
Sheet 9 o f  12 
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FPSC Docket No. 950110-EI 
FPC Witness: MORRISON 
Exhibit No. , “-24) 
Sheet 10of 12 
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OCT 21 ‘94 63:- BOT 

P a n d a  K a t h l e e n ,  L i m i t e d  P a r t n e r s h i p  DRAFP 
Exhibit A Peg. 8 

‘it all Pa da imb r i  

e n  $lev m q  

“&& 

. -  

nsas incurtbd du rina the reasonable out-af-oockot em0 

&hall be subiect to the review bv. and be acwota ble tu, 

Bank ConSubnb: me ~ u r k r  may n ~ n  thr twvkes d tonsuitants, as 
requid in W sole discntion, to rctvite them on matten 
nlPtfng b the pr0pos.d MI! F ~ ~ .  Such entities may 
hdudo, but not ba nmited to, tnsufana and fuel supply 
ansutturts, brdrpendent engineers and OutsIda legal 
WunSeeb. 

-2 u 

lWZlR4oT41 
FPSC Docket No. 950110-EI 
FPC Witness: MORRISON 

Sheet 12 of 12 
Exhibit No. , @AM-24) 
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FPSC DOCKET NO. 950110-E1 
EXHIBIT NO. (BAM-25) 

CONSISTING OF TWELVE PAGES 

PANDA HAS ASSERTED A CLAIM OF 
CONFIDENTIALITY FOR EACH 

PAGE OF THIS EXHIBIT 
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FPSC Docket No. 950110-EJ 
FPC Witness: MORRISON 

Sheet 1 of 12 

I 

-m 17 '94 =:- BOT Exhibit No. , (BAM-25) P. 1 

P" Fhuna# - 12th fbof 
1281 A v o "  ot VI, Am- 
W ' Y *  N.WYorlr 1011651a 
For No: (tlp 7024442 

T h e  Bank o f  T o k y o  
New Yo& Group 

acsimite Tra nsmission Cover Lette r 

NUMBER O f  PAQa: 12 
(hd. W L w  7 

Onm you have m i d  the Indicdion, please call nn to d h a 8  it in dddl, 

CONFIDENTIAL 
PK 019485  



FPSC Docket No. 9501 10-EI 
FPC Witness: MORRISON 

Sheet 2 of 12 
Exhibit No. -9 (BAh4-25) P. 2 6  

The Bank-of Tokyo Trust Company Bayerische Vereinsbank AG 
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Novmnkr 17,1994 

Mr. Jams 0. Wtight 
Vlce President & Chiof Fhandrl Oflkar 
Panda En- Corporation 
4100 Spfing W h y  
SUM loo1 
WIas,Te#r 75244 

Please k a$visrrd tha! tho cuntonts of the Indication am confidmtial and may not be released 
to a third party without the priorwrttbn consod of tha Barrkr. 

CONFIDENTIAL 
PK 019486 
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Sheet 3 of 12 
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Mr, Amos 0. Wrlght 
NowmbU 17, 1894 
P8go 2 

- _  
CONFIDENTIAL 
PU 019487 



I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
E 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

FPSC Docket No. 950110-EI 
FPC Witness: MORRISON 

Sheet 4 of 12 
- Nov 17 ’94 BOT TRBT Exhibit No. , (BAh4-25) P.4/4 

. -  e x h i b l t  A 

Indication of Interwt for a Credit Facllity a 

Panda-Kathleen, L.P. 
Ib 

CONFIDENTIAL 
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TO: Kathleen Project Team 
FROM: John, Tom 
RE: Calpine Statwas Equity Partner 
DATE: January 23,1995 

FPSC Docket No. 950110-EI 
FPC Witness: MORRISON 
Exhibit No. , (BAM-26) 
Sheet 1 of 1 

At noon today, John Rocchio and Bob Kelly of Calpine called to advise that they 
were dropping out of the project as our equity partner. 

They cited a number of concerns including our capital and operating cost 
projections, the distilled water plant and zero discharge, lack of detailed design 
information from the EPC contractor, the impact of cycling the facility on and off 
upo'n 0 & M costs, and overall economics, ie, the deal being too thin. 

They did not mention their previously referenced "tax problem", preferring to limit 
the discussion to the project. We are not sure but suspect that any other 
transaction with a partnership structure could conceivably have adverse tax 
consequences for the money partner. 

L 

We requested and they agreed to 1) return all confidential information 
concerning the project, and, 2) refrain from discussing the project with outside 
parties so as to avoid creating problems for Panda with the Bank of Tokyo and 
other potential equity participants . 
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M E M 0 R A N D U M FPSC Docket No. 950110-EI 
FPC Witness: MORRISONS 
Exhibit No. -’ (BAM-29) TO: Bob Sheet 1 of 2 

FROM: Pete 

DATE: July 14; 1994 

RE: Issues raised at Smith Barney Presentation 
for Panda-Kathleen 

SBS recommends that we stretch to achieve BBB- or better in a debt rating for the Kathleen 
project. Primary benefits associated with BBB- versus BB+ or lower include: 

(1) At least 150 basis point savings on the interest/coupon rate (9-9%% for 
BBB-, versus 1Ob%-11% for BB+) and; 

(2) Longer amortization for the debt (25 years for BBB- versus 20 years 
for BB+). 

Neither investment grade (BBB- or better) or below investment grade (BB+ or worse) will need 
credit enhancement such as a letter-of-credit. To stretch to a BBB- we will need to focus on the 
following, according to SBS: 

Construction 

- Item - Action 

Fuel 

Thermal Host 

Capacity 

Energy Payments 

Rating 

Secure acceptable EPC 
contractor. 

Secure 10-15 year delivery 
of gas volumes firm 
transportation. 

Secure host prove 
economics and QF status 
are viable. 

Determine energy above 
74.9 megawatts will be 
accepted by FPC. 

Show Kathleen will initially 
run economically/ efiiciently 
against other gas plants. 

Make rating presentation to 
S&P incorporating above 
items. 

ResDonsible 

Ted Hollon 
Kyle Woodruff 

Ralph Killian 
J im Adams 

Ted Hollon 
Ralph Killian 

Ted Hollon 
Ralph Killian 
Bill Nordlund 

Brian Dietz 
via ICF study 

Pete Wright 

SPECIALLY 
RESTRICTED 
PK 034335 
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There was some c o h s i o n  on SBS' part regarding self performance Vis a vis the thermal host, 
The two projects they have done bond offerings on had economics more heavily predicated on 
steam host revenues-Kathleen treats the steam host primarily as a cost center and that was a 
point SBS was having trouble absorbing. 

Regarding the capacity oversizing issue we need to proceed with due haste regarding either the 
FPC letter we thought was forthcoming a PSC ruling. I see no third option for this issue which 
is the most difficult. 

JD W/ce 

cc: Ralph, Bill, T ' d y a n  
Brian, Kyle, Stephen 

/ c 
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RESTRICTED 
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Panda-Kathleen Limited Partiiersliip 
Julv 1994 

Summary of Term$ for a 144A Debt Project Financing 
, I  

I 

I 
Project 

Parent Company 

Project Padicipants 

1'0 wc r Pu rcliase r 

Steam Purchaser 

Fuel Supply 

Fuel Transportation 

Contractor 
t 

Operalor 

The proposed Panda-Kathleen Project (the nProjectl') is coniprised of an approximately 75 
MW gas fired electric and steam plant (the "Facility") to be built in West Lakeland, Florida. 
The Project will be operated by Panda-Kathleen Limited Partnership ("Panda-Kathleen" or 
the "Partnership"). 

Panda Energy Corporation is a Dallas-based independent power company. The Company 
is engaged in the development, construction, management and ownership of electric power 
generating facilities and other energy related projects in the U.S. and abroad. 

Florida Power Corporalion ("FPC" - senior debt ratings Aa3/AA-) 

Lakeland Water Company (to be formed - owned by Panda Energy Corporation) 

To be announced, pursuant to a 15-year fm gas supply contract having indexing provisions 
which substantially track FPC's future avoided costs. 

To be announced 

To be announced, pursuant to an EPC, backed with substantially liquidated darnages that are 
backed by an investment grade credit or letter of credit. 

Panda Kathleen L.P. or its designee 

I 



Panda-Kathleen Limited Partnership 
July 1994 

Summary of Term* ifor a 144A Debt Project Issue 
I I 

i 
Financing Arrangements 

Issuer Panda-Kathleen Funding Corporation - a wholly-owned subsidiary by Panda-Kathleen 
Limited Partnership 

Guarantor 

Security 

Size 

Maturity 

lnteres t Kate 

I 

Panda-Kathleen Limited Partnership - a wholly-owned special purpose subsidiary of Panda 
Energy Corporation (the "Company") 

Senior Securd Notes (the "Notes") 
P I  .. cc 

$70.0 million 

See page on Structure 

See page on Structure 

Debt Service Payment Dates Semiannually, each December 15th and June 15th 

Optional Redemption Non-Callable for life, except for Extraordinary Optional Redemption 

Ranking Senior secured obligations of the Issuer, non-recourse to the Company 

Collateral 

t 

The Notes and the Guarantee will be secured by a lien on substantially all assets of the 
Partnership, including: a first mortgage on the Project, assignment of all receivables, 
inventories, contracts and insurance policies of the Partnership, assignment of all permits and 
approvals of the Project, pledge of the stock of the Funding Corporation, all limited and 
general partnership uNts in the Partnership, and the stock of any corparate owners of such 
partnership units other than Panda Energy Corporation. 



Parrda-Kathleeir Linrited Yartnerslrip 
Julv 1994 

Summary of Ter+ for a M A  Debt Project Issue 
I I 

i 
SEC Registration 

Exchange Listing 

Limitation on Transferability 

Indenture Trustee 

Denominations 

Set tlenient 

Underwriter 

I The Partnership agrees to use its best efforts to file and to cause to become effective wilhin 
[30] days a registration statement. In the event that a registration statement is not declared 
effective within [W] days following the closing date of the Notes, the interest rate on the 
Notes shall increase by 50 basis points effective on the 91st day until a registration statement 
is declared effective. 

None 

The Notes will be offered only to institutions that qualify as "accredited investors." as 
defined in Rule 5Ol(a)( 1)-(3) under Regulation D ("Accredited Investors"), or "qualified 
institutional buyers," as defined in Rule 144A under the Securities Act of 1933 ("Qualified 
Institutional Buyers"). All investors will be required to undertake that they will not transfer 
the Notes except pursuant to an effective registration statement or an exemption from 
registration. 

To be announced 

$lOo,OOO minimum and any integral multiple of $1,0oO in excess thereof 

Book-entry only. Same day funds ("Fed Funds") five business days after pricing. unless 
otherwise determined at the time of the offering 

Smith Barney Inc. 

1 



Panda-Katlrleerr Limited Yartrrerslrip 
July 1994 

Summary of Terms ,for a 144A Debt Project Issue 
I I 

I 
Siructure 

Assumed ratings B&/BBB- 

Principal amount S70,000,000 

Interest rate 150-175 
(bps over i v  year UST) 

30 

30-year UST 
(as of July 11,1994) 

7.770% 

Ba2/BB+ 

S70,000,000 

Final Maturity (years) 27 
Average Life (years) 20 

275-300 

7.770% 

20 
15 

I 
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Kyle Woodruff 

From: Thomas Horn 
To: *FINANCE 
CC: 
Subject: COSTUP2.XLS 
Date: 

Brian Dien: Darol Lindloff; David Mayer; Jim Adams: Kyle Woodruff: Ralph Killian 

Thursday, January 19, 1995 2:40PM 

< < File Attachment: COSTUP2.XLS > > 
The attached Excel spreadsheet gives a summary of the major changes to the Kathleen proforma over the 
last two months. If there are any mistakes that need to be corrected or further revisions that need to be 
made, please let me know. Thanks. 

Regards, 

Tom Horn 

__ .-- 

Page 1 
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I;PmPonent 
YTN Flnanclng 
Deb1 Malurily 
Inleresl-Only Perad 
Inleresl Rale 

ProJed Cost 
Tdal Conrlrudlon Coals 

Plpslrns conrtrum 
Tranunlrslon Conslruchon 
Water lnlerconned 
Land Purchaae 
Sales Tax on Equipment 

Pemutllng cor1 
Enghertng 
Operaling Exp Durtng Cons1 
Initial Fuel 01 Flll 
Conrtrudron Insurance 

Mminlslralnre 
Other Developmsnl 

Inlererl Durlng Conslrudlon 
Finandng D d  C4.b (2) 
InUtal Debt Sowke Reserve 

Oporattng AssumpUorulC~L 
Avo HoslRale 
OperaUq Houn 
Inllabon Escalator 
Dislllled Water Rale 
Gas Trans - commodity (1997) 
Gar Trans - Fwl % 
Gar Managemen1 Fee 
DisllUed Waler OUM 
Disuled Water Trans 6 Debvery 
Firm Wheelrng ErcalaUon 
Olher Fwed (MU 
Stad-Up Cosls 

Total Developmen1 Cosls 

Legal 

Tdal Financhg Cosb (1) 

25 
7 
10% 

I 

I 
$2.000.000 
$79(,000 
$3oo.OoO 

$0 
$1,778,000 

$700.000 
$750.000 
$700.000 
$500.000 

$0 
$0 
M 

$1 ,000.000 

$7.820.859 
$2,531,250 
$2,000.000 

7810 
NA 
3.5% 
$20.00 
$0.08 

'cr%Pcn 3.20% 
x m w  $0.02 

CJ" $15o,OOo 
040 " $50.000 

3.5% +m31 

Managemenl Fee t $5oo.o00 
Olher Fixed Expenses $ 2 ~ . o o o  
Turbine Overhaul NA 

Panda-Kathleen, L.P. 
Proforma Revision Sheet 

30 
7 

9.5% 

Sl.soo.000 
$891.0oO 
$200.000 
$760.000 
$1.714.500 

$765.908 
$1.006.877 
u00.000 
$265.000 
$500.000 
$500.000 
$500.000 
S l e O . ~  

0045 
NA 
4.0% 
$0.01 

2.15% 
lo 03 

$0 
$0 
3.0% 

s450.OOo 
$175,000 
uoo.o00 
$175.000 

NA 

$0 07 

Merrill feels that Ihe 30 year market is achievable; equal lo life of PPA 
Merrill says lhal the markel will be receptive lo 7 yean, interest-only 
Revised lo rekd current rates based on Merr is  indited spreads 

Pipeline ROW cos1 moved lo Land Purchase Bedion 
Revbed eslimale of cos1 
Revised e r l i a le  of cost 
Moved and consolialed from Pipeline Conslrudion and Other Developmenl 
Slighl recalculalion of cos1 

Revised esl iate of cost 
Revised erlimale of cosl 
Revised eslimate of cost 
475.000 gaUon lank at approximately $ 55 per gallon 
Moved from Other Dsvelopmenl Cost and revised 
Moved from M e r  Developmenl Cost and revised 
Moved from Other Developmenl Cor1 and revised 
Only Includes miscellaneous item such as office furniture 

Revired lo relled MTN drawdourn rtrudure and Conslrudion Equily 
Slighl revhiion lo rotled now .trudure 
Revired lo account for Arsl deb1 service payment 

Difficult lo rubslanttale anllcipaled hrprovemenl. accounts for degradation over lune 
Changed in lhe Operahns Sedlon lo refled "lrue' run hours no1 jus1 available hours 
Changed lo rekd historical InnaUon rale of 4% 
No longer bolllrng distilled waler. new slrategy resuUs in lower operaling cosls 
Revised eslunale of cost 
Revlsed lo refled new quanlltres lo be requued on FGT 
Revlsed lo refled negolraled rale wilh ANG 
Consoldated wilh Fuced O&M 
No transportahon under new strategy. water dekvered via pipelme 
Revlsed to rekd conlrad lurid 
Consoldated and revised from other sedions 
Added lo recognue the cost of frequent shuldowns 
Revised eslunale of cos1 
MTN ongolng expenses added. olher fued odm costs removed 
Revised eslunale of cosl e 

U 

(1) Total interest during Ihe life of the project ki lower Using MTNs versus other 144A or bond-type financing whlch is nd refleded here. 
i3) The old Financing Deal number was calculaled for one finandng; an esl ialed $2-3 million on a second hnandng was saved by using lhe MTNs. 

1/20/95 10 55 AM 
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PAMDA ax Of 

ENERGY CORPORATION 
The Independent Power Company 

- *  n 
1 

December 12, 1994 

Mr. Robert D. Kelly, Vice Pres’ident 
Calpine Corporation 
50 West San Femando -5th Floor 
San Jose, Ca 951 13 

v -.:.. 

RE: Kathleen Project 

Dear Bob: 

This will confirm our conversations regarding Calpine’s interest in participating in 
the Kathleen Cogeneration Project scheduled for construction in Lakeland, 
Florida. In particular, this communication sets forth the fact that Calpine and 
Panda have reached an understanding, in principal, regarding terms of Calpine’s ~ 

investment in the project of up to $20 Million. 

‘ \  k 
December 2,1994 Term Sheet (copy attached) and are subject to refinement 
during due diligence and preparation of a Definitive Agreement between our 
companies. 

4 

The particulars of our proposed transaction are more fully set forth in your 

We are very much looking forward to working with you and all the key personnel 
at Calpine in the coming months as we push toward financial closing, with a 
target date of February 1, 1995. We will appreciate your suggestions and 
assistance in dealing with the lenders as we proceed. 

As suggested in our conversation earlier today, we would ask that Calpine 
address a few matters within the next few days, as follows: 

I) Provide 8 comfort letter from your bank indicating that the $20 Million is 
availabte for commitment to the project. 

2) That you indicate the attomey and firm that will represent Calpine 
during negotiations ... it is understood that each party pays for legal 
expenses incurred in finalizing the transaction and that the Definitive 
Agreement is subject to review and approval by the lenders. 

SPECZALLY 
R E B T R I C T E D  
PR 045263 

4100 Spring Valley, Suite 1001 Dallas, Texas 75244 
214/980-7159 FAAX 2141980.6815 
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.. page -2- 

3) In the section dealing with Buydown, that you consider how we will 
determine the market rate for comparable projects if, in fact, there are no 
domestic projects available for comparison. 

4) That you give us a little more time to analyze the option of using a 
Calpine LC or borrowing the $20 Million during construction ... some of our 
people are coricemed that there will be costly paperwork and associated 
delays if we go the loan route. 

5) That we prepare and execute a Committment Letter which sets forth 
our intent to consummate the transaction and a few terms and conditions 
that address failure by Calpine to complete the deal ... our people would 
like to have this resolved within the next five business days. 

6) We need to negotiate the 0 & M contract which should be market- 
based (competitive) but with bonus opportunities if results exceed 
established cn'teria. 

c 

\ $  

. &  

Please feel free to contact either Tom Hom or myself regarding questions and 
to set up meetings between your associates and our technical and engineering 
staff. 

Sincerely, 

xA/C 

SPECIALLY 
RESTRICTED 
PK 045264  
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Entity: 

PartnCrS: 

Seucture: 

Coqstruaion Loans: 

Equity Investment: 

Cash Flow Shaxing: 

Buydown M a x  

ADMl194.U 

FPSC Docket No. 950110-EI 
FPC Witness: MORRISONS 
Exhibit No. 
Sheet 3 of 5 

, (BAM-32) 

PANDA-KATHLEEN L.P. 
TERM SHEET 

Panda-Kathleen Limited Partnaship: to own the Facility 
and all tangible assets associated with the project 

Pmda-Icathleen Corporation, a Delaware corporation, and 
Calpine Corporation or a wholly owned subsidiary will be 
the pmen. 

P~da-KarNcm Corporation to be the G a d  P ~ C X  and 
Cdpine Corporarion 01 a wholly owned subsidiary to be the, 
sole Lirrritcd parmct. 

Cdpine will provide up 00 $20 million of constrpction loans 
to the pprtnerthip at LIBOR plus 25%. 

The Limited Partner wi l l  fund up U) $20 million of equity 
to &e Pamenhip at such time u the c o m c t i o n  loan is 
rrphud with pamment &lancing 

calpiac win zcaivc the following ulnual percentagc3 of . .  distxibutabie ush flow &ring the tim &e yc~: 

Sb - Year - 
1 60 
2 67 
3 74 
4 81 
5 88 

Themfur, calpinc will ncdve 90% of the distributabb 

CalCuIating thc *-tax rem 

w h  now until it has received a 12% after-tax retam For 
d d a t i o n  purposes, a 35% ou rate will be utilized in 

The G e n d  Partner rhsn have the right a! any time afer 
the cm"mecement of c o m e &  opuarions to bay down 
OT buy out the partnership intmst of the Limited Partner in 
the p j e n  Io the event that the buydown or buyout  occur^ 
within 24months. Cdpine would receive the following 
compensation at the date of the baydown or buyout 

1 

1 l W  

SPECIALLY RESTRICTED 
PK 045265  



(b) an mount  which provides w i n e  a 128 after-tax 
intemal rate of rem for 24 montiu, plus .- 

(c) Calpinc would &e 18 annual payments equal to 
the difference between a 12% after-tax intanat f a o ~  
of nlurn and a mutually a w l e  "markan after- 
tax internal r a ~  of return for similar projects, 
inciuding devdopmmt and consauction risk, times 
the principal portion of the buydown or buyout. 

I 

I 

Due Diligence: 
u 

I 

FPSC Docket No. 950110-EI 
FPC Witness: MORRISONS 

Sheet 4 of 5 
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(a) $200,000 pius 

ADMl194.12 

In the event that the buydownor buyoutoc~s aftex 
24 months, Cdpine would nccivc &e following: 

(a) At the drue of thc buydown or buyout, Calpihe 
would receive a lump m payment in an mount, 
which pmvidu Calpine I 12% &-tax intcnrrrl rate 
of ntunt on iu krvcstment from convexdon to the 
dare of the lump sum payment., plus 

From the date of the lump smn pa- tb the end 
of the 20-year [trm, ralpine will receive an aund 
payment eqpd to the W-e krwcca 8 12% 
after-tax internal rate of murn md a m d y '  
agreeable "market" after-tax ineernal fatc of mum 
for similar power projects, incioding development 

the buydawn or buyout In the went the pucieS 
unabIetoagrcctoan~-taxincunalmreufrrtrrm, 
the p& wil l  agree to utilize an indcpcndcnt 
indusey e x p a  for the dettnrrinrtion of drc after-tax 

1 

. 
* 

and colutrPction rislc times the priflcipdportion of . 

internal ntc of return, plus 

The Limited Parmc will have 30 days ro con& its due 
dilignce examination of the project 

CaIpinc md Panda will negotiate an operations and 
mainnnan~e conaact wherein ralpine will provide 
operations and maintenance services to the Facility. The 
wnuact will include a condition whereby, in tk event 
kxia CxtzFiSes the buydown or buyout option, Calphe will 
rrctive an o p d o n s  and maintenance fee for its SCNiccs. 

2 1" 
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This cum sheet docs not constitute a fonnat commitment on the parc of Panda Encrgy 
Corporation and/or Calpine, and any such commitmat shall bc subject to a more definitive 
agrement bdng executed by the parties and the approval of same by Panda and Calpine. 
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CONSISTING OF TWENTY-THREE PAGES 

PANDA HAS ASSERTED A CLAIM OF 
CONFIDENTIALITY FOR EACH 

PAGE OF THIS EXHIBIT 
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COPY NO: 

PANDA-KATHLEEN COGEN PROJECT, LP 

Confidential Investment Memorandum 

ese limited partnership interests and 
constitutes an offer only if a 

ppropriate space provided above. 

Panda-Kathleen, L.P., (collectively the “Sponsors”), their agents or affiliates as legal, investment 
or tax advice. Each prospective investor should consult its own adivsors as to legal, investment, 
accounting, tax and related matters concerning the transaction described herein. 

Each prospective investor receiving this private placement memorandum agrees that it will not use 
the information set forth herein for any purpose other than in connection with evaluating the 
investment and that it will not disclose the contents hereof to persons other than its advisors who 
are similarly bound to maintain the confidentiality of such information. Any other use, 
reproduction or distribution of this private placement memorandum, or retransmittdl of its 
contents, in whole or in part, without the prior written consent of the Sponsors is prohibited. 
Each prospective investor agrees to return this memorandum and any related materials if it 
chooses not to participate in this transaction. 

PANDA-KATHLEEN COGENERATION PROJECT, L.P 
Page 2 
8/30!91 
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The descriptions contained in this private placement memorandum of the terms and conditions of 
certain agreements are brief summaries of certain provisions of such agreements. They do not 
proport to be complete and are qualified in their entirety by reference to the complete, final text of 
such agreements. Copies of all such agreements are available to prospective investors and should 
be reviewed caremy before a decision is made to invest. All forecasts and projections of hture 
operations and the economic results thereof contained in this private placement memorandum and 
the attachments hereto have been prepared with due care on the basis of present knowledge and 
assumptions which appear reasonable to the Sponsors and fairly present their expectations as to 
matters covered thereby. However, the knowledge and assumptions upon which such information 
is based are subject to change by virtue of circumstances throughout the term of the financing, 
Therefore, no representation is made, or implied, nor should any be infe 
likely existence of any particular hture set of facts or circumstances. 

This private placement memorandum does not 
information which a prospective investor may 

warranties, expressed or im 
memorandum or any other 
the course of e~duati 

PANDA-KATHLEEN COGENERATION PROJECT, L.P. 
Page 3 
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PANDA-KATBLEEN COGEN PROJECT, LP 

Confidential Investment Memorandum 
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Section I 

PANDA-KATBLEEN COGEN PROJECT 

' Introduction 

This offering involves the proposed sale of S 15 .O million of limited partnership interests in a 1 15 
Megawatt, gas fired, combined cycle cogeneration plant ("Kathleen" 

will supply electrical power to Florida Power Corporati 

contracts and delivered 

of 1978 ("PURPA") which creates opportunities for 

Construction of Kathleen is scheduled to commence during July 1995 with commercial operation 
projected to begin in Jamrary 1997. The Power Purchase Agreement ("PPA") with Florida Power 
addresses, in addition to the production and sale of electrical energy to FPC, capacity payments 
which relate to Kathleen's generating capacity availability to Florida Power's system. 

The Facility will funded 6om ground-breaking through completion with a construction loan 
obtained on commercial terms, which loan will be replaced with a term loan having interest and 
principal and payments synchronized with revenues derived fiom energy sales and capacity 
payments fiom Florida Power. The Limited Partners will provide equity to the project above 
amounts financed with the construction loan (and, subsequently, the term loan) and will share in 
proceeds generated by operation of the Facility. CONFIDENTIAL 

PK 018161 
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Income and cash flows tiom Kathleen will be sheltered by depreciation of the plant during the 
early yerrrs of operation. A summary schedule of projected revenues, income and cash flows by 
year are reflected in Exhibit xx which follows. Forecasts indicate that the Limited Partners can 
expect to obtain a % after tax return on their investment and should recoup their investment 
during the year of operation. 

It is anticipated that the term loan will receive a BBB rating fiom the rating agencies since the 
Facility will be completed before the term loan is put into place ... thus eliminating the construction 
risk for the noteholders and increasing the rate of return to the limited partners. 

Proiect Financing 

Initial financing for construction of the Facility is anticipated fiom the proceeds of a 

144A debt issue having a 

in profits, losses, cash flow and tax benefits will 

ted Partners have recouped their initial investment and 
achieved a 15% pretax return on their investment ( “Initial Return”). 

(iii.)subsequent to the Limited Partners achieving the initial return in ii) above, the 
allocation formula will change to 50% to the Limited Partners and 50% to the 
General Partner. 

Panda will give priority to investors that submit subscription without modifications to the 
proposed terms of the Limited Partnership Agreement. It should be noted that modifications to 
the power purchase agreement, the gas purchase and transportation agreements and the 
construction loan cannot be considered, however, copies of these documents will be hrnished to 
qualified investors. CONFIDENTIAL 
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Panda resewes the right to enter into negotiations with one or more potential investors at any 
time and to enter into a binding agreement with any party without prior written notice. Panda 
also reserves the right to terminate negotiations with any party at any time. 

Parties interested in specifics of the Limited Partnership should direct all inquiries to: 

Mr. JamesD. Wright 
Vice President & Chief Financial Officer 

Mr. Bryan J. Urban 

Panda Energy Corporation 
4 100 Spring Valley, Suite 1 

CONFIDENTIAL 
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Section II 

PANDA-KATHLEEN COGEN PROJECT 

Proiect Overview 

Phvsical DescnDtion 

Kathleen is a combined cycle natural gas-fired intermediate-load cogeneration plant, the design of 
which is based on proven technology. It is to be located on an approximately 7.5 acre purchased 
site positioned in an industrial park just off US Highway 92 west of Lakeland, Florida. 

1997. 

The Facility Will be constructed pursuant to 

history on projects of this type. 
oil) fired combustion turbine 
a heat recovery steam 

on contract with 

nsist of a [ ] kilovolt transmission line and 

o the Florida Gas Transmission trunkline. Fuel tanks for #2 

be complete by 

The combustion turbines are designed to be fired on either natural gas, the primary fuel, or # 2 
diesel, the backup fuel. Natural gas will be transported to the Florida Gas interconnection via 
various mtud gas carriers. The electrical interconnection point is less than two miles fiom the 
Facility and the route has been surveyed and environmental impact studies are underway. The 
route is across industrial and rural areas and will follow an existing electrical transmission right- 
of-way for most of its distance. 

CONFIDENTIAL 
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The steam host will be a distilled water generation facility owned and operated by Panda. The 
distilled water generation facility will be capable of producing 60,500 gallons of water per day 
from process wastewater and is required for the Project to obtain QF status. 

Regulation 

As a QF facility under the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (“FERC”) regulations and the 
Public Utility Regulatory Policies Act of 1978 (“PURPA”), Kathleen is exempt from regulation 
under certain provisions of the Federal Power Act and the Public Utility Holding Company 
Act(“PUHCA”). The pertinent regulations restrict a utility, or 
wholly owned (or joint venture subsidiaries) from owning more t 

operation of the plant subject to FERC, P 

Power Purchase Anreement 

The PPA between Kathleen and 
electrical energy deliv 
electrical capacity to 

+--, v& 
orida Power makes capacity payments based on the Kathleen’s 

Under dependable ca r‘w ‘ty, that is Kathleen’s demonstrated ability to provide generating capacity to 
FPC’s system. Dependable capacity is detmnined by periodic testing of the plant by Florida 
Power, and is without reference to performance guarantees and tests conducted by the prime and 
sub-contracton upon completion of the plant. that Kathleen will have 
dependable capacity of 1 IS Megawatts, and there will be liquidated damages paid to FPC if 
subsequent semiannual tests result in a dependable capacity of less than [W!] of the initial 
dependable capacity. 

It is anticipated 

Capacity payments to Kathleen will aggregate about $69.00 per kilowatt year (one kilowatt 
power for one year) during the first year of operation (($5.2 Million for 75 Megayatts of 
demonstrated capacity), with an escalation provision of 5.1% per year over the 30 year life of the 
contract. Of the $69.00 total, $61.00 relates to the capital cost of constructing the plant while 
the balance of $8.00 covers operations and maintenance (“0 & M”) expense incurred to keep the 
Facility’s capacity available to FPC on short notice. 

PANDA-KATHLEEN COGENERATION PROJECT, L.P. 
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The Facility will be built and operated as a Qualifying Facility (“QF‘) plant under provisions of 
section 210 (e) of the Public Utility Regulatory Policies Act (“PURPA”) of 1978. Specifically, 
this Act exempts QF facilities from regulations promulgated by the Public Utility Holding 
Company Act of 1935, which regulations are applied to electrical utilities. QF status also exempts 
the Facility fiom certain state laws concerning rates and ownership of power plants. - 

CONFIDENTIAL 
PK 018168 

E n e m  Pavmenta 

Energy payments are computed on the basis of metered, net electrical energy delivered to 
Florida Power at their interconnection and are to compensate the Facility for the) cost of 
hycarbon fuel (“Fuel Compensatioh Price”) and ii) the variable portion of operation and 
maintenance expense (“O&M” Cost), which, together comprise the energy purchase price 
incurred to generate electricity. The base he1 compensation price as of January 1, 1997, the date 
for initial operations of Kathleen, is S.0371 per Kilowatt. The fuel compensation price is 
adjusted quarteriy to reflect an annual escalation rate of 5.1 %. 

DisDatch Provision8 A 1 
c\ .. =, 

Kathleen is a “self dispatching” Facility, which rpeans that Kathleen-nominates when it +will 
deliver power to FPC’s grid. 
usually occurs during periods of peak 
i ndc ien t  for demand. Florida Bbwer doe 
within certain guidelinq/€beir p 
is, to distribute t h a w  ge 
economy. c- 

e ~4een expects,b operate 
fir- ~oadui capacit$plints are insuffici 
plantscgce called upon to operw. Florid& Po 
its “d&W limits,” which arf based upon 
equipment’ components. nese limits also 

% J  times and minimum downLtimes., 

Panda anticipates *’’ that ‘’ t d t y ’ s  initial dispatch priority, as well as the number of hours 
improve as other plants with higher operating costs and more stringent 

environment m u  ements come on line, and, as Florida Power’s system load demands increase. 
Megawatts to 

dispatcked’8sch y 

Florida Eower projects that it will require additional capacity of about - 
meet projected system load demands through the year 2000. 

’-- . 
I .  

an intermediate 1 

F‘ 5- 

7 
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AchievinP Construction and ComDletion Deadling 

As with all large construction projects, Kathleen will be subject to specific deadlines as the project 
is completed and brought on-line. At present, there do not appear to be any problems that would 
delay the ground-breaking, construction milestones nor completion and startup. 

Avoided Cost 

One of the primary considerations in the operation of a cogeneration plant falling under P W A  

increment from a 
. Avoided cost 

plus 0 & M cost, and, the capital cost of buildin 
meet the incremental demand. 

one-half of the Florida panhandle and the western one-haif 
Appendix). The service area extends from Tampa-St. Petersburg on 
er on the north and covers the rapidly growing Orlando area. FPC's 

develop. Florida Power is one of the six major utilities providing electricity to the peninsular 
Florida System and is AA rated. 

Distilled Water Pure hase Acmmcnt 

Panda will sdl approximately 60,OOO gallons per day of distilled water produced as a by-product 
of the electrical power generation to a packaging plant located adjacent to the Facility pursuant to 
a 25-year sales agreement. The initial sales price is $2.50 per lo00 gallons, with escalation 
provisions over the balance of the term. The water will be sold to 
a third party for distribution to end users. 
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Fuel Purchase Anmment 

A 15-year, firm fbel contract will be negotiated by Panda to supply the Kathleen with a minimum 
of 20.5 million cubic feet of natural gas per day (20,500 MCF/D). The contract quantity amounts 
to approximately 90% of the maximum daily fuel requirement, and the balance will be purchased 
on an interruptible basis in the spot market. Negotiations covering the fie1 contract are currently 
underway. Panda estimates that the cost of gas will be about $2.40 per MCF, starting at the 
date of commercid operations and escalating at a fixed 4% per year for 15 years. 

After year 15, Panda could either negotiate another firm contract or s 
tracks the market rate. Ot 
gas r e s "  at the well h 
near established fields. 

Fuel TransDortation Avreementq 

el capability and can operate on both gas as 
. The d i d  would only be used during an 

hours of back-up &el as required by Florida Power 
e Facility will have on-site oil storage capacity of 

term, does not intend to enter into any long-term oil supply contracts. 

Enpineerinn. Planning and Construction 

Panda is wently negotiating pricing and other terms of a construction contract with Walsh 
Construction Company, a qualified prime contractor for construction of the Facility. Panda 
projects the turn key price to be at or below [$543] per kilowatt-hour of capacity, or 
approximately [$62,500,000] for the 115 Megawatt facility. 
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ODerat ions and Maintenance (0 & M) Contract 

Prior to the commercial operations date, Panda will identify an O&M contractor to be responsible 
for the daily operations of the plant. Panda, however, will continue to supervise the overall 
operation of Kathleen during the life of the PPA. Panda anticipates that a request for proposals 
from the 0 & M contractors will be issued on or before October 1, 1994, with final selection 
occurring by mid-November of the same year. 

Plant Water 

On-site well water will be utilized for operation of the cooling tower and for boiler make-up. The 

Except for the ecological pennit application, 
anticipated that the ecological permit r 
permits will be issued by the regulato 

Ecological surveys are in p 

be located in Florida. 

company, was established in 1982. Panda is involved in 
and ownership of cogeneration facilties and other 
Panda-Rosemary Cogeneration Project located in 

Panda has executed a Power Purchase Agreement with Potomac Electric Power Company 
covering constnrction and operation of a [230] megawatt cogeneration plant to be located in 
Prince George’s County, Maryland. The project, designated the Panda-Brandywine facility, is 
scheduled to commence construction in early 1995 and go on-line in June 1996. 

In addition, Panda is actively engaged in the acquisition, exploration and production of natural gas 
reserves, including coal bed methane deposits. Panda is also developing infiastructure projects, 
including power generation, transportation and telecommunications, in Indonesia. CONFIDENTIAL 
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Section Ill 

PANDA-KATHLEEN COGEN PROJECT 

Summarv of  Limited PartnershiD Aereemenl 

Kathleen Limited Partnership 

Parties who subsequently become a G.P. must accept the obligations, under the terms of the 
Power Purchase Agreement, of the existing or prior G.P.(s). 

CONFIDENTIAL 
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a 

Matters Reauirinn Limited Partner Vote 

Major decisions requiring the approval, not to be unreasonably withheld or delayed, of limited 
partners are the following: 

0 the dissolution and winding up of the Partnership; 

0 the admission of new or additional partners (other than pursuant to an 
approved transfer); 

0 the removal of the G.P.; 

‘ 0  

0 

0 ,. 

0 

0 

the election of a liquidating partner, 

the transfer or m 

& -  

0 the amendment, modification, or waiver of any material provision of the 
partnership agreement of the Partnership; 

0 the settlement of any dispute that would materially and adversely affect the 
Partnetship or require payment by the Partnership in excess of [Sl,OOO,OOO]; 
and 

- 0 the taking of certain major actions relating to the fuel procurement and 
transportation arrangements of the Partnership having a material adverse affect 
on the financial condition of the Partnership. 

CONFIDENTIAL 
PK 018173 

PANDA-KATHLEEN COGENERATION PROJECT, L.P 
Page 15 
8l3OlQ.1 



FPSC Docket No. 9501 10-E1 
FPC Witness: MORRISONS 

Sheet 18 of 23 
Exhibit No. , (BAh4-33) 

I 
I 
I- 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

Cash Distribution$ 

Available funds will be distributed [quarterly] in accordance with the terms of the Partnership 
Agreement and long term debt restrictions. 

cash and cash receipts available less the obligations of the 
G.P. also is entitled to withhold a reasonable cash reserve 
working capital. 

Once funds have been distributed, no partne 
partnership, except as required by law. 

ng the period. The 
and for partnership 

le Federal or state laws; 

f any debt instrument or similar 

e involved in a "prohibited transaction" or to 
est" or a "disqualified person" under ERISq or to 
der chapter 42 of the Internal Revenue Code ("the 

convey an intmst to someone who is not legally competent or who has not 
reached legal majoriw, 

d i m  the Partnership fiom classification as a partnership under the Code; 

cause the Partnership of any partner to be subject to any excise tax pursuant to 
chapter 42A of subtitle D of the Code; 

CONFIDENTIAL 
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cause the Partnership to be deemed to be, or subject to regulation as, an 
“electric utility,” “electric corporation,” “electric company,” a “public utility” 
or a “public utility holding company”; and 

0 cause any non-recourse debt that is not already Partnership non-recourse debt 
to become Partnership non-recourse debt. 

Transferees of limited partner interests will be admitted as limited partners, only upon the 
consent of the G.P. in its sole discretion. 

Any sale of a limited partner’s interest will be first subject to a right of f h t  r e h 4  for a 
period of 120 days, in favor of [ 3. Thereafter, all 
purchase any interest in the partnership put up for sale b ner on a pro rata 
basis. This first right to purchase is to remain open for 4 
notice. if no partners accept the offer within the 45-day 
transferable on the terns set forth in the o 

No partner shall be prohibited fiom qlyesti 
or not in competition with tl 
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Section Iv 

PANDA-KATHLEEN COGEN PROJECT 

Discrission of Certain Riskq 

Svstem Performance 

Pursuant to the turnkey construction contract, Walsh Engineering and the component and 
manufactwere provide certain performance guarantees that must actually be met in the 
determination of firm capacity available to FPC. As noted previously, FPC will conduct periodic 

components to be utilized in construction of the plant, ie, th 
steam generator and the two electrical generators, indicate t 
contractual obligations. 

Consequently, the risk t 

competitive vis a vis most 
load sources of energy. 

this risk is, again, “al, there is no way to predict for certain the number of hours each year 
that the plant will be dispatched. 

While the project has already secured a long term source of natural gas to fuel the plant and fbel 
cost escalation provisions are covered by contractual arrangements, there is some potential, 
particularly in the later years of the project, for fuel costs to increase faster than the unit price of 
electrical energy sold to FPC. In the event, fuel cost were to increase at a faster ratathan the 
unit price of energy sold to FPC, the profit margins would be eroded and returns to the Limited 
Partnership reduced. 

PANDA-KATHLEEN COGENERATION PROJECT, L.P. 
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Reduction in the CaDacitv Pavment 

Although the risk is slight, there is-some finite potential for the regulating agencies to amend 
existing rules and regulations governing capacity payments to be made by FPC during the life of 
the contract. Although the bulk of Kathleen’s revenue stream is generated by the sale of electrical 
energy, capacity payments represent a signifint portion of income and, if reduced or eliminated, 
the impact on the project and the Limited Partnership would be negative. 

In summary, while Panda believes that the risk attendant to building and operating the plant over 
the 30 year contract is modest and has been addressed by virtue of the power purchase agreement 

supply side, potential 
their return of capital 
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Section V 

Amendix  

--Financial Projections 
--Florida Power Service Area Map 

7 
1 
d 
? 

'i 
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April 27, 1994 

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT ACCCOUNTASTS 

To the Board of Directors and 
Shareholders of Panda Energy Corporation 

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated balance sheets and the related consolidated 
statements of operations, of shareholders' equity (deficit) and of cash flows present fairly, in all 
material respects, the financial position of Panda Energy Corporation and its subsidiaries at 
Dccember 3 1, 1993, and the results of their operations and their cash flow for the year then ended 
in conformity Qith generally accepted accounting principles. These financial statements are the 
responsibility of the Company's management; our responsiblity is to express an opinion on these 
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit of these statements in 
accorandance with generally accepted auditing standards which require that we plan and perform 
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material 
misstatement.' An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supponing the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant 
estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We 
believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for the opinion expressed above. The financial 
statements of Panda Energy Corporation and Subsidiaries for the year ended December 3 1 , 1992 
were audited by other independent accountants whose report dated February 26, 1993 expressed an 
unqualified opinion on those statements. 

As discussed in Note 7, efftaive January 1, 1993, the Company changed its method of accounting 
for income taxes. 
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DECEMBER 31,1993 AND 1992 F p C  Witness: MOWSONS 

Current assets: 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Resaicted cash - current 
Accounts receivable 
Fuel oil, spare parts and supplies 
Other current assets 

Totai current assets 

Electric generating facility 
Furniture and fixtures 
Unproved natural gas properties 

Less: accumulated depreciation 
Total property, net 

Restricted cash-noncurrent 

ASSETS 

1993 

Debt issuance costs, net of accumulated amortization 
of $2.0 14,592 and S 1,5 1 1,979, respectively 

Partnership formation costs, net of accumulated 
amonization of $1,066,208 and $533,104, respectively 

$3,115,557 
5,419,255 
3,2 16,134 
3,3 1 1,986 

56.139 
15,119,071 

106,375,706 
200,997 

1,003,925 
107,580,628 ' 

( 1  2,737.950) 
94,842,678 

8,993,755 

4,3 12,676 

1,599,332 

S 124,867.5 12 - 

1992 

S2,3 16,528 
5,088.367 
5,954,583 
3,492,852 

2 1.364 
16,873,6% 

l04,8 14,387 
174.897 

1.037,500 
106.02 1,784 

(8,426,453) 
97,595.33 I 

8,185,229 

4,709,935 

2.132.436 

6 129.496.625 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these balance sheets. 
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1993 1992 

Current liabilities: 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses: 

Construction costs 
Interest and letter of credit fees 
Operating expenses and other 

Development Loan 
Current portion of long-term debt 

Total current liabilities 

Long term debt, less current portion 

Minority interest in consolidated partnership 

I Commitments and contingencies 

I 
I 
I 

Shareholders' equity (deficit): 
Common stock, S.01 par value; 20,000,000 shares 

authorized; 10,586,363 and 103 15,863 shares 
issued, respectively 

Additional paid-in capital 
Receivable from chairman 
Accumulated deficit 

Treasury stock, at cost, 54,700 shares 
Total shareholders' equity (deficit) 

S -  
2,462.1 16 
2.372.5 17 
1,050,000 
6,246,096 

12,130,729 

98,453,904 

32,763,215 

105,864 
3,263,934 
(26 5,5 96) 

(21.448.33 i )  
( I  8,344,129) 

( 1  36,207) 
( 1  8.480,336) 

5124.867.5 12 

S 1,425.000 
2 ,4 88 2 5  0 
1,769.28 1 

4,400.000 

10,082.53 1 

103.200,000 

32,449,7 I6 

105,159 
3,245.342 
(264.796) 

(19.185,120) 
( 16.099,4 1 5 )  

(136.707) 
(16,235,622) 

S 129.496.615 

The accompanying notes are an integral pan of these balance sheets 
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PANDA ENERGY CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMEW'S OF OPERATIONS 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,1993 AND 1992 

Revenue: 
Sales of electric capacity and energy 
Sales of steam 
Interest income 

I993 

$29,856,269 
61 7,598 
445.354 

1992 

$29,536,930 
623,422 
783.357 

Expenses: 
Cost of sales 
Marketing, project development and administrative 
Natural gas exploration costs 
Interest expense and letter of credit fees 
Depreciation 
Amortization of  debt issuance costs 
Amortization o f  partnership formation costs 

30,919.22 1 30,943,709 

7,676.470 
4,252,278 

185,388 
1 1,065,648 
4,3 1 1,497 

502,6 13 
533.104 

7,534,383 
4,138.191 

274,038 
1 1,477,999 
4.204.6 I8 

436,433 
533.104 

28,526.998 

Income before taxes a n d  minority interest 2,392,223 

(4,655,434) Minority interest in earnings of consolidated partnership 

Provision for income taxes 

Net loss (S2.263.2 I I )  

28,598.766 

2,3 44,94 3 

(4.352.386) 

fS2.007.433 \ 

FPSC Docket No. 9501 10-E1 
FPC Witness: MOWSONS 

Sheet 6 of 14 
Exhibit No. 9 "-34) 

The accompanying notes are an integral pan of these statements. 
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PANDA ENERGY CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF SHAREHOLDEHS' EQUITY (DEFICIT) 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,1993 AND 1992 

l-olal 

Isquit y 
Receivable Shareholders' 

('hairman Ikficit  Stock ( I M i c  i t  ) 

I'rcasury lrom Accumulated 
Additional 

Paid-in 
Capital 

S3.216.212 

Shares Amount 

I3ALAN<'Ii, December 31, 1991 10,487,563 S104,876 

Issuance o f  shares for interest payment 19.300 I 9 3  2.220 

Issuance of shares lor services as director 9.000 90 26.9 I0 27.000 

(52,736) (52,736) Advances to Chairman 

Nct loss (2,oO7,443) (2,007,441) 

S3.245.342 ($264,796) ($19.1 85,120) ($1  36.207) ($16.235.622) HALANCE, December 3 I ,  I992  10.5 15.863 s 105. I 5 9  

Issuance of shares for interest payment 64.500 645 12,652 13,291 

Exercise of stock options 6.000 60 5,940 6.000 

Advances to Chairman 

Net loss (2,263.21 I )  (2.263.2 I I ) 

S3.263.934 10,586.363 $ 105,864 

FPSC Docket No. 9501 10-E1 
FPC Witness: MORRISONS 

Sheet 7 of 14 
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PANDA ENERGY CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,1993 AND 1992 

Operat ing activities: 
Xet loss 
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to 
net cash provided by operating activities: ’ 

Minority interest in earnings of consolidated partnership 
Depreciation 
Amortization of debt issuance costs 
Amortization of  partnership formation costs 
Write-off of unproved natural gas properties 
Issuance of  stock for services as director 
Issuance of stock for interest payment 

Changes in assets and liabilities: 
Accounts receivable 
Fuel oil, spare parts and supplies 
Other current assets 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 
Net cash provided by operating activities 

Investing activities: 
Additions to property. plant and equipment 
Purchase o f  unproved natural gas properties 

Net cash used in investing activities 

Financing activities: 
Contributions from minority interest owner 
Distributions to minority interest owner 
Proceeds from sales of common stock 
Increase in receivable from Chairman 
Proceeds from project development loan 
Proceeds from long term debt 
Repayment of  subordinated loan 
Repayment of net profits note 
Repayment of long term debt 
Debt issuance costs 
Partnership formation costs 

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 

1993 

(f2.263,21 1 )  

4,655,434 
4,3 1 1,497 
502,6 13 
533,104 
34,617 

13,297 

2,738,449 
180,866 
(34,775) 
577,102 

1 1,248,993 

(3,012,419) 
(6,042) 

(3,018,46 1 ) 

(4,34 1,935) 
6,000 
(800) 

1,050,000 
1,500,000 

(4,400,000) 
(I 05,354) 

(6.292.089) 

Increase (decrease) in cash, including restricted amounts 

Cash, including restricted amounts, beginning of period 

1,938,443 

15,590,124 

Cash, including restricted amounts, end of period $17,528,567 

Supplemental cash flow information: 
Interest paid 
Income taxes 

51 1,078,485 
58,189 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements. 
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1992 

(52,007,443) 

4,352,386 
4,204,6 18 
436.433 
533,104 

27.000 
:,4 13 

(2.963.144) 
(843.369) 

(2  1,364) 
(2.5 1 I .977) 
1.208.357 

~ 

(3,162,080) 
(944.459) 

(4,106.539) 

30,948,987 
(2.85 1.657) 

(52.736) 

(5,413,333) 
(13,100,000) 
(4,800.000) 

(20,522) 
(2.665.540) 
2.045. I99 

(852.983) 

16.443.107 

615,590.124 

612.633.906 
S 196.293 
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PANDA ENERGY CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

ORGANIZATION 
Panda Energy Corporauon (collecuvely ulth its subsi&anes, "Panda"), was incorporated on October 27, 1982. 
and began project development efforts in 1985 Panda is engaged in the daelopment. constmaion. 
management and ovmerslup of cogenerauon faciliues and other energy related proJects. pnmanly in the 
Uruted States and Mexlco In adhtlon, Panda is actlvely engaged in the a q u s i u o n  and explorauon of pro\ en 
and potenual natural gas reserves 

The accompanyng consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Panda and i t s  subsihanes N1 
matend intercompany accounts and transacuons have been elimnated. C e m n  pnor year amounts have been 
reclasslfied 111 order to conform wlth the 1993 presentauon. 

SIGNmCkYT ACCOUNTMG POLICIES 
Cash and Cash Eaubalents - Included in cash and cash equivalents are tughly liqud intestments wth ohglnal 
matuntles of three months or less 

Restncted Cash - Restncted cash includes cash held by the bank to pa) debt senice. operaung expenses and 
capital improvements related to the Rosemary Project 

Fuel 011. SDare Parts and Sumlies - These i t e m  include fuel oil stored on-site, chenucal intentop and \anous 
spare parts and supplies necessary for plant mntenancc The item are balued at cost. uluch approumates 
the f a r  market value, and are expensed, as operaung expenses, when used 

CnDroved Nawal  Gas Pro~eruef - Panda follows the successful efforts method of accounung for oil and gas 
producing acumues. Under Uus method propeny aquisiuon costs. costs of producuve exploratory uells and 
all development costs arc capitalized All costs associated wth unsuccessful exploratory wells, geological and 
geophysical costs. and delay rentals are expensed as incurred Unproved natural gas properues are 
penodrcally assessed for impamnent of value and d necessary, a loss is r ecopzed  by protidmg an allouance 

DeDreciauon - Electnc generaung facility assets are being depreciated using the surught-line method o\er the 
esumated useful lives of the assets, generally twenty-five years. Deprectauon of office furruture, qupmen t .  
and leasehold improvements is provlded using the w g h t - l i n e  method over the " a t e d  useful lives of the 
assets. generally five years Mamenance and reprur costs are charged to expense as incurred 

Revenue Recomuon - Revenue generated from the sale of electnc capaclty and ene rg  is recopzed based on 
the amount billed under the power purchase agreement. 

Income Taxes - Effecuvc January 1, 1993, Panda adopted Statement of Financial Accounung Standards Yo 
109 (SFAS 109) wluch nq\llrrs deferred tax liabiliues or assets to be recopzed for the anucipated future ta\ 
effects of temporary Mercnces that anse as a result of the Merences in the carrying amounts and the u\ 
bases of assets and liablliues SFAS 109 also requres a valuauon allowance for deferred tau assets in certain 
circutnstances The adopuon had no impact on current penod m n g s  or cash flow 

In pnor years. Panda's p m o n  for income taxes was calculated in accordance ulth Accounung Pnncipies 
Board Opimon No 11 (APB 11) Under APB 11, deferred income taxes were prowded for the tax effects of 
urmng Merences in the recogmuon of revenue and expense for income tax and financial reporung purposes 

ROSEMARY PROJECT 

Effectwe May 5, 1989, Panda formed a wholly4wned subsidiary, Panda-Rosemary Corporauo'n ("Panda- 
Rosemary"), to develop, construct. and operate the 175 megawatt Rosemary Comples cogenerauon facilin i n  

Roanoke Rapids. North Carolina ("Rosemary Project") Construcuon on the Rosemary Project began i n  

September 1989. and commercial operauon of the facility began on December 27, 1990 

FPC Witness: MORRISONS 
Exhibit No. , (BAM-34) 
Sheet 9 of 14 
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Sales of eleanc capacity and energy are based on the terms of the Power Purchase Agreement between Panda- 
Rosemary and Virginia Electnc and Power Company ("VEPCO"). The agreement requires Panda-Roseman 
to proFide VEPCO with all the available capacity of the Rosemary Project on an as-needed basis Hi th  VEPCO 
obligated to pay for the power delivered and dependable capacity of the facility. The term of the agreement I S  
25 years and it expires in December 2015. 

On January 6, 1992, Panda-Rosemary consummated a uansaaion which restructured the ownershp and 
capitalization of the Rosemary Project. Panda-Rosemary contnbuted substantially all project assets and 
liabilities to a limited pamership ("Panda-Rosemary L.P.") in exchange for general p m e r s h p  and cenaln 
limited partnership interests. An institutional investor ("Investor") contributed cash in exchange for the 
remaining limited partnership interests. Panda-Rosemary is the managing general partner of Panda-Rosemar) 
L.P. and is responsible for the operations and management of the Rosemary Project. 

For its investment, the Investor receives percentage allocations of income, expense, and cash flow w h c h  
decline over time as certain rate of return hurdles are achieved. The allocations to the Investor begin at 90%. 
then decrease to 60%, 30%. and finally 15% based upon designated rate of return requirements. The 
correspondmg remainder of the cash flow (10%. 40% 70%, and finally 85?/0) is allocated to Panda. In 
addition, Panda is entitled to a disproportionately higher share of income, expense, and cash flow if certain 
operating criteria are met. 

Proceeds contributed by the Investor were used to repay the $5,413,333 of outstanding principal under the 
subordinated debt, the $13,100,000 outstanding principal under the Heller subordlnated net profits note and 
the related accmed interest. 

The partnership's balance sheet as of December 3 1, 1993 and 1992 and results of its operations the year ended 
December 31, 1993 and for the period from inception to December 31, 1992, have been consolidated in the. 
accompanying financial statements. The contributions made by the Investor and partnershp's net income 
allocated to the Investor are presented as minority interest in the accompanying financial statements. 

S u m "  Financial Infomation - Certain summary financial information for Panda-Rosemary L.P. as of 
December 3 1, 1993 and 1992 and for the years then ended is presented as follows: 

- 1993 - 1992 

Revenues S 30,839,143 $30,292,424 

cost of sales 
General and administration 
Interest expense 
Depreciation and amortization 

7,676.470 
763.830 

10,962,656 
5.353.428 

7,456,880 
589,774 

11,289,309 
5.124.409 

Net income uLX2nz2 55.832.052 

Cash and cash equivalents S 685,986 
Restricted cash 14,413,010 
Other m n t  assets 6,563,574 
Property, plant and equipment, net 95,542,33 1 
Other noncumnt assets 5.513.677 

Total assets 6122.718.578 

Current liabilities 
Taxable revenue bonds 
Partners' capital 

S 9,408,083 
97,200,000 
16.1 10.495 

641.038 
10,338,112 
9,437.664 

99,8 19,739 
6,442,371 

hu(i678.9a 

9,82 1.982 
103,200,000 

13.656.932 

Total liabilitles and partners' capital 6122.718.578 s126.678.921 

FPSC Docket No. 950110-EI 
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4. OTHER PROJECTS 

Brandbwne Pro~ect - On August 9, 1991, through a wholly-mned pmers lup ,  Panda-Brandywine L P 
("Panda-Bmdyulne") Panda entered into a Power Purchase Agreement w t h  Potomac Electnc Porker 
Company ("PEPCO) to bmld a 230 pegawatt gas-fired facility The Brandywne Project, whch IS scheduled 
to be operauonal in md-1996, wll be built in B r a n d y n e ,  Maqland. The agreement requres Panda- 
Brandywne to supply all avwlable capacity from the facility for the 25-year term of the contract w t h  a 
combinauon of fixed mspatch and as needed basis Development costs are being funded through Panda's 
worlung capital and project related development loans. Management anucipates that long-term fundng for 
the Brandyulne project wll be pronded pnmanly through non-recourse project debt and that such funding 
wll be avrulable on acceptable terms. 

Kathleen Project - On September 20, 1991, through a wholly+wned p m e n h i p ,  Panda-Kathleen L.P.. 
("Panda-Kathleen") Panda entered into a Standard M e r  Contract with Florida Power Corporation. ("FPC") to 
build a 75 megawatt gas-fired facility. The Kathleen Project will be built in Lakeland, Florida and is expected 
to be operational in early 1997. The conmct extends for 30 years and requires Panda-Kathleen to pro\.ide 7 5  
megawatts of capacity on an as-needed basis. Management anticipates development cost will be funded 
though Panda's working capital, tlurd p a q  equity investment, or project related development loans. In 
addtion, management anticipates long-term fundmg for the Kathleen project will be probided primarily 
through non-recourse project debt and that such funding will be available on acceptable terms. 

5 .  DEBT 

Taxable Revenue BondS - In October 1989, Panda-Rosemary obmned long-term financing for the Roseman 
Project in the form of S116 mdlion of taxable revenue bonds ("Bonds") issued by the Hallfax Regonal 
Econormc Development Corporauon ("Issuer"), a nonprofit corporauon orgamed in North Carolina The 
Bonds bear interest at a fixed rate of 9 25% payable semannually Scheduled pnnapal payments are required 
annually and began on October 1. 1991 and wll conunue through matunty on October 1, 2005 The Bonds 
are Subject to mandatory redempuon pnor to matunty under c e m n  condmons. 

The proceeds of the Bonds were loaned to Panda-Rosemary by the Issuer. The payment t e r m  under the loan 
agreement are similar to those of the Bonds. Such principal and interest payments p d  by Panda-Rosemary to 
the Issuer are used to make required payments on the Bonds. 

The Bonds are fully guaranteed by an imvocable, &rect-pay letter of c r d t  issued by The Fuji Bank. Limted. 
Houston Agency ("Fuji"). The letter of cre&t has a term equal to the term of the Bonds Panda-Roseman 
pays to Fuji c e m n  fees and charges for m a t n m m g  the letter of credrt The letter of credrt is secured b, the 
Rosemary Project as well all of the OutstanQng capital stock of P a n d a - R o S W  

Dunng the Rosemary ProjaYs operaung penod and whtle amounts are outstandmg under the long-term 
financing arrangements. all revenues of Panda-Rosemary L.P are p d  to a collateral agent, acung on behalf' 
of Fuji. On a quarterly basis, the collateral agent remts to Panda-Rosemary L P r e w r u n g  funds akalable 
after payment of all e x p e n d "  relaung to the Rosemary Project includmg debt semce Funds held b? the 
collateral agent have been reflected as restncted cash in the accompanyng consolidated balance sheets 

Fuji has also provided a letter of c r d t  for approximately S5 million guaranteeing Panda-Bosemaq's 
performance under the power purchase agreement. 

Page 8 
i)K U i 4 i r 4 Y  



FPSC Docket No. 950110-EI 
FPC Witness: MORRISONS 

Sheet 12 of 14 
Exhibit No. -' (BAM-34) 

Term Loan - On August 31, 1993, Panda obtained a term loan in the amount of $1.500.000 from No\a  
Northwest Inc. ("Nova") The loan bears interest at a rate of Libor plus 6 5% and matures on June 30, 1998 
Pnncipal and interest in the amount of $97,600 is pad quarterly based on a fixed amoruzauon schedule hxh 
remamng u n p d  pnncipal and accrued interest due upon matunty. The loans are secured by Panda's interest 
in the Rosemary Project and the management fee received by the general partner, Panda-Rosemary Under the 
loan agreement Nova also receives a'4.33% cash flow pmcipauon in the dstnbubons from the Roseman 
Project received by Panda. 

DeveloDment Loan - On December 2, 1993, Panda-Brandyne entered into a S3.000,OOO development loan 
agreement w t h  Raytheon Engneen & Constructors to prowde fundmg of development cost on the 
BrandyHlne Project An i m t d  drawng of S1,050,000 was provlded on the agreement date and future 
drawngs are funded through an escrow arrangement. The loan bears interest at 10% and all outstanding 
pnncipal and interest is payable at the earlier of construmon loan closing or June 30, 1995 On March 23. 
1994, the Raytheon development loan was combined wth an adduonal $7,300,000 pro\ided b) General 
Electnc Capital Corporauon wth substanually the same terms 

Long-term Debt Maturities - The maturities of long-term obligations for each of the five years succeeding 
December 3 1, 1993 and thereafter, are as follows: 

1994 66.246.096 
1995 7,466,282 
1996 8,49 1,478 
1997 8,122,642 
1998 8,573,502 
Thereafter 65.800.000 

f104.700.000 

6. NATUFUL GAS PROPERTIES 
Panda aquired 61,003,925 of leasehold interest in unproved natural gas reserves since 1991. with the intent to 
participate in exploratory drilling programs. Panda also intends to acquire proved natural gas resemes in the 
next 2-3 yean which will be used to fuel a portion of the needs of Panda's current and future cogenerauon 
facilities. 

7. FEDERAL INCOME TAXES 
Panda did not record a pmvision for income taxes for 1993 and 1992 since it incurred net operating losses 
(NOLs) for both years. The differcna between the effective rate reflected in the provision for income tases on 
continuing operations (0%) and the amount which would be determined by applyng the statutory federal 
income tax rate (34%) is atmibutable to NOLs incurred during the year. 

Panda has 69 8 million of NOL carry-fonvards at December 31, 1993 wluch w11 expire d u n g  the years 2000 
to 2007 Panda may become Subject to a limtatlon on the amount of NOL carry-forwards whch may be used 
annually to offset income should c e m n  changes in its ownenbp occuf in the future 
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The tau effects of temporary merences that gwe nse to sigrufkant portions of deferred tax assets for 1993 
were as fo l lo~s :  

December 3 1. 1993 Januan, I .  1993 

8. 

Deferred Tax Assets: 

Noncurrent - 
Property, plant and equipment 
Geologcal and geophysical costs 
Net operaung loss carryfonvard 

Current - 
Accrued liabilities 

Gross deferred tax assets 
Valuation allowance 
Net deferred (liability) asset 

9 30 1.000 6 44 1.000 
126,000 126.000 

3,3 3 0,000 2.786,OOO 

34.000 s 1 .ooo 

S 3,791,000 6 3,404.000 
(3.791 .OOO) (3.404.000) 

s 6 

STOCK OPTION PLAN 

Panda's Nonquallfied Stock Option Plan (the "Plan") provides for the granting of stock options to officers and 
employees for the purchase of Panda's " m o n  stock. The Plan allows for up to 1,500,000 shares of common 
stock to be issued upon exercise of the opuons granted. The Board of Directors grants options to officers and 
employees solely on a &scretionary basis and generally with a vesting period of up to five years. On J a n w  
11, 1990, options covering 950,000 shares wen granted to officers and employees at various prices and in 
specified increments over a five-year period. On September 1, 1992, options covering 400,000 shares were 
granted to the Chairman and a director at $3.00 per share and immediately became vested. On November 18. 
1993 options covering 110,OOO shares were granted to employees at various prices and in specified increments 
over a five-year period. During 1993, options covering 6,000 shares were exercised and'options covenng 
25,000 shares expired. No options were exercised or expired during prior years. 

9. coMMJ?uENTs 

Panda leases certain office facilities and equipment under operating leases. Rent expense charged IO 
operations under these leases was $184,895 and $165,724 for the years ended December 31, 1993 and 1992. 
respecuvely. Panda leases the property for the Rosemary Project under a twenty-five year lease for a norrunal 
amount. 

The future minimum leasc commitments for each of the five years succeeding Deccmber 31. 1993 and 
thereafter arc as follows: 

1994 
1995 
19% 
1997 
1998 
Thereafter 

Page 10 

$170,195 
159,772 
166,056 
165,238 
57,279 
3.300 

s721.8.10 
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10. 

In March 1993, a settlement agreement between Panda and Hawker Siddeley Power Engineenng ("HSPE") 
was reached in litigation relating to the construction of the Rosemary Project. The settlement required Panda 
to pay HSPE $4,025,000, which approximated the amount owed under the original contract. In addition. 
HSPE i n d e d i e d  Panda of all remaining claims by a subcontractor of HSPE. 
A settlement payment of $2.6 million bas made in July 1992. The remaining $1.425 million was presented as 
accounts payable construmon costs in the accompanying balance sheet at December 3 1, 1992 and was paid in 
1993. Panda management believes no further costs will be incurred With respect to t h s  litigation. 

Page 11 



I 
! 
I 
E 
I 
a 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

FPSC DOCKET NO. 950110-E1 
EXHIBIT NO. (BAM-35) 

CONSISTING OF THIRTEEN PAGES 

PANDA HAS ASSERTED A CLAIM OF 
CONFIDENTIALITY FOR EACH 

PAGE OF THIS EXHIBIT 



PANDA ENERGY CORPORATION 
AND SUBSIDIARIES 

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31,1994 AND 1993 

FPSC Docket No. 950110-EI 
FPC Witness: MORRISONS 

Sheet 1 of 13 
Exhibit No. , @AM-35) 



FPSC Docket No. 950110-EI 
FPC Witness: MORRlSONS 
Exhibit No. 
Sheet 2 of 13 

(BAM-35) -9 

ENDENT ACCO- 

May -, 1995 

To the Board of Directors and 
Shareholders of Panda Energy Corporation 

4 

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated balance sheets and the related consolidated 
statements of operations, of shareholders’ equity (deficit) and of cash flows present fairly, in 
all material respects, the financial position of Panda Energy Corporation and its subsidiaries 
at December 3 1, 1994 and 1993, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for 
the years then ended, in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. These 
financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management; our responsibility 
is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our 
audits of these statements in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards which 
iequire that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test 
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing 
the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by managemen& and evaluating 
the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable 
basis for the opinion expressed above. 

As discussed in Note 8, effective January 1, 1993, the Company changed its method of 
accounting for income taxes. 

c 



- 
PANDA ENERGY CORPORATION AND SUBSIDLARIES 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
t 
I 
I 
I 
E 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

CONSOLIDATED BALAiCE SHEETS - - 
FPSC Docket No. 950110-EI DECEMBER 31,1994 A I D  1993 
Fpc Witness: M O m O N S  
Exhibit No. , @AM-35) 
Sheet 3 of 13 

ASSETS 

1994 1993 

Cunent assets: 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Restricted cash - current 
Accounts receivable 
Fuel oil, spare parts and supplies 
Other cumnt assets 

Total, current assets 

$ 3.1 15,557 
5,419,255 
2 2  16,124 
3,3 11,986 

56.139 

S 6,203,288 
237 1,826 
5,671,373 
3,345,684 

39,148 
17,83 1,3 19 15,119,071 

Plant and equipment: 
Electric generating facility 
Furniture and fixtures 
Less: accumulated depreciation 
Total plant and equipment, net 

113,584.065 
363,748 

(17.013.489) 

106,375,706 
200,997 

(12,737,950) 
93,838,753 96,934,324 

Natural gas properties: 
Property acquisition costs 
Exploration costs 

1,003,925 939,190 
3,953,583 
4,892,773 1,003,925 

8,993,755 Restricted cash-noncurrent 9,45 1,293 

Debt issuance costs, net of accumulated amo&ation 
of f2,6 14,974 and S2,014,592, respectively 4,210,575 4,3 12,676 

Partnership formation costs, net of accumulated 
amortization of S 1,599,324 and S 1,066,208, respectively 1.599.332 1,066,216 

S 134.386.500 S 124.867.512 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these balance sheets. 

Page 1 
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Current liabilities: 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses: 

Consauction costs 
Interest and letter of credit fees 
Operating expenses and other 

Current portion of long-term debt 
Total current liabilities 

1994 

S 1,489,412 
2,623,7 15 
3,463,649 
7,200,000 

14,776,776 

Long term debt, less current ponion 106,342,894 

Minority interest in consolidated pamenhip 32,114,677 

Commitments and contingencies 

Shareholders' equity (deficit): 
Common stock, 9.01 par value; 20,000,000 shares 

authorized; 10,809,386 and 10,586,363 shares 
issued, respectively 

Additional paid-in capital 
Receivable  om chairman 
Accumulated deficit 

Treasury stock, at COG 55,700 shares 
Total shareholders' equity (deficit) 

108,095 
4,572,572 
(265,596) 

(23,126,711) 
(18,711,640) 

( 136,207) 

(1 8,847,847) 

S 134.386.500 

The accompanying notes are an i n t e p l  part of these balance sheets. 

Page 2 

1993 

s 
2,462,116 
2,372,5 17 
7,296,096 

12,130,729 

98,453,904 

32,763,215 

105,864 
3,263,934 
(265,596) 

(2 1,448,33 1) 

(1 8,344,129) 
(1 36,207) 

(1 8,480,336) 

S 124.867.512 
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1994 I993 
Revenue: 

Sales of electric capacity and energy 
Sales of steam 
Interest income 

S 30,664,096 
650,575 
654.71 8 

3 1.969.389 

Expenses: 
Cost of sales 
Marketing, project development and administrative 
Natural gas exploration expenses 
Interest expense and letter of credit fees 
Depreciation 
Amortization of debt issuance costs 
Amortization of parmenhip formation costs 

Income before taxes and minority interat 

Minority interest in earnings of consolidated partnership 

Provision for income taxes 

8,460,146 
4,698,743 

121,612 
11,017,418 
4,275,538 

600,382 
533.1 16 

29,70695 5 

2,262,434 

(3,940,8 14) 

Net loss S (1.678.380) 

The accompanying notes are M integral pan: of these statements. 
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S 29,856,269 
6 17,598 
445,354 

30,919,221 

7,676,410 
4.25 2,218 

1 1,065,648 
4,3 1 1,497 

5023 I3 
533,104 

28,526,998 

ia5,3a,s 

2,3 92,223 

(4,655,434) 

S (2,263,2 1 I )  
30 



BALANCE, Lkceniber 3 I ,  1 9 2  

Issuance of shares for interesl payment 

PANDA ENERGY CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY (DEFICIT) 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,1994 AND 1993 

Exercise of stock options 

Advances lo Chairman 

Net loss 

IMLANCE, llecember 3 I ,  1993 

Issuance of warrants 

Net loss 

Issuance of shares for interest payment 

IMLANCE, December 3 I ,  1994 

-lotill 
Additional Receivable Shareholders' 

Piid-in From Accumulated Treasury Equi1y 
Shares Amount Capivil Chairman lklicit Bock (Ilelicit) 

10,515.863 S 105,159 S 3,245,342 S (264,796) S (19,185,120) S (136,207) S (16,235,622) 

64,500 645 12,652 13.297 

6.000 60 5,940 6.000 

(2,263.21 I) (2,263.2 I I ) 

10,586,363 105.864 3,263.934 (265,596) (21,448,351) ( I  36.2137) (111,4110,336) 

223.02 3 2.23 I 66,826 69,057 

1.24 1,111 2 I ,24 1.81 2 

( I  ,6711,3110) ( 1,678,380) 

10,809,386 S 108,095 E 4,572,572 S (265,596) S (23,126,711) S (136,207) S (18,847,847) 

k- 
FPSC Docket No. 950110-E1 cz2 

, (BAM-35) 5 2  Exhibit No. L-- 
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Operating activities: 
Net loss 
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to 

net cash provided by operating activities: 
Minority interest in earnings of consolidated parmenhip 
Depreciation 
Amortization of debt issuance costs 
Amortization of partnership formation costs 
Write-off of unproved natural gas properties 
Issuance of stock for interest payment 

Changes in assets and liabilities: 
Accounts receivable 
Fuel oil, spare parts and supplies 
Other current assets 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

Investing activities: 
Additions to property. plant and equipment 
Acquisition costs of natural gas properties 
Exploration costs of natural gas properties 

Net cash used in investing activities 

Financing activities: 
Contributions from minority interest owner 
Distributions to minority interest owner 
Proceeds from sales of common stock 
Proceeds from issuance of warrants 
Increase in receivable from Chainnan 
Proceeds from long term debt 
Repayment of long term debt 
Debt issuance costs 

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 

Increase in cash, including restricted amounts 

Cash, including restricted amounts, beginning of period 

Cash, including restricted amounts, end of period 

Supplemental cash flow information: 
Interest paid 
Income taxes 

I994 

$ (1.678,3 80) 

3,940,814 
4,275,538 
600,3 82 
533,l 16 
88,080 
69,057 

(2.455.239) 
(33,698) 
16,991 

1,252.73 1 
6,609,392 

(5,88 1,697) 
(23,345) 

(3,953,583) 
(9.858.6251 

1,002 
(4,590,3 54) 

1,24 l ,8  12 

15,292,894 
(7,500,000) 
(498,281) 
3,947,073 

697,840 

17,528,567 

f 18,226,407 - I 
$ 10,786,762 
$ 8,067 

The accompanying notes are an integral par t  of these statements. 
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1993 

$ (2,263,21 1) 

4,655,434 
4,5 I 1,447 
502.6 13 
533,104 
34,617 
13,297 

2,73 8849 
180.866 

577,102 
11,248,993 

(24,775) 

(3 ,O 1 2.4 1 9) 
(6,042) 

(3,018,46 I) 

(4,341,935) 
6,000 

(800) 
2,550,000 
(4,400,000) 
(105,354) 

(6.292.089) 

1,938,445 

15.j90.114 

S 17.528.567 
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1. 

2. 

3. 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINAYCIAL STATELMEX'S - 
Panda Energy Corporation (collectively with its subsidiaries, "Panda"), was incorporated on October 27, 1982, and 
began project development efforts in 1985. Panda is engaged in the developmenf construction, management and 
ownership of cogeneration facilities and other energy related projects, primarily in the United States, China, India 
and Mexico. In addition, Panda is actively engaged in the acquisition and exploration of proven and potential natural 
gas reserves. 

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Panda and its subsidiaries. All material 
intercompany accounts and nansactions have been eliminated 

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

- Included in cash and cash equivalents are highly liquid investments with original 
maturities of three months or less. 

b m c t e d  C& - Restricted cash includes cash held by the bank to pay debt service, operating expenses and capital 
improvements related to the Rosemary Project. 

- These items include fuel o i l  stored on-site, chemical inventory and various spare 
parts and supplies necessary for plant maintenance. The items are valued at cost, which approximates the fair market 
value, and are expensed, as operating expenses, when used. 

- Electric generating facility assets are being depreciated using the straight-line method over the 
estimated useful lives of the assets, generally twenty-five years. Depreciation of office furniture, equipmen: and 
leasehold improvements is provided using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets, 
generally five years. Costs related to proj- in advanced stages of development and construction are capitalized as 
electric generating facility assets. Maintenance and repair costs are charged to expense as i n c h  

- Panda follows the successful efforts method of accounting for oil and gas producing 
activities. Under this method, property acquisition costs, costs of productive exploratory wells and all development 
costs are capitalized. All costs associated with unsuccessful exploratory wells, geological and geophysical costs, and 
delay rentals are expensed as incumd Natural gas properties are periodically assessed for impairment of value and, 
if necessary, a loss is recognized by providing aa allowance. 

Pam 

- Revenue generated h m  the sale of elecuic capacity and energy is reco@ed based on the 
amount billed under the power purchase agmment. 

- Panda records income taxes according to Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 109 
(SFAS 109) which requires defmed tax liabilities or assets to be recognized for the anticipated future tax effects of 
temporary differences that arise as a result of the differences in the carrying amounts and the tax bases of assets and 
liabilities. SFAS 109 also requires a valuation allowance for defemd tax assets in certain circumstances. 

Effective May 5 ,  1989, Panda formed a wholly-owned subsidiary, Panda-Rosemary Corporation ("Panda- 
Rosemary"), to develop, construct, and optrate the 180 megawatt Rosemary cogeneration facility in Roanoke 
Rapids, North Carolina ("Rosemary Project"). Construction on the Rosemary Project began in Septembk 1989. and 
commercial operation of the facility began on December 27, 1990. 

Page 6 
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Sales of elecmc capacity and energy are based on the terms of the Power Purchase Agreement between Panda- 
Rosemary and Virginia Electric and Power Company ("VEPCO) dated January 24, 1989. The agreement requires 
Panda-Rosemary to provide VEPCO with all the available capacity of the Rosemary Project on an as-needed basis 
with VEX0 obligated to pay for the power delivered and dependable capaciry of the facility at a rate per lulowaa 
which decreases in cemin periods as defined by the agreement The term of the agreement is 25 years and it expires 
in December 2015. 

On January 6, 1992, Panda-Rosemary consummated a uansaction which r e s " m d  the ownership and 
capitalitation of the Rosemary Project. Panda-Rosemary contributed substantiaily all project assets and liabilities to 
a limited partnership ("Panda-Rosemary L.P.") in exchange for general pamenhip and certain limited partnership 
interests. An institutional investor ("lnvestor") contributed cash in exchange for the remaining limited partnership 
interests. Panda-Rosemary is the managmg g e n d  p a "  of Panda-Rosemary L.P. and is responsible for the 
operations and management of the Rosemary Pmjm 

For its investmen6 the Investor receives percentage allocations of income, expense, and cash flow which decline 
over time as cemin rate of r e m  hurdles are achieved The allocations to the Investor begin at go%, then decrease 
to 60%, 30%, and finally 15% based upon designated rate of rctum requirements. The comsponding remainder of 
the cash flow (IOO!, 40%. 70% and finally 85%) is allocated to Panda. In addition, Panda is entitled to a 
disproportionately higher share of income, expense, and cash flow if cereain operaring criteria are met. 

The partnership's balance sheet as of December 31, 1994 and 1993, and results of its operations for the years then 
ended have been consolidated in the accompanying financial statements. The conmbutions made by the Investor 
and pamership's net income allocated to the Investor an presented as minority interest in the accompanying 
financial statements. 

, 

- Certain summary financial information for Panda-Rosemary L.P. as of December 
3 1, 1994 and 1993 and for the years then ended is presented as follows: 

Revenues 

cost of d e s  
General and administration 
Interest expense 
Depreciation and a m o M o n  

Net income 

Cash apd cash equivalents 
Restri&cash ' 

mer current asJets 
Row, plant and equipment, net 
Other nonamut  assets 

T o d  assets 

Current liabilities 
Taxable revenue bonds 
Partners' capital 

Total liabilities and partners' capital 

S 3 1,864,394 

8,940,146 
746,483 

10,557,897 

S6.333.326 
3 8 6  5 4 2  

S 760287 
12,023.1 19 
9,006,002 
91,280,104 

4.578.510 

S117.687.170 

S 10,466,810 
90,000,000 
17 7 7 ~ 3 6 ~  

s117.687.170 
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S 30,839,143 

7,676,470 
763,830 

10,962,656 
5 353.428 

LAQ&U2 

S 685,986 
14,413,O I O  
6,563,574 
95,542.33 1 

5.513.677 

$197 7 18.578 

S 9,408,083 
97,200,000 
m 0 . 4 9 5  



- 
4. WLVE P R O J E q  

On August 9, 1991, through a wholly-owned pamership, Panda-Brandywine L.P. (“Panda-Brandywine”), Panda 
entered into a Power Purchase Agreement with Potomac Elecmc Power Company (“PEPCO”) to build a 230 
megawatt gas-fired facility. The Brandywine Project, which is scheduled to be operational in October, 1996, will be 
built in Brandywine, Maryland. The agreement requires Panda-Brandywine to supply PEPCO with all available 
capacity h m  the facility for the 25-year term of the conmct with a guaranteed dispatch level of at least 60 hours per 
week for the fim 15 years. Development costs have been funded throu@ Panda’s working capital and project 
related development loans. 

On April 10, 1995, Panda-Brandywine closed the hnding of a S215,OOO.OOO construction loan with General Elecmc 
capital Corporation. The c o m c t i o n  loan is considered non-recourse project debt and should provide for all capital 
costs of the project Upon completion of the Brandyvine facility the construction loan will be converted to a singie- 
investor lease with GE Capital which will have a 20-year initial term and two 5-year renewal options. 

R& - On September 20, 1991, through a wholly-owned pamenhip, Panda-Kathleen L.P., (“Panda- 
Kathleen”) Panda entered into a Standard Offer Contract with Florida Power Corporation (“FPC“), to build a 75 
megawatt gas-find facility. The Kathleen Project will be built in Lakeland, Florida and is expected to be operational 
in early 1997. The contract extends for 30 years and requires Panda-Kathleen to provide 75 megawatts of capacity 
on an as-needed basis. Management anticipates development costs will be funded through Panda’s working capital 
until closing of consauction financing. In addition, management anticipates long-term funding for the Kathleen 
project will be provided primarily through non-recourse project debt 

- Panda, through joint venture agreements with two Chinese national entities, China Machinery 
Corporation and Luannan County, is developing a 100 megawatt coal-fired projm in Tangshan, China 
Management anticipates the power purchase a g r e ” t  with the No& China Electric Power Administration, when 
complete, will extend for 23 years with operations expected to start in late 1997. In addition, management 
anticipates development costs to be funded through Panda’s working capital or third-party equity investment and that 
long-term funding for the Luannan project will be provided through non-recourse project debt 

. 

- In August 1994 Panda, signed a joint venture agreement with Pioneer Services, Inc. in which it 
acquired a 90% interest in a project under development in the State of Orissa, India At that time, Panda assumed the 
role as lead developer of the project and the responsibility of all future development costs. The power purchase 
a g ” e n t  dated January 1 I ,  1994 with Orissa State Electricity Board calls for Panda to build a 500 megawatt coal- 
timi facility on a site in La Panga, India The agreement extends for 30 years and management expects the project 
to be in operation during early 1999. Management anticipates development costs to be funded through Panda’s 
working capital or third-party qui ty  invesrment Management also expects the long-term funding for the La Panga 
project will be provided through non-recourse project debt. 

6. PEBT 
Long-term debt of Panda, as of December 3 1, 1994 and 1993 is summarized as follows: 

l!B M 

Taxable Revenue Bonds for Rosemary project S 97,200,000 S103,200,000 
10,084,706 1,050,000 Development Loan for Brandywine project 

Term Loan with TCW, net of discount 
Term Loan with Nova 1 .jOO.DOQ 

113,342,894 105,750.000 
Less, current portion (7 700 000) (7 ’96.096) 

6,258,188 

SI06 747 894 

Page 8 

FpSC Docket No. 950110-EI 
FPC Witness: MORRISONS 

Sheet 10 of 13 
Exhibit No. 9 PAM-35) 

S 98.133.904 



~ 

I 
I 
t 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

Rev- - In October 1989, Panda-Rosemary obtained long-term fmancing for the Rosemary Project 
in the form of S116 million of taxable revenue bonds (“Bonds”) issued by the Halifax Regional Economic 
Development Corporation (“Issuer”), a nonprofit corporation organized in North Carolina The Bonds bear interest 
at a fved rate of 9.25% payable semiannually. Scheduled principal payments are required annually and began on 
October I ,  1991 and will continue through maturity on October I ,  2005. The Bonds are subject to mandatory 
redemption prior to maturity under certain conditions. 

The procetds of the Bonds were loaned to Panda-Rosemary by the issuer. The payment tenns under the loan 
agreement are similar to those of the Bonds. Such principal and interest payments paid by Panda-Rosemary to the 
Issuer are used to make required payments on the Bonds. 

The Bonds are hlly guaranteed by an hevocable, direct-pay letter of credit issued by The Fuji Bank, Limited, 
Houston Agency (“Fuji”). The letter of credit has a term equal to the term of the Bonds. Panda-Rosemary pays to 
Fuji certain fees and charges for maintaining the letter of credit. The letter of credit is secured by the Rosemary 
Project as well as all of the outstanding Capital stock of Panda-Rosemary. 

During the Rosemary Project‘s operating period and while amounts an outstanding under the long-term financing 
m g e m e n t s ,  all revenues of Panda-Rosemary L.P. an paid to a collateral agent, acting on behalf of Fuji. On a 
quarterly basis, the collateral agent remits to Panda-Rosemary L.P. remaining funds available after payment of all 
expenditures relating to the Rosemary P r o j m  including debt service provided that Panda-Rosemary L.P. is in 
compliance with covenants under the letter of credit. Funds held by the collateral agent have been reflected as 
restricted cash in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. 

Fuji has also provided a letter of credit for approximately S5 million guaranteeing Panda-Rosemary’s performance 
under the power purchase agreement 

- On November 8,1994 Panda obtained a term loan in the amount of 912,300,000 &om Trust Company 
of the West (“TCW”). The loan bears interest at a rare of 11% and manires on November 8,2004. The loans are 
secured by Panda’s interest in all its various projects through the pledge of the common stock of Panda Holding, Inc., 
a wholly-owned subsidiary of Panda which has ownership of the project entities. 

Panda received S7,500,000 on November 8, 1994, closing date and has the option to complete the second funding of 
S4,800,000 when certain conditions an met. As of December 3 1, 1994, 97,500,000 in principal was outstanding 
under the term loan. 

Under the loan agmment, TCW also receives warrants to purchase sham of Panda stock, which are recorded as 
additional paid-in capital on the accompanying consolidated balance sheet at the estimated fair value as determined 
by management A loan discount of $1,241,812 was created as a mul t  of the allocanon to the warrants. The amount 
of sham to be purchased under the wanants ranges h m  1,003,978 to 1,595,477 based on whether certain 
conditions exkc including the completion of the second funding. The w m t s  are exercisable at S8 per share, 
subject to adjustmen& and expire on November 8, 2004. If a public offering of the Company’s stock has not 
occurred, the Company is obligated to repurchase each warrant at the holder’s option for 92.18 and S2.91 at 
November 8, 1999 and 2001, nspectively. The wanants arc callable in total by Panda, if a public offering of stock 
has occurred for 912 per warrant during a call period during which the closing price for the Company’s common 
stock has equaled or exceeded 250% of the exercise price of the warrants. 

The term loan contains certain restrictive covenants including limitations on indebtedness, limitations on corporate 
investments and others. Subsequent to December 31, 1994, Panda was not in compliance with certain of these 
covenants, however, has obtained waivers of Compliance with these covenants from TCW until January 1996. 

Proceeds €rom the loan were used to pay unpaid principal and accrued interest in the amount of S1,431,78 I on an 
existing term loan with Nova Nonhwest tnc. (“Nova”). Under the agreement with Nova they will connnue to 
receive 4.33% of cash flow p ~ c i p a t i o n  in the distributions received By Panda &om the Rosemary Project for the 
term of the Panda-Rosemary L.P. partnership agreement. 
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Develo- - On December 2, 1993, Panda-Brandywine entered tnto a S3,000,000 development loan 
agreement with Raytheon Engineers & Conmcton to provide h d i n g  of development cost on the Brandywme 
Project On March 23, 1994, the Raytheon development loan was combined with an additional $7,200,000 provided 
by General Electric Capital Corporation for a total of S 10,300,000. The loan bears interest at 10% for the Raytheon 
portion and I i b r  plus 4% for the GE Capital portion. All outstanding principal and intenst is payable at the earlier 
of conmcdon  loan closing or June 30, 1995. On April IO, 1995 the outstanding principal and accrued interest of 
the Development loan was paid with the proceeds from a S215,000,000 consauction loan provided by GE Capital 
(note 4). 

Debt htUunWs - The maturities of long-term obligations for each of the five years succeeding December 
3 1, 1994 and thereafter, arc as follows: 

1995 
1996 
1997 
1998 
1999 
Thereafter 

S 7,038,682 
8,j7 l,73 1 
8,168,9 18 
8,870,907 
8,182.443 

77 710.2u 
6113.542.894 

7. - 
Property acquisition costs consist of leasehold interests in unproved natural gas reserves which Panda acquired with 
the intent to panicipatc in exploratory drilling programs. During 1994, Panda incurred S3,953,583 in exploratory 
drilling and completion costs for one well in Mobile County, Alabama Completion efforts on this well continue 
during 1995. 

8. Y 
Panda did not record a provision for income taxes for 1994 and 1993 since it incumd net operating losses (NOLs) 
for both years. The difference between the effective rate reflected in the provision for income taxes (0%) and the 
amount which would be determined by applying the statutory federal income tax rates in 1994 and 1993 (35% and 
34%, respectively) is attributable to unbeneiited NOLs incurred during those years. 

Panda has 613.9 million of NOL carryforwards at December 3 1, 1994 which will expire during the years 2000 to 
2008. Panda may become subject to a limitation on the amount of NOL carryfonvards which may be used annually 
to offset income should certain changes in its ownership occur in the future. 

The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to sigmlkant portions of defemd tax assets (liabilities) as of 
December 3 1,1994 and 1993 were as follows: 

l294 iept 
-- 
Property, plant and equipment S 889,000 S 301,000 
Geological and geophysical cos0 120,Ooo 126,000 
Net operating loss canyfoward 4,867,000 3,3 3 0,000 
0th- 11.ooo 34.ooo 

5,897,000 3,791,000 

Intangible drilling cos0 1.384.ooo 

Net defemd t a ~ ~  assets 4 3  13,000 3.791,ooo - 
Net defemd tax asset (liability) 6 -  s -  
Valuation allowance (4.513.000) OOQ 

The net change in the valuation allowance reflects an increase of S722,OOO in 1994 and S387,OOO in 1993 p i m . r  
related to additional net operating loss carryfonvards. 
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9. - 
Panda's Nonqualified Stock Option Plan (the "Plan") provides for the granting of stock options to officers and 
employees for h e  purchaso of Panda's common stock The Plan allows for up to 1,500,000 sham of common stock 
to be issued upon exercise of the options granted. The Board of Directors grants options to officers and employees 
solely on a discretionary basis and generally with a vesting period of up to five years. During 1990, options covering 
950,000 s h a m  w m  granted to officm and employes at various prices and in specific increments over a five-year 
period During 1992, options coverhg 400,000 shares were p t e d  to the Chairman and a director at S3.00 per 
share and immediately became vested. During 1993 oprions covering 172,000 sham were granted to employees and 
directon at various prices and in specified increments over a five-year period, options covering 6,000 shares were 
exercised and options covering 415,000 shares expired. During 1994, no options were granted or exercised. Options 
covering 10,000 sham expired during 1994. 

10. COMMlTMENTs 

Panda leases certain office facilities and equipment under operaring leases. Rent expense charged to operations 
under these leases was S178,749 and 6185,895 for the years ended December 31, 1994 and 1993, respkctively. 
Panda leases the property for the Rosemary Project under a twenty-five year lease for a nominal amount. 

The funue minimum lease commitments for each of the five years succeeding December 3 I ,  1994 and thereafter an 
as follows: 

I995 
1996 
1997 
I998 
1999 
T h e r e a h  

S205,470 
206,817 
205,999 
98,041 
44,062 

6.794 
2767.183 
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

To the Board of Directors of 
Panda Energy Corporation: 

We have audited the  accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Panda Energy Corporation (a Texas 
corporation) and subsidiaries as of December31, 1992 and 1991, and the  related consolidated statements of 
operations, shareholders’ equity (deficit) and cash flows for the years then ended. These financial statements 
are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these 
financial statements based on our audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require 
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are 
free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining,on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts 
and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used 
and significant estimates made by management* as well as evaluating the overall financial statement 
presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
position of Panda Energy Corporation and suhsidiariesas of December31, 1992 and 1991, and the results of 
their operations and their cash flows for theyears then ended in confonnitywith generally accepted accounting 
principles. 

Dallas, Texas, 
February 26, 1993 
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PANDA ENERGY CORPORATION AND S U B S I D L i "  
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS 
AS OF DECEMBER31, 1992 and 1991 

Current assets: 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Restricted cash - current 
Accounts receivable 
Fuel oil, spare parts and supplies 
Other current assets 

Total current assets 

Electric generating facility 
Furniture & futures 
Unproved natural gas properties 

Less: accumulated depreciation 
Total property, net 

Restricted cash-noncurrent 

Debt issuance costs, net of 
accumulated amortization of $1,511,979 
and $1,075,546, respectively 

Partnership formation costs, net of 
accumulated amortization of $533,104 

ASSETS 

1992 1991 

S 2,316,528 $ 7,739 
5,088,367 9,480,3 12 
5,954,583 2,99 1,139 
3,492,85 2 2,649,483 

21,364 

16.873.694 15,128.673 

104,814,387 103,235,857 
174,897 166,347 

1.032.500 88.041 
106,021,784 103,490,245 

(8.426.4531 
97,595,331 

14,22 1.836) 
99,268,409 

8,185,229 6,955,05 6 

4,709,935 5,125,847 

2,132,436 

4 129,496,625 %_126.477 9s 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these balance sheets. 
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PANDA ENERGY CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES 
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS (con’t) 

AS OF DECEMBER31, 1992 and 1991 

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY ( D E F I C m  

Current liabilities: 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses - 

Construction costs 
Interest and letter of credit fees 
Operating expenses and other 

Current portion of long-term debt 

Total current liabilities 

Taxable revenue bonds, less current portion 

Minority interest in consolidated partnership 

Commitments and contingencies 

Shareholders’ equity (deficit): 
Common stock, f.01 par value: 20,000,000 shares 
authorized: 10,515,863 and 10,487,563 shares 
issued at December 31, 1992 and 1991, respectively 
Additional paid-in capital 
Receivable from chairman 
Accumulated deficit 

Treasury stock, at cost, 54,700 shares 

Total shareholders’ equity (deficit) 

1992 

5 1,425,000 
2,488,250 
1,769,28 1 
4.400.000 

10,082.53 1 

103,200,000 

32,449,716 

1991 

3,000,000 ’ 
3,644,157 
3,125,351 

23.3 13,333 

$ 

33.082.85 1 

107,600,000 

105,159 104,876 
3,245,342 3,216,2 12 
(264,796) (2 12,060) 

(19.185.1201 (17,177,677) 
(16,099,415) (14,068,649) 

f 136.2071 (136.2071 

f 16,235,6221 (14.204.8561 

9 129.496.625 $ 126,477,982 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these balance sheets. 
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PANDA ENERGY CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS 

FOR TFIE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1992 and 1991 

Revenue: 
Sales of electric capacity and energy 

' Sales of steam 
Interest income 

1992 1991 

$ 29,536,930 $ 31,395,996 
623,422 409,oo 1 
783.3 5 7 

30,943,709 
856,335 

32.66 1,332 

Expenses: 
Cost of sales 7,534,383 7,772,s 15 
Marketing, general and administrative 4,138,191 2,5383 10 

Interest expense and letter of credit fees 11,477,999 15,413,889 
Depreciation 4,204,6 18 4,153,883 
Amortization of debt issuance costs 436,433 492,640 
Amortization of partnership formation costs 

28,598,766 30,582,687 

Natural gas exploration costs 274,038 211,250 4 

533.104 

Income before taxes and extaordinary items 2,344,943 2,078,645 

Minority interest in earnings of consolidated partnership (4,352,386) 

Provision for income .taxes ( 1, i 9 7 ~ 3  I 1 

Income (loss) before extraordinary items (2,007,443) 88 1,214 

Extraordinary loss from early extinguishment 

Extraordinary gain from utilization of 
of debt 

NOL carryforwards 

Net loss 

Income (loss) per common share: 
Income (loss) before extraordinary items 
Extraordinary items 
Net loss 

Weighted average common shares outstanding 

(8,435,297) 

1,062.454 

$ (2,007,443J $ (6,491,629) 

$ (. 19) $ .08 
l .70) 

f (. 19) $J .62 

10,506.538 10,484.75 1 
L 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements. 
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PANDA ENERGY CORPORATION AND SUBSlDlARlFS 
CONSOl~lDATBI) STATEMENTS OF SIMREIIO~.DERS’ EQUITY (DEFICIT) 

FOR TIIK YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31.1992 and 1991 

Tolal 
Share holders’ 

Equity 
( I k f i c i t  

Receivable 
From 

Chairnwii 

f (120.426) 

Addiiional 
Paid-In, 
Capiial 

Accuniulalcd Treasury 
Dcficit Stock 

S( 10.686.O48) S( 136.207) 

Coninion Stock 
Shares Aniociiit 

10,484263 S 104843 

3.300 33 

f(7.636.443) 

14,850 

f 3,201,395 IMIANCE. DECEMBER 31. 19W 

Sliares sold 14.817 

(91.634) (91,634) Advrnces io Chairman 

(6,491,629) (6.491.629) Ne1 luss 

(l.l.XM.856) 

2.4 I3  

( 17,177,677) (1 36.207) 3.1 16.2 12 

2220 

(1 12.060) 10,587,5563 104.876 

19.300 I93 Issuance of shares lor inlerest paymenl 

lssuancc of shares for services as 
director 27.000 9.000 90 26910 

(52.736) (52.1 36) 

(2,007,4431 

$61 6,235,6224 

Advances 10 Chairman 

(2,007,443) 

S (19,185,120~ f (136,207) 

Net loss 

I)Al.ANCE. I)ECEMnEI1.31. 1992 fr?_64.796) S 3,245,342 

lhe acconipanying notes are an inlegral p r l  of these strienicnls. 
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PANDA ENERGY CORPORATION AND SUBSIDlARIES 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,1992 and 1 9 9 1  

Operating activities: 
Net loss 
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to 

net cash provided by opemtmg activities: , 
Minority interest in eamings of consolidated partnership 
Depreciation 
Amortization of debt issuance costs 
Amortization of partnenhip formation costs 
Amortization of deferred interest 
Accelerated amortization of defemd 

Issuance of stock for services as director 
Issuance of stock for interest payment 

interest (extraordinary item) 

Changes in assets and liabilities: 
Accounts receivable 
Fuel oil. spare parts and supplies 
Other c u m n t  assets 
Restricted accrued interest receivable 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

Investing activities: 
Additions to property. plant and equipment 
Purchase of unproved natural gas properties 

Net cash used in investing activities 

Financing activities: 
Contributions from minority interest owner 
Distributions to minority interest owner 
Proceeds from sales of common stock 
Increase in receivable from Chairman 
Repayment of subordinated loan 
Repayment of net profits note 
Repayment of taxable revenue bonds 
Debt issuance costs 
Partnership formation costs 

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 

Increase (decrease) in cash. including restricted amounts 

Cash. including restricted amounts, beginning of period 

Cash. including restricted amounts. end of period 

Supplemental cash flow infomation: 
Interest paid 

Income taxes 

1992 

S(2.007.443) 

4.352.386 
4,204.6 18 
436.433 
533.104 

27.000 
2.413 

(2.963.444) 
(843,369) 
(2 1364) 

(25 11.977) 

1.208.357 

(3.162080) 
(944.459) 

(4,106.5391 

30.948.987 
(2,851,657) 

(5 2.736) 
(5,413.333) 
(13,lOO.oOO) 
(4,800.000) 
(20522) 

(2,665,550) 

2.045.199 

(852.983) 

16,443,107 

S 15.590.124 

S 12.633.906 

S 196.294 
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S(6.491.629) 

4,153.883 
492,640 

1.310.150 

8.435.297 

(2.828.8149 
(872.883) 

178,693 
5,303.049 

9,680.386 

(4.994.89 1) 
(88.04 1) 

(5.082932) 

14.850 
(91.634) 
(386.667) 

(3.600.COO) 
(375.80 1) 

(4,439,2521 

158.202 

16.284.905 

S 16.443.107 

_S 13.983.169 

T h e  accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements. 
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1. 

PANDA ENERGY CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

AS OF DEcEMBER31, 1992 and 1991 

ORGANIZATION 

Panda Energy Corporation (collectively with its subsidiaries, "Panda"), was incorporated on October 
27, 1982, and began project development efforts in 1985. Panda is engaged in the development, 
construction, management and ownership of cogeneration faciiitiesand other energy related projects, 
primarily in the United States and Mexico. In addition, Panda is actively engaged in the acquisition 
and exploration of proven and potential natural gas reserves. 

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Panda and its 
subsidiaries. All material intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated. Certain 
prior year amounts have been reclassified in order to conform with the 1992 presentation. 

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Cash and Cash Edva len l s  - Included in cash and cash equivalents'are highly liquid investments with 
original maturities of three months or less. 

Deureciation - Depreciation of office furniture, equipment, and leasehold improvements is provided 
using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets, generally five years. 
Rosemary Project assets are being depreciated using the straight-line method over the estimated 
useful lives of the assets, generally twenty-five years. Maintenance and repair costs are charged to 
expense as incurred. 

Revenue Remenition - Revenue generated from the sale of electric capacity and energy is recognized 
based on the amount billed. 

3. ROSEMARY PROJECT 

Effective May 5, 1989, Panda formed a wholly-owned subsidiary, Panda-Rosemary Corporation 
("Panda-Rosemary"), to develop, construct and operate the 175 megawatt Rosemary Complex 
cogeneration facility in Roanoke Rapids, North Carolina ("Rosemary Project"). Construction on the 
Rosemary Project began in September 1989, and commercial operation of the facility began on 
December 27, 1990. 

On January 6, 1992, Panda-Rosemary consummated a transaction which restructured the ownsrship 
and capitalization of the Rosemary Project. Panda-Rosemary contributed substantially all project 
assets and liabilities to a limited partnership ("Panda-Rosemary L.P.") in exchange €or general 
partnership and certain limited partnership interests. An institutional investor ("Investor") 
contributed cash in exchange for the remaining limited partnership interests. Panda-Rosemary is the 
managing general partner of Panda-Rosemary L.P. and is responsible for the operations and 
management of the Rosemary Project. 
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For its investment, the Investor receives percentage allocations of income, expense, and cash flow 
which decline over time as certain rate of retum hurdles are achieved. The allocations to the Investor 
begin at 90%, then decrease to 60%, 30%, and finally 15% based upon designated rate of return 
requirements. ?he corresponding remainder of the cash flow (lo%, 4095, 70%, and finally 85%) is 
allocated to Panda. In addition, Panda is entitled to a disproportionately higher share of income, 
expense, and cash flow if certain operating m’teria are met. 

Proceeds contributed by the Investor were used to repay the $5,413,333 of outstanding principal under 
the subordinateddebt, the $13,100,000outstandingprincipalunder the Heller subordinated net profits 
note and the related accrued interest. Accordingly, these amounts are presented as current liabilities 
in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet at December 31, 1991. In connection with the 
repayment of the Heller notes, Panda recorded an $8,435,297 loss due to the early extinguishment of 
these debt instruments. This loss is reflected as an extraordinary item in the accompanying 
consolidated statement of operations for 1991. 

The partnership’s balance sheet as of December 31, 1992 and results of its operations for the period 
from inception to December 31, 1992, have been consolidated in the accompanying financial ’ 
statements. The contributions made by the Investor and partnership’s net income allocated to the 
Investor are presented as minority interest in the accompanying financial statements. 

Summary Financial Information - 
Certain summary financial information for Panda-Rosemary L.P. as of December 31, 1992 is 
presented as follows: 

Revenues $ 30,292,424 

Cost of sales 
General and administration 
Interest expense 
Depreciation and amortization 

Net Income 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Other current assets 
Property, plant and equipment, net 
Other noncurrent assets 

Total Assets 

Current liabilities 
Taxable revenue bonds 
Partners’ capital 

Total liabilities and partners’ capital 

7,456,880 
589,774 

11,289,309 
5.124.409 

$ 5,832,052 

$ 2,793,921 
9,437,664 

99,819,739 
14,627.600 

$126,678,924 

$ 9,821,982 
103,200,000 
13.65 6.942 

$126,678,924 
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1. LONG-TERM DEBT 
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In October 1989, Panda-rosemay obtained long-term financing for the Rosemary Project in the form 
of $116 million of taxable revenue bonds ("Bonds") issued by the Halifax Regional Economic 
Development Corporation ("Issuer"), a nonprofit corporation organized in North Carolina. The 
Bonds bear interest at a fined rate of 9 . 3 %  payable semiannually. Scheduled principal payments are 
required annually and began on October 1, 1991 and will continue through maturity on October 1, 
2005. The Bonds are subject to mandatory redemption prior to maturity under certain conditions. 

The proceeds of the Bonds were loaned to Panda-Rosemary by the Issuer. The payment terms under 
the loan agreement are similar to those of the Bonds. Such principal and interest payments paid by 
Panda-Rosemary to the Issuer are used to make required payments on the Bonds. 

The Bonds are fully guaranteed by an irrevocable, direct-pay letter of credit issued by Tne Fuji Bank, 
Limited, Houston Agency ("Fuji"). The letter of credit has a term equal to the term of the Bonds. 
Panda-Rosemary pays to Fuji certain fees and charges for maintaining the letter of credit. The letter + 

of credit is secured by the Rosemary Project as well as all of the outstanding capital stock of Panda- 
Rosemary. 

During the Rosemary Project's operating period and while amounts are outstanding under the long- 
term financing arrangements, all revenues of Panda-Rosemary L.P. are paid to a collateral agent, 
acting on behalf of Fuji. On a quarterly basis, the collateral agent remits to Panda-Rosemary L.P. 
remaining funds available after payment of all expenditures relating to the Rosemary Project, 
including debt service. Funds held by the collateral agent have been reflected as restricted cash in 
the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. 

Fuji has also provided a letter of credit for approximately $S million guaranteeing Panda-Rasemary's 
performance under the power purchase agreement. 

Long-term Debt Maturities - 
The maturities of long-term obligations for each of the five years succeeding December 31, 1992 and 
thereafter, are as follows: ' 

1993 $4,400.000 
1994 6,000,000 
1995 7,200,000 
1996 8,200,000 
1997 7,800,000 
Thereafter 74.000.000 

5 .  NATURAL GAS PROPERTIES 

Panda acquired $964,459 and $88,041 of leasehold interest in unproved natural gas resexves during 
1992 and 1991, respectively,with the intent to participate in exploratory drilling programs. Panda also 
intends to acquire proved natural gas reserves in the next 2-3 years which will be used to fuel a 
portion of the needs of Panda's current and future cogeneration facilities. 
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6. FEDERAL INCOME TAXES 
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The statutory tax rate for 1992 and 1991 was 34%. Panda's effective tax rate for 1992 was zero due 
to the net operating loss incurred by Panda in that year. In 1991, the effective tax rate was 58% as 
a result of state income taxes attributable to the Rosemary Project. 

The income tax provision (benefit) forrhe years ended December 31, 1992 and 1991 consists of the 
following: 

Current federal tax provision 
Deferred federal tax benefit 
Current state tax provision 

1992 1991 
$ -  $1,245,735 

(470,460) 
422,156 

$ -  S1.197.431 - 

7. 

The current tax provision represents estimated taxes to be paid for those years. The deferred benefir 
primarily results from differences between depreciation and amortization for financial reporting and 
income tax reporting purposes. The offsetting income tax benefit of $1,062,454 from the utilization 
of the net operating loss carryfonvards in 1991 is presented as an extraordinary item in the 
consolidated statement of operations. At December 31, 1992, Panda has net operating loss 
carryforwards of approximately $6.6 million and $5.1 million for regular federal income tax purposes 
and alternative minimum tax purposes, respectively, expiring in the years 2000 through 2006. 

In December 1987, the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") issued Statement of Financial 
Accounting Standards No. 96 ("SFAS No. 96"), "Accounting for Income Taxes". SFAS No. 96 requires 
a change from the deferred method to the liability method of computing the provision for income 
taxes. In February 1992, the FASB issued SFAS No. 109 which supersedes SFAS No. 96 and is to 
be adopted for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 1992. When adopted, the provisions of 
SFAS No. 109 are not expected to have a significant effect on Panda's consolidated financial position 
or results of operations. 

LITIGATION S m E  MENT 

On January 27, 1993, a preliminary settlement was reached in litigation relating to the construction 
of the Rosemary Project. The litigation invokes (i) a suit by a subcontractor against Hawker Siddeley 
Power Engineering, Inc. ("HSPE"), the Project's turnkey contractor, and Panda, (ii) a suit by Panda 
against HSPE, and (iii) a suit by HSPE against Panda. The settlement that was reached between 
Panda and HSPE directs Panda to pay HSPE $4,025,000, which approximates the amount owed to 
HSPE under the original contract. 

The settlement does not release Panda from the suit with the subcontractor: however, HSPE has fully 
indemnified Panda of all remaining claims by the subcontractor. A settlement prepayment of $2.6 
million was made in July 1992. The remaining S1.425 million is presented as accounts payable 
construction costs in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet at December 31, 1992 and will be 
paid upon completion of the settlement agreement. Panda management believes the completed 
settlement agreement will be received within the near future. 
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8. STOCK OPTION PLAN 

9. 

Panda's Nonqualified Stock Option Plan (the "Plan") provides for the granting of stock options to 
officers and employees for the purchase of Panda's common stock. The Plan allows for up to 
1,500,000 shares of common stock to be issued upon exercise of the options granted. The Board of 
Directors grants options to officers and employees solely on a discretionary basis and generally with 
a two-year vesting period. On January 11, 1990, options covering 950,000 shares were granted to 
officers and employees at various prices to be awarded in specified increments over a five-year period. 
On September 1, 1992, options covering 400,000 shares were granted to the Chairman and a director 
at $3.00 per share and immediately became vested. As of December 31, 1992, no options have been 
exercised. 

COMMrTMENTS 

Project Development Commitments- 

Panda has entered into two contracts to provide capacity and energy to two utility customers. The 
contracts will require Panda to build a 230 megawatt gas-fired facility in Maryland and a 75 megawatt 
gas-fired facility in Florida to be operational in 1996 and 1995, respectively. Development costs for 
these projects are expected to be approximately $4 million in 1993. Management anticipates these 
costs will be funded through either Panda working capital, the sale of additional common stock, third 
party equity investment in the projects or project related debt, or a combination thereof. In addition, 
management anticipates that long-term funding for these facilitieswill be provided primarily through 
non-recourse project debt.and that this funding will be available on acceptable terms. At this time, 
the terms and availabilityof this funding cannot be assured. 

Lease Commitments - 
Panda leases certain office facilities and equipment under operating leases. Rent expense charged 
to operations under these leaseswas $165,724 and $170,716 for the years ended December 31, 1992 
and 1991, respectively. Panda leases the property for the Rosemary Project under a twenty-five year 
lease for a nominal amount. 

The future minimum lease commitments for each of the five years succeeding December 31, 1992 and 
thereafter are as follows: 

1993 $138,389 
1994 129,321 
1995 123,878 
1996 13 1,957 
1997 134,650 
Thereafter 44.883 

$703,078 

SPEC I A L i ' l  
REST?. ICTET, 
PK 3 7 4 9 6 5  
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